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Bismarck and Germany 
 Propagandize Marxism, Communism, New Dealism 




In the dissemination of Marx's doctrines several 
anomalous forces played highy important roles. Thus 
the New York Tribune, under Horace Greeley, employed Karl
Marx as correspondent. For ten years it published articles
by him that gave him a world-wide audience which he never
would have reached to propagandize; and afforded him his
only source of income, 
a pound a week. The really decisive initial force in the 
spread of Marxism however, was Bismarck and later, 
Germany. 



Prince Otto von Bismarck, Teutonic Knight who was 
bound by the Order's thousand-year-old oath to conquer the
world, originated the "welfare" and "social 
service" program that now parades as the New Deal. 
Subsequently, he became the foster-father of Marxism 
and Communism. His objective in doing these things 
was world conquest, "Deutschland uber Alles". No one 
who knew the Iron Chancellor could be deceived for one 
moment into the belief that he had the remotest interest in
the welfare of the weak or downtrodden. His 
mottos were "Blood and Steel" and "Might Makes Right". 



The program was a recrudescence of one which was 
old when it was introduced by the Gracchi in ancient 
Rome and eventually destroyed the Empire. It was 
given to Bismarck largely by Professor Adolph Wagner who was
reputedly an ancestor of our Senator 
Robert F. Wagner. It served Bismarck's quest for personal
power in several manners. First, it robbed the 
Socialists of the planks of their platform which made 
the greatest appeal to the mob—Social Security,
Unemployment Insurance, Workmen's Compensation, 
Health Insurance, and all of the other quasi-benevolent 
and paternalistic clap-trap. 



Bismarck shrewdly saw in these plans, devices fashioned to
destroy liberty and to chain the working class 
to his program and to any jobs to which they might 
be assigned. He saw in the program a snare which 
would deceive them into accepting submarginal wages 
and the surrender of adequate present existence in return
for a mirage of future security. As a means of 
winning the favor of the workers and of gaining some 
measure of power over industry and entree to its records, a
part of the cost was levied on the employers. 
This made of what conceivably might have been a 
boon to the worker, a penalty on industry for offering 
employment; and meant a tax on industry which materially
increased the cost of production. Both factors 
ultimately operate to increase unemployment. 



Bismarck also foresaw that with the working class 
tied to him by this program, he could force into line 
the German industrialist, the nobility, and finally the 
reluctant Prussian king, to support his plan of a united 
German Empire. Junker Bismarck, who had contemptuously
spurned any traffic with the working classes, 
whom he called a "revolutionary rabble", had grown 
tired of being buffeted about and shelved by his liege 
lord, the weakling King of Prussia. Adversity had 
served to make of him a diplomat who could advance 
from one compromise to another, from one treachery 
to another, to attain by a series of adroit maneuvers 
his ultimate goal—the consolidation of his own power 
by forcing his king to accept the position of Emperor 
of Germany. How well he planned, history reveals. 
With the Danish invasion, the elimination of Austrian 
interference in 1866, and the consolidation of his position
by a treacherously conceived conquest of France 
in 1870, the German Empire became not only a reality, but
also simultaneously a "first class Power". 



But for Bismarck, this was merely a beginning. With 
far greater vision, he planned the political and commercial 
conquest of the world—"Deutschland uber Alles". He
placed on Germany the stamp of a national 
paranoia which still drives it with mad singleness of 
purpose and signal "success". The World Wars are 
mere interludes. 



The conquest of world markets by German industry 
and commerce was planned by Bismarck. In such a 
struggle the burden of taxation and cost involved in 
the "welfare" program might have proved a severe 
handicap. Obviously it was necessary to overcome it 
by forcing the adoption of the same program and handicap on
competitor nations. Resort was had for this 
purpose to subjugation by ideas, propaganda and "boring from
within". 



There was launched one of the most persistent, persevering
and skilled propaganda campaigns in the 
world's history for the imposition of Bismarck's "New 
Deal" on the entire world. Now almost a century 
later it still continues to sway history and the world. 



In this "New Deal" propaganda Bismarck found many allies.
The pretended humanitarianism of the program won over many
unthinking, kindly persons as 
well as most religious sects. These groups are the best 
camouflage and front for any propaganda. Throughout the
world these deluded groups still ardently advance Bismarck's
destructive propaganda. 



Allies of unusual value were the labor movement, 
Karl Marx and his Socialism, and the Communist
Internationale. Initially Bismarck had regarded them as 
the arch-enemies of his plan. He had called upon Lasalle for
advice in his fight on them. On his counsel he 
plucked the "New Deal" from the program which they 
agitated, with the objective of deflating them. 



But Bismarck soon came to recognize that Karl Marx 
and his Revolutionary Socialism or Communism were 
shams. He saw that they offered no real menace among 
Germany's dull, plodding, intense, unimaginative, docile and
disciplined workers. He discovered that Karl 
Marx was an intense German Nationalist who gloried 
in the vaunted "superiority" of the German worker 
and who sensed that his program offered no threat to 
his Vaterland. Marxian Socialism was therefore the 
ideal propaganda weapon with which to demoralize 
other lands. 



The International Association for Labor Legislation 
was subsidized by Germany as a device to spread the 
Bismarxian "social welfare and labor" program. The 
Communist Internationale and the international and 
domestic labor unions were natural allies, made to 
order for Bismarck's purpose. 



Labor unionism has played an all-important role in 
the Bismarxian and Communazi propagandas from the 
very beginning. It serves the purposes of Bismarck as 
a most efficient agency for paralysis of industry and 
commerce, and for fomenting misery and unrest. 



Bismarck came to regard Karl Marx as an important 
ally in his Pan-Germanic propaganda. He appreciated 
that Communism planted in other lands would disrupt 
and demoralize them and would hasten the conquest 
of "Deutschland uber Alles". Bismarck eventually invited
Marx to return from exile and offered him the 
editorship of his own paper, the "Acht-Uhr Abendblatt." Marx
rejected the offer stating that he could 
serve the cause better in England. Marxist propaganda 
tracts printed in many languages became one of Germany's
principal exports. 



Germany's entire education system, as well as her 
diplomatic corps, was made part and parcel of the 
Bismarxian propaganda set-up. Subsidized learning 
and scientific achievement were widely advertised and 
publicized and lent color to claims of German intellectual
superiority. Trading on this reputation, Germany was able to
palm off on the world pseudosciences, such as sociology,
social service and modern economics, which are nothing 
more than very thinly disguised, false propaganda. 



A system of recognition, adulation and decoration of 
foreign educators and scientists fostered their teaching 
doctrines that served the purposes of the Bismarxian 
propaganda. Germany thus made the education system 
of other lands a part and parcel of her propaganda 
machine. The Communist propaganda machine, which 
has recently been exposed as dominating our entire 
school and university system, is but a subsidiary of the 
machine which Bismarck built. 



Harvard University was among the first in the U.S. 
to succumb to this subversive propaganda. It freely 
exchanged professors with the German universities. 
The German professors sent were official government 
propagandists. The American professors vied for the 
honor of recognition of the German universities. These 
honors they could gain only by serving the interests 
of the German Government by furthering its propaganda. Thus
the American universities became foci of 
subversive propaganda. This intensified the
Illuminist-Communist "educational" strain in America. 



How Bismarck's "welfare" program served the purpose of
destroying both the Socialist working class whom 
he abhorred and the smug industrialists whom he detested, is
portrayed in the petition of the Federated 
Industries of Germany to their Government in 1929, 
in which they pleaded that the so-called "welfare" 
program of Bismark's, fallen into Socialist hands 
threatened the existence of the nation and its industries.
The report read as follows: 



" . . . Appropriations for public undertakings 
. . . and increased outlays for welfare institutions 
offer less resistance than does an attempt to improve the
standard of living through the natural 
process of economic development . . . The intervention of
the state should be restricted and should 
extend only to such branches as cannot be served 
by private enterprise . . . The way of socialization 
leads to destruction of economy and pauperization 
of the masses, and German industry recognizes in 
it a danger not only to private enterprise and the 
workingman, but also to the nation at large  . . . " 
The German Republic disregarded this warning of 
crisis and of the dire consequences that would inevitably
follow. The results of the Marxian fallacies we all 
know. 



Bismarck and Marx were the guiding spirits of Nazi 
Germany. They had foreseen the docility of the German worker
and the absolutism it made possible. 
Nazism or some other form of dictatorship and slavery 
were the inevitable consequences of Marxism and of 
the "welfare" program of the "New Deal" launched by 
Bismarck. Its development was guided by Hitler's 
"Brain Trust", Professor Haushofer and his Geophysical
Institute. 



The class hatred of Marx was converted 
into another equally absurd hatred —the Aryan. Marxist
"internationalism" translated itself into Aryan
"internationalism". The war on Capitalism logically assumed
the form of raping of other lands. For Marx's 
definition of "capital" in final analysis is "the other 
fellow's property". Restriction of the supply of labor 
is most effectively obtained by slaughtering workers. 
The philosophy of Marxism and of Nazism is obviously 
identical. Nazism is the active tense of Marxism. And 
it is but natural that Communism should take over 
where Nazism left off. 



The first of the formidable competitors of Germany 
that succumbed to the propagandized Bismarxian program was
England. The Fabian Society was the chief 
agency of the propagandists. A few years before the 
World War I, Great Britain was forced by the agitation 
among her working classes to swallow the whole 
bait—hook, line and sinker. German industrialists openly 
urged upon Parliament the adoption of the program. 
Thereby were set in operation forces which are now 
speeding the disintegration of the British Empire. 
Premier Ramsay MacDonald in an address before Parliament in
1929 frankly blamed the welfare, dole and 
health insurance laws for the insoluble economic problem
presented in England by the unemployment situation. 



From the point of view of American affairs, even 
greater significance was lent to the situation when the 
wholly alien ideas were given an aura of respectability 
in the eyes of American Tories by their adoption in 
England. This was accentuated by the fact that British
industry was now in the same position with respect to the
cost of the "welfare" program in its competition for world
markets. It became of interest also 
to British industry that the United States should adopt 
an identical handicapping program. 



It was not long before Sir Arthur Newsholme, representing
the British Ministry of Health, began to visit 
this country to lecture systematically on the advantages 
of the "Security" and "Socialized Medicine" plans. He 
joined forces with the local agitators for the adoption 
of the program, in spite of the fact that it has resulted 
in England in a steadily rising death rate that culminated
in 1938 in one of the highest death rates in the 
civilized world. 



Russia was the next to succumb. In the stalemate 
of World War I, in 1917, Germany averted the need 
of fighting on two fronts by planting German made 
Communism in Russia. Colonel Nikitine, head of Russian
counter-espionage relates with fidelity in his book 
"The Fatal Years", how the German General Staff 
transported Russia's exiled band of German-trained 
Communist agitators in sealed trains from Switzerland 
through Germany into Russia. Rockefellers financed 
the Communists through their banker, Jacob Schiff, 
with millions of counterfeit ten ruble notes with 
which to buy the votes of the soldiers and sailors. 



Russian Communism was "made in Germany". The 
unity of purpose of Bismarck-guided Germany and 
Communist Russia was fully confirmed by the Communazi
alliance. It is still further proved by Russia carrying on
the Communazi program from the point where 
Nazi Germany left off. 



France was next to succumb. That the evolution 
of the program in Germany and England is not an 
isolated accident but is a natural consequence is revealed
by the experience of every country that has 
adopted it. The experience of France is a clear-cut 
demonstration. Succumbing to the propaganda, France 
adopted the Bismarck program in 1932, after Minister 
Loucheur had assured the Chambre de Deputes that 
its costs would merely be ten percent of the national 
income. At that time there was practically no unemployment
in France in spite of the depression which raged 
in the rest of the world. No sooner was it put in force 
than the cost of living in France rose forty percent. As 
a consequence the workers, whose existence has always 
been a marginal one, were forced to strike to avoid 
starvation. As usual, the "security" program precipitated
economic collapse and insecurity, as its author 
had designed. This is well portrayed in Van der 
Meersch's "When Looms Are Silent". 



The earliest published record of the launching of 
the Bismarxian propaganda in the United States is 
found in the report of the German subsidized International
Association For Labor Legislation (reported in 
the American Labor Legislation Review. V. 4, p. 511, 
1914): 



"Work toward the formation of an American 
Section was initiated in 1902, when the Board of 
the International Association began to make its objects
known in the United States and to form connections with
interested individuals." 



The formation of the American Association for Labor
Legislation in 1906 marked the beginning of the 
United States drive for the adoption of the Bismarxian
program. Among the original founders of the Association were
Richard T. Ely, the economist, Edward 
T. Devine and Mary K. Simkhovitch, social workers. 
R. O. Lovejoy noted in radical circles, Mary van Kleek, 
Director of the Industrial Division of the Russell Sage 
Foundation and left winger, and John B. Andrews, 
Director of the Association. These were later joined by 
John A. Kingsbury, Charles C. Burlingham, William 
Hodson, and Homer Folks, social workers, Ida M. 
Tarbell, biographer of the Standard Oil Company and 
the Rockefellers, Frances Perkins, later New Deal Secretary
of Labor and Harry L. Hopkins, later New Deal 
ringleader, and Eleanor Roosevelt. 



The initial support of the Association as might be 
expected, was German. Acquisition of control of the 
Russell Sage Foundation, several years later, through 
Mary Van Kleek and Leon Henderson, helped to 
provide amply for it. The same group reorganized Illuminist
Socialism as the Communist Party in the 
United States almost a decade before Russia was saddled with
Communism. This element was sufficiently 
influential to carry out successfully a drive on capitalism
as exemplified in the most vilified and largest of 
the "ogre" trusts, the Standard Oil Company and 
Rockefeller that culminated in a court order for dissolution
of the Standard Oil Company. That brought 
into play the most anomalous, but most important 
force that has fostered Communism in the U. S., the 
Rockefeller Empire. Thus Illuminist Communism, the 
college conspiracy, completed its cycle from Germany to the
U.S.A., back to Germany and then to the U.S.A. 





Oil is Thicker than Blood 
 Pearl Harbor 




By the nineteen hundred and twenties the Socony-Vacuum,
Standard Oil subsidiaries had gained a virtual monopoly of
the market for oil for the lamps of 
China. It was a monopoly dear to the heart of Rockefeller,
of the type he sought to extend to the whole 
world. Kerosene was sold at prohibitive prices in tiny 
amounts to fill gift lamps distributed by the Company. But
if ever the rich Chinese oil resources were 
developed such fantastic prices for kerosene even in 
beautiful tin cans, would be out of the question. It was 
essential for the monopoly and price structure that no 
oil be produced in China. The Soongs and the Nationalist
Government saw to that. Blunt General Smedley 
Butler of the United States Marines, after his retirement
roared, "All I ever did for twenty-five years in China 
is watch Standard Oil cans." 



All went well until the War Lord of the Shansi province
granted a concession to the Japs to drill for oil. 
The Japs found oil aplenty. This was a serious threat 
to the Standard Oil monopoly in China. The Chinese 
Nationalist Government was ordered to seize the War 
Lord if necessary, cancel the concession and oust the 
Japs. This was done in 1927. 



The Japs did not take kindly to cancellation of their 
oil concession after spending a hundred million yen on 
it. Nor did they feel kindly toward the Rockefeller-Standard
Oil crowd whom they knew to be responsible. They vowed to
come back and seize China, if necessary to get their oil. 



The Japs made good their threats and proceeded to 
seize China in the first Shanghai incident in 1931. And 
they did not forget the role played by the
Rockefeller-Standard Oil crowd in the cancellation of the
concessions. They avenged themselves wherever they went 
by destroying Rockefeller-Standard Oil property first. 



An illustration of how far the Japs went in destroying 
Rockefeller-Standard Oil property is the Panay incident.
The gunboat Panay was the only representative 
of the United States Navy in the China Seas. For six 
years it plied the Yangtze River during the Jap invasions of
China but was never molested. Suddenly one 
day in 1937, the news was blazoned to a shocked world 
that the Panay had been shelled by the Japs. It has 
never been told that the reason why the Panay had 
been shelled, was that it was convoying two Standard 
Oil tankers. That, the Japs would not tolerate. 



The efforts of the Rockefeller-Standard Oil group to 
protect their property look three directions. First in 
April 1938, within a short time after the Panay incident,
they made the Mitsuis of Japan, who with the 
Zaibatsu dominated Hiroshito and Japan's policies, 
their exclusive agents in North China and all conquered
territory in Asia. This placed the Rockefeller-Standard Oil
group in a position to influence Japan's policies. 



But it has always been a Rockefeller policy never to 
be satisfied with half a loaf when they can get a whole 
loaf at no expense to themselves. To accomplish a
destruction of Japan, it was necessary to bring the American
Army to the rescue of their property in China. 
But it would have been futile for the Rockefeller-Standard
Oil interests to ask Congress to declare war on Japan
because it was destroying their property in China. 
Even their numerous agents in Congress could not afford to
vote for a war on such grounds. To avoid committing
political suicide, they would have to reply: "Go 
fly your own kite." 



Franklin D. Roosevelt had no such fears or scruples. 
James A. Farley reported in his JIM FARLEY'S STORY 
(The Roosevelt Years) that Roosevelt brought up early 
in his first Cabinet meeting his plan to declare war on 
Japan which was then busy invading China (p. 39). For 
the background of this scheme of Roosevelt's, one must 
turn to a carefully suppressed story of national betrayal 
for private interests that is treason in its ugliest form.
It is related by one of the few Rockefeller-subsidized and 
subverted professors whose spirit of patriotism prevailed, 
and led him to turn on the conspirators, Professor Harry 
Elmer Barnes, in his pamphlet THE STRUGGLE 
AGAINST THE HISTORICAL BLACKOUT. 



Professor Barnes relates that Rockefeller attorney and 
agent, Henry L. Stimson, Secretary of State in the Hoover 
regime, approached Hoover on behalf of his patron, with 
a proposition to declare war on Japan to protect
Rockefeller-Standard Oil property in China, which the Japs 
were destroying wherever they went. He promised 
Hoover, in return, that the campaign of vilification that 
the conspirators had launched against him, and presumably
the depression about which it centered, would cease, 
and that he would be re-elected President. Hoover has 
always been a loyal and trusted Rockefeller agent, and 
member for many years, almost from its inception, of 
their Council on Foreign Relations. But President 
Hoover's pacifist religious scruples as a Quaker prevailed, 
and he refused to agree to join in this patron's war
conspiracy (p. 43, 6th ed.). This account by Barnes is cited 
in full in the author's ROCKEFELLER "Internationalist", 
The Man Who Misrules The World (p. 362). 



Franklin D. Roosevelt, Stimson relates in his ghosted 
"autobiography" ON ACTIVE SERVICE IN PEACE & 
WAR (p. 301), was fully in accord with Rockefeller's
warmongering. This was an important factor in the
Rockefeller support of Roosevelt's candidacy. Roosevelt was
delighted and intrigued with the idea of his own war to 
"immortalize" him. But Roosevelt was restrained by 
Farley and other Cabinet members. They confronted him 
with the fact that the Constitution required that a
declaration of war be made by Congress; and that neither 
Congress or the nation were in a mood to go to war. At 
that time the conspirators had not yet arrived at the point 
that they now have reached, of thumbing their noses at 
the Constitution, at Congress and at the people; and they 
had not yet accomplished the treasonous surrender of our 
sovereignty to themselves through their agency, the "United"
Nations", as a device for evading the Constitution and the law. 



If however, Japan could be induced to attack the 
U.S.—that would be a different story. To accomplish 
this purpose, it was imperative that the American public
should have no suspicion of the significance to the 
Rockefeller-Standard Oil interests of Japan's aggression on
China; and they never were told. This was accomplished by
Rockefeller's control of the press and 
other avenues of publication, and the control of every 
newspaper and news service of importance in the land. 
Through the Chase National Bank, the Rockefellers 
control all the Hearst publications and the International
News Service; also the United Press and the 
Scripps Howard chain. The Associated Press is entirely 
under their domination. Arthur Hays Sulzberger of the 
New York Times is on the Board of Directors of the 
Rockefeller Foundation since rumors have circulated 
of his sale of the Times to Rockefeller interests. 



Control of the press is the Rockefeller-Standard Oil 
practice in every land in which they operate. Thus 
when they sought the French oil monopoly, they purchased
three Paris newspapers—Le Matin, Figaro and 
L'Eclair. Their experience has taught them not to
underestimate the power of the press amongst a free people. 



They control directly or indirectly, also the important
magazines including the Time-Life-Fortune group, 
the Crowell-Collier group, the Curtis Publications, and 
many others. They control directly or indirectly all the 
large book publishing houses. They control also the 
radio and the motion picture industry. The Chairman 
of the Pulp and Paper Industry Board is John D. 
Rockefeller III. Through this complete control of
publications they were able to suppress any mention of 
the damage to their property by the Japs. 



Through their control of the Navy and the Government, they
were able to prevent any leaks from these 
sources. When Admiral Yarnell, Commander of the 
Panay, threatened to return to the United States and 
tell the American public of the indignity of the United 
States Navy being used as a convoy for tankers, he was 
retired; and learned better than to open his mouth on 
the subject. 



Having collaborated with the Dynasty in putting 
Roosevelt in the White House, the Rockefeller-Standard Oil
crowd took over the U.S. Government. The 
State Department was filled with Standard Oil executives.
The Department of the Interior headed by Harold Ickes
(attorney for the Rockefeller-Standard Oil 
interests in the Chicago area) was likewise packed with 
Rockefeller agents, as were all the rest of the government
departments and commissions. For decades the 
Rockefeller-Standard Oil interests have given berths to 
retired Army and Navy officers who had proved complacent in
the service, to good advantage. 



Whereas under President Wilson only several hundred Standard
Oil employees infiltrated into the government to take care
of their interests in World War 
I, respect for public sentiment had barred the appointment
of a Rockefeller to public office. But by 1933, 
the lily had been gilded; the Rockefeller name was 
falsely regarded as synonymous with philanthropy and 
benevolence, so well had been done the work of Fred 
T. Cates, Ivy L. Lee and numerous other perverters of 
public opinion. 



Not only was the whole of Franklin D. Roosevelt's 
Cabinet a Rockefeller-Standard Oil agency, but a
Rockefeller, Nelson was appointed to one of the most
strategic positions in national defense. Coordinator of 
Hemispheric Defense. Prior to then, he had been offered by
Harry L. Hopkins, Rockefeller almoner and 
stooge, the job of Assistant Secretary of Commerce, as 
a trial balloon to test public tolerance of a Rockefeller
appointee. Through the office of Coordinator the 
Rockefeller-Standard Oil interests were able to use the 
billions of dollars appropriated by Congress for lend-lease
to Latin American countries for their defenses, as 
a pork barrel to bribe or coerce those lands to restore 
to the Standard Oil, old expropriated concessions or 
grant them new concessions. 



Thus in Mexico, where oil lands had been expropriated during
World War I with the aid of Josephus 
Daniels and Franklin D. Roosevelt the Standard Oil interests
were able to secure for themselves $18,000,000 of 
a $25,000,000 award made to American oil companies 
for their expropriated properties; and the Standard 
Oil alone was able to get back the only two concessions in
Mexico that they really valued, by an oddly 
complacent decision of the Mexican Supreme Court. On 
another occasion Bolivia was notified that she would 
not get any of the "defense" boodle unless she paid the 
Standard Oil interests for expropriated lands, a fact 
that was published in only one American paper, La 
Prensa of New York. 



Nelson Rockefeller's Bureau was manned almost exclusively by
Communists who did an excellent job of 
fostering Communism in Latin America, in collaboration with
the O.W.I. It made the United States more 
enemies in that section of the world than it ever before 
has had. The Argentine situation and the April 1948 
revolt in Colombia that flared up in the face of the 
Rockefeller agent, Secretary of State Marshall, were
reactions to the activities of the Rockefeller Empire. 



The appointment of Joseph Grew, nephew of John 
Pierpont Morgan, as Ambassador to Japan was dictated. The
plan was to induce the Japs to attack the United 
States. Grew rapidly earned for himself the name 
of "friend of Japan." He was of invaluable assistance 
in aiding their armament. Standard Oil literally poured oil
into Japan. Wright Aeronautical and other aviation
manufacturers built plants and supplied unlimited numbers of
engines and planes. American munitions flowed into Japan in
a steady stream. Literally 
all the scrap on the American market, including the Sixth 
Avenue El of New York City were shipped into Japan. 
The United States generously supplied Japan with everything
she needed for war. Financing these shipments offered no
difficulty. Japan was being given plenty of rope 
to hang herself. 



Despite the growth of her armaments, Japan could not 
screw up sufficient courage to attack the United States. 
The conspirators were impatiently waiting and working 
to bring about an attack on the United States that would 
force Congress to declare officially the war that the 
Dynasty already was waging unofficially. Admiral Richardson,
who was Chief of Staff of the Pacific Command, 
testified before a Senate Investigating Committee that 
President Roosevelt had expressed the wishful thought, at 
a White House luncheon, October 8, 1940, that "the Japanese
sooner or later would make a mistake and we would 
enter the war." 



Promptly thereafter Admiral Richardson 
protested once again the splitting of the Pacific Fleet and 
stationing it at Pearl Harbor, both of which had been 
done against his advice, in view of the intent expressed 
by Roosevelt to take steps leading to active hostilities. 
When Admiral Richardson insistently urged preparing the 
Pacific Fleet to protect itself, he was relieved of his
command and replaced by Admiral Kimmel. The Navy
deliberately was barred by Roosevelt from preparing for war. 



At the instance of his bosses, Roosevelt followed his 
childhood yearning to play with warships and naval warfare.
He took over, indirectly, command of the Pacific 
Fleet. Roosevelt did everything that might be calculated 
to induce the Japs to attack the fleet at Pearl Harbor. He 
stationed the vessels within the Harbor where they could 
be bottle-necked and could not possibly be defended. He 
ordered disregard of any and all warnings of danger and 
attack that were picked up. 



In the meantime, Rockefeller-Soviet dominated and 
Rockefeller-financed Institute of Pacific Relations had 
furnished money and spies to the Communist, Richard 
Sorge spy ring in Japan. The purpose was to induce the 
Japanese war lords to attack the United States at Pearl 
Harbor, instead of attacking Rockefeller's Soviet partners,
which was the original Japanese plan. The Rockefeller, Red
agents in the U.S. State Department, associates of Alger
Hiss and the Hal Ware cell, treasonously 
supplemented the work of the Sorge spy ring. 



The Japs were told in effect: "Destroy the United 
States fleet at Pearl Harbor, and you have won the 
war from the start." In the meantime, the Japs who 
itched to attack were goaded to fury in the field of diplomacy. 



This deliberate plan to induce the Japs to attack the 
United States was common knowledge in diplomatic 
circles, but it has been regarded as a breach of "ethics" 
to mention it. But Capt. Oliver Lytteton, Minister of 
Production in Winston Churchill's Cabinet, stated before
Parliament on July 20, 1944: 



"Japan was provoked into attacking America at 
Pearl Harbor. It is a travesty on history to say that 
America was forced into the war." 



This is the import of a statement made by Eleanor 
Roosevelt, as usual sharper in tongue than in wit, in 
an interview given Kathleen McLaughlin, published in 
New York Times Magazine, October 8, 1944, about 
Pearl Harbor. 



"December 7, was just like any other D-Day to us. 
We clustered at the radio and waited for more details—but 
it was far from the shock it proved to the country in
general. We had expected something of the sort for a long time." 



Her statement was exceptionally significant. D-Days 
are known in advance to the High Command. This D-day was
known beyond any question to Roosevelt and 
his entourage. Roosevelt had on his desk a decoded message
sent by the Japs to their envoys in Washington, 
known as the "East Wind Rain" radiogram, which stated that
Japan planned to attack Pearl Harbor on the 
following day, many hours before the attack. But he 
deliberately betrayed the nation and its defenders and 
failed to warn them. On the contrary they were under 
orders to disregard outside danger signals. In all history
there never has been a more traitorous act by the 
head of any nation. 



This means that the Dynastic rulers and their pawn, 
President Franklin Delano Roosevelt, had courted and 
precipitated a Jap attack, then deliberately withheld 
the warning from the armed forces and prevented them 
from defending themselves. Why? For eight long years 
the conspirators had worked, prayed and waited for 
the attack. They would not risk its miscarriage or
effectiveness. The motto of the conspirators might have been: 



"Oil is thicker than blood." 



It was not their own blood that was shed and for 
them the price was cheap, the blood of 2500 men and 
a fleet of battleships paid for by the American people. 
Their lives meant nothing to them. The jeopardy 
in which they deliberately placed the nation was, as 
usual, of little concern to the internationally entrenched
scoundrels. 



The conspirators made little effort to hide their treason. 
This is made clear by correspondence between two Rockefeller
kinsfolks and agents. One of them is Brooks Emeny, 
husband of Rockefeller's cousin Winifred (who murdered 
her children and committed suicide), and their agent in 
the operation of their propaganda agency, the Foreign 
Policy Association. The other was Congresswoman Frances
Bolton, ranking Republican member of the House 
Foreign Affairs Committee. In a letter to Emeny, Mrs. 
Bolton acknowledged herself to be "guided" by him and 
his Rockefeller bosses. And she stated that she and her 
associates awaited and "celebrated" the December 7 attack on
Pearl Harbor. 





Blueprint of the New Deal 

 Hoffman Nickerson's 'The American Rich' 




Monopoly of every necessity of life and of national 
existence, and absolute dictatorship are the basic
doctrines of the Rockefeller Empire. For this purpose 
the Rockefeller "philanthropies" have fostered Marxism 
as the shortest cut to dictatorship in a Democracy. The 
world-wide chain of dictatorships which they seek 
would not be complete without an American dictatorship. In
this idea of an American dictatorship, the 
Roosevelt-Delano Dynasty fully concurs. It was quite 
natural that an alliance should be formed between them. 



So complete is the contempt of America's rulers for 
the moronic level of intelligence of its people that they 
sponsored the open publication of their program in 
the form of Hoffman Nickerson's book The American 
Rich. It was published by Doubleday Doran & Company at the
time that Theodore Roosevelt Jr. was its 
president. It was a blueprint of the New Deal subsequently
adopted in the Roosevelt regime, published in 
1930, three years before it was launched. Hoffman 
Nickerson was the prophet of the Empire and Dynasty whose
counsel and blueprint were followed closely. 



The schemers of the New Deal left nothing to chance 
but prepared to flim-flam the nation well in advance, 
in this matter, as well as in others. Thus the Agricultural
Allotment Plan was drawn up in 1932 by a Hindu, Svirinas
Wagel, Barney Baruch's Hentz & Company's economist, to
appear to be a boon to the farmers,—whereas it was a
made-to-order godsend for 
the speculators in commodities and designed to make 
their gambles "sure things". 



The theme of "The American Rich" is a familiar 
one. 



Democracy, the "Cult of Equality", is, always has 
been, and always will be a failure, it relates. It must 
be eliminated under the pretense of improving it. The 
objective to be sought and attained by finesse, is Medieval
feudalism and serfdom—a masterful upper 
class dominating, the rest of the population reduced 
to slavery. And at the head there must be a king. That 
is the form of government the United States must have 
if it is to have a perfect government. 



It is to the interest of the group that can be called 
perpetually rich, because they can always dip their 
hands into the pockets of the people through the 
Treasury, to see to it that the United States attains a 
perfect, feudal monarchic government. To accomplish 
this the rich must organize amongst themselves to fight 
a common cause and pick their agent, who will be 
made to appear to desert and betray his class. They 
must then undertake by sly undercover methods to 
"divide to rule". The people must be dealt with not as 
Americans, but as minorities set at each other's throats. 
Labor vs. Capital, Black vs. White, Catholic vs. Protestant,
Christian vs. Jew, for example. Then the selected 
agent must be made to appear the champion of all 
causes, the indispensable composer of differences, while 
from behind the scenes he must never cease to foment. 



This agent then can assume readily the role of popular
leader and be elected President. Once in office, 
everything must be done to keep him there by repeated
reelections. The government must be converted 
into a huge propaganda agency and perverter of popular
thought. He must cater to the mob. But all the 
while he must discredit and break down the checks on 
monarchic power of the President incorporated in the 
Constitution—the Supreme Court and Congress. But 
in the process he must be made to appear to seek an 
improvement on democracy. The gullible, moronic 
public must never suspect that he seeks to wipe out 
democracy—"The absurd Cult of Equality". 



Once elected, the President must be continually reelected.
The opposing candidate must merely be a 
straw man selected by the same group, to be knocked 
down and defeated. The people must be deceived into 
believing that they are exercising the democratic right 
to vote, while they have been robbed of the right of 
choice, i.e. the right to vote, by restriction of
nominations by the same group, to men subservient to them. 



When the President will have been reelected often 
enough, he will have had an opportunity to appoint 
to the Supreme Court all the justices, who will do his 
bidding. The Supreme Court, packed thus or otherwise, will
have ceased to be a check on the monarchic 
power of the President, as required by the Constitution.
Instead it will have become a prostituted agency 
serving the President and the invisible powers behind him. 



The problem of eliminating the power of Congress, 
of effecting "the twilight of legislature", Nickerson 
points out, is a bit more complicated but it must be done. 



" . . . they (legislatures) must be abolished or 
their bases and functions changed" (p. 259). 



"The first step toward complete monarchical 
(Presidential) initiative is the executive budget 
plan now prevailing in the Federal government 
and in thirty-four of the forty-eight states. Even 
the logical second step of limiting the constitutional
powers of the legislative bodies has been taken 
in seven of the thirty-four, Maryland, West Virginia, New
York, Massachusetts, California Nebraska and Wisconsin. THE
RICH THEREFORE 
MIGHT DO WELL TO HELP FORWARD SUCH A DEVELOPMENT" (p. 261). 



Nickerson goes on to suggest: 



"The resistance of legislature to the pruning of 
their sovereignty could easily be broken down by 
the imperative mandate. Candidates for legislative office
might be compelled to swear that if elected they would
support measures curtailing parliamentary and increasing
monarchical initiative. In 
this way the executive budget laws could be made 
more and more drastic."(p. 293). 



In practice, Nickerson's suggestion was adopted effectively
by abdication by New Deal legislatures. It was 
materially aided by the practices of Congress. Thus 
the gag rule limiting Congressmen's speeches on the 
floor of the House to one minute and barring publication of
"extensions of remarks" in the Congressional 
Record unless unanimous consent is obtained, has served to
muzzle the people's elected representatives. 



Nickerson's blueprint was materially improved on by 
the New Deal practice of grafting on to it the
Rockefeller-sponsored Communist program for attaining their 
goal by pseudo-philanthropy and by a mechanism that 
was so well expressed by their agent, Harry Hopkins: 
"Tax! Tax!! Tax!!! Spend! Spend!! Spend!!! 
Elect! Elect!! Elect!!!" 



Under the New Deal the budgets presented by Roosevelt to
Congress were so huge that no member of Congress dared add
to them; so voluminous and complex 
that Congress did not have the time to consider them; 
and so fraught with self-interest for special groups 
and with "pork barrel" that few Congressmen cared 
to attack them for fear of losing their "cut". Congress 
abdicated its constitutional power of initiating budgetary
legislation year after year, until, as the advocates 
of the plan expected, it has become the accepted practice
that the budget bill shall be initiated by the President. 



When that goal has been attained, Nickerson's blueprint then
proceeds to the next step that reduces Congress to a mere
advisory or consulting body, that is 
compatible with a feudal monarchy. He writes: 



"When financial initiative had thus been fully 
secured to the monarch, the same principle might 
be extended to all legislation. The monarch is already
charged with the duty of presenting at the 
opening of each legislative session a message as to 
legislative changes he thinks desirable. Constitutional
amendments might enlarge this traditional 
function so as to make it his duty to draw up a 
formal 'budget' of legislation, and might compel 
the legislature to say Aye or Nay to each item of 
this program before embarking on any new proposals of its
own. In normal cases public opinion 
could then be counted upon to compel the legislature to
adjourn and leave the community in peace 
until the beginning of the next session. There 
would remain the right of the legislative body to 
discuss public affairs (ed. 'debating society') to 
criticize the elective monarch, and to veto such 
new departure of his as they might think unwise", 
(pp. 293-294). 



This phase of the plan has been materially improved 
upon in New Deal practice even though it has not arrived at
the point where they dare propose a Constitutional amendment
to rob Congress of all right to 
legislate, and leave them merely the power of talk 
and veto. During Roosevelt's regime the conspirators 
used the "national emergency " device to prevent Congress
from enacting any legislation introduced by individual
Congressmen. The device was very simple and 
completely effective. Repeated situations were engineered by
the conspirators that were declared "national 
emergencies". Manipulation of national finance and the 
money system enabled the engineering and continuance 
of the depression. Disrupting the commerce and industry of
the nation with an N.R.A. or an O.P.A. 
served to disrupt production and stimulate inflation. 



The very measures that were presented to fight
inflation were designed to stimulate it for the purpose of 
creating a "national emergency". Robbing workers of 
the right to work implicit in the Constitution, and 
farming it out to their agents, so-called "labor-leaders", 
in return for a share of tribute levied by them for the 
privilege of working, provided not only a source of 
revenue but also a dictatorial control of the rank and 
file of the nation. It permitted creating "national 
emergencies" at will by blackmailing industry and by 
strikes. And when all else failed the conspirators
deliberately precipitated a real but tragic national
emergency, Pearl Harbor and World War II, to further 
their commercial and political schemes. 



All of these deliberately engineered "national emergencies"
were used as the means of dragooning Congress 
into accepting the dictates of the conspirators. They 
utilized the too familiar device of innumerable messages to
Congress on the state of the nation. The Constitution calls
on the President to send to Congress at 
the time it convenes a message on the state of the nation.
It was in no wise intended as a dictatorial device 
to force the will of the Executive on Congress. It was 
intended to be, and had been, an informative device. 



The New Deal with its tremendous propaganda machine that was
built up in the executive branch of the 
government with public funds for perverting and manipulating
public opinion, used these messages as a device to force
Congress into submission, abdication, and 
renunciation of the role assigned it by the Constitution.
The function of initiating any legislation was 
thus fraudulently usurped by the President, in complete
violation of the Constitution. There is no need 
for the renunciatory amendment to the Constitution 
demanded by Nickerson's blueprint. For this flaunting 
of the Constitution has become accepted practice in 
the conspiracy to destroy democracy and establish an 
open American monarchy. 



With regard to the form that will be given American 
monarchy, whether elective or hereditary, Nickerson 
advised caution: 



"Changes like the executive budget deriving most 
of their force from moral sources rather than from 
statute law, may creep in gradually . . . But even 
to give the President a longer term or to disregard 
the very strong tradition handed down from Washington
himself against a third term for any individual
President would be a sharp and noticeable 
change not to be masked by any form of words. 
Hence, though most elective monarchies of the 
past have been for life, all such questions must be 
left to the future". 



Nickerson obviously reckoned not on the effectiveness 
of the General Education Fund and the Rockefeller 
Foundation in their control of education, of the press, 
radio, films, the government propaganda machine and 
every other avenue of exchange of information, in 
perverting and warping the minds of a nation. He 
reckoned without the savoir faire of the Rockefeller-Standard
Oil regime, and the experience of its ally, the 
Roosevelt-Delano Dynasty. So thoroughly had their 
task been performed that a little over a decade after 
Nickerson wrote, the third and fourth Presidential 
terms and the numerous other violations of the letter 
and spirit of the Constitution, that he could not conceive
as being accepted by the nation, were accomplished facts. 



Nickerson points out a technique whereby the people could be
painlessly robbed of their franchise, by 
which "all pretense of an election dependent on popular will
would have vanished", (p. 295). It is a technique with which
the Roosevelt-Delano Dynasty have 
had extensive experience—the third party movement. 
The idea is to split the electoral vote so that no candidate
gets a majority, thus throwing the election into 
the lap of Congress. 



It is significant that the salary of Henry Wallace as 
editor of the New Republic was reported to be $75,000 a
year. The New Republic has not made that many 
pennies profit in its entire existence. It has been
subsidized by Anglophile Willard Straight of J.P. 
Morgan & Company and his son, Michael Straight. Undenied 
reports state that Henry Wallace's salary, travelling 
and campaign expenses are being paid by Michael 
Straight, Jock Whitney and Nelson Rockefeller. 



After pointing out the great strength of the case for 
hereditary monarchy, Nickerson concludes: 



"Come what may, monarchy in its elective form 
is firmly established as the chief American organ 
of government. It is the instrument through which, 
when the time is ripe, we may hope for a solution 
of our problems, for an honorable but separate status
for the negro and Jew, permitting us to 
utilize their distinctive gifts while preserving us 
from too much racial contact with the first and 
from the alien soul of the second  . . . " (p. 302).



He points, in support of the first idea, to the proposal of
the Town Board of Sudbury, Massachusetts 
in 1927, that Coolidge be made President for life; and 
to the fact that the Presidency "within a few generations
has been clothed with awe and reverence which 
shone on the kings of old". His judgment has been 
fully confirmed by the obeisance and veneration of 
Franklin Delano Roosevelt, engendered by adroit propaganda
in a large section of the populace. 



"Already" he writes, "we are not far from 'divine 
Caesar'  . . . " Indeed, no. Sadly enough, we are far 
beyond it. 



As for his concept on alien minorities, Nickerson's 
ideas have been closely followed by the conspirators. 
They are being "utilized" or used to attain a destruction of
democracy and the establishment of the American monarchy.
They are being put in the forefront, 
in the firing line to take all the blame and punishment. But
in a properly regulated feudal monarchy, 
there is no room for any minority. Their elimination 
is planned when the goal of feudalism has been attained. 



There is an amusing phase to Hoffman Nickerson's 
"omniscient" prattling. He holds the "Jews" in such 
abysmal contempt that he will not even capitalize 
their name; and he regards as one of the functions of 
his program, the elimination of the Jew's. But he 
supports much of his blueprint, and justifies other sections
with the Federalist writings of "the great Alexander
Hamilton" (p. 246) whom he acclaims as the 
outstanding American patriot and the greatest mind 
among the founders of our country. 



If he is as wise, well-informed and omniscient as he 
poses, he would know that his hero Alexander Hamilton was
born Levine, the son of a Danish Jewish West 
Indies planter John Michael Levine. Alexander was 
the son of a Jewish father and a mulatto mother. Alexander's
mother Rachael was unfaithful and left his 
father to live with James Hamilton. When her husband
divorced her, she was forbidden to remarry but 
continued to live with Hamilton and changed her son's 
name from Levine to Hamilton. ("Money Changers", 
Gertrude M. Coogan, Sound Money Press, 1935, p. 188). 



Posthumously his descendants undertook to attribute 
fatherhood to James Hamilton. They preferred to stigmatize
their ancestor as a bastard, to acknowledging 
his Jewish and Negro ancestry. The absurdity of the 
effort is attested to by the fact that they place Alexander
in charge of one of the largest mercantile businesses of St.
Croix at the age of twelve years. Precocity they call it!
But they place the date of his birth 
two years before that of his mother's divorce in 1759, 
and within a few months after her marriage to Levine. 
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Roosevelt's Odd Ailments and His Strange Death 




Mention has been made of F.D.R.'s attack of
encephalomyelitis and the stigmata which it left in its 
train. Both his physical and mental health were seriously
and permanently impaired by it. The uncontrollable temper,
the attacks of excitement with wild 
laughing, and of depression and high suggestibility are 
among the sequella that might be expected after the 
disease. Newspaper correspondents reported episodes 
of unreasoned and sustained uproarious laughter of the 
same type that startled guests at the Du Pont wedding 
and led Eleanor to pack him up and send him home. 
Tubbing and hydrotherapy are effectively used in these 
conditions. 



At Teheran Roosevelt and Churchill met with Stalin to
confirm the division of the World between them. 
During the conference, Roosevelt had been prevailed 
upon by the Russians to stay at the Russian Embassy 
because the Russians said, the American Embassy was 
not safe. At the Russian Embassy, it is reported, a 
special courtesy was extended to the guests. They were 
assigned a special waiter who served them exclusively. 
It was later discovered that the waiter was a physician 
who specialized in the science of poisoning, toxicology. 
The use of doctors under Russia's state medical system 
in disposing of persona whom the powers-that-be wished
out of the way, by poisoning them, has been attested to
in the Moscow purge trails. Dr. Levine testified that he had
been ordered by his superiors to poison Maxim Gorki and had
done so. 



Shortly after their departure, Winston Churchill became
extremely ill. He was hurried to Egypt where he 
was so sick that his death was expected momentarily. 
But his life was saved by a protege of his, Sir Arthur 
Fleming, the discoverer of penicillin, whom it is reported,
he had sent through medical school as a reward for saving
his life from drowning. 



Roosevelt also was extremely ill on his return. He 
was unable to walk or stand unassisted, and never recovered
his strength. His disability bore a striking resemblance to
poisoning with a form of curare, an Indian arrow poison that
had engaged the interest of 
Russian scientists. He wasted steadily thereafter. 



In informed circles there is told a tale of an Oriental 
poison handed down from the days of Genghis Khan, 
that causes a slow, steady wasting and delayed death. 
Its administration is spoken of in terms of "passing the 
silver cord". Reputedly it has been Stalin's favorite 
method of unobstrusively purging folks that stood in 
the way. Lenin, after he had decided to oust Stalin, 
died such a death. Likewise Krassin wasted away in the 
same manner. Rumors reached this country before 
Roosevelt's return that the "silver cord" had been 
passed to him and other conferees by Stalin. 



The motion pictures of Roosevelt debarking from a 
cruiser on his return from Teheran, in December 1943, 
revealed him to be a very sick man. He had lost considerable
weight, and was quite emaciated. The black 
mole over his left eyebrow, that had constantly been a 
feature in his photographs, stuck out of his head like a horn. 



It takes no great medical skill to diagnose the character of
the growth over President Roosevelt's left eyebrow. It had
the characteristic appearance and behavior of a mole turned
malignant and rapidly growing, 
a type of cancer, or sarcoma, known as melanosarcoma. 



The dishonesty that characterized the reports issued by 
the President's medical attendants is revealed by a
statement which he himself gave the Press. Vice Admiral
McIntire makes no mention of the rapidly growing mole 
that had become malignant, in the book that was ghosted 
for him by one of the veteran perverters of the truth for 
political purposes, otherwise known as "publicity man", 
George Creel, under the title WHITE HOUSE PHYSICIAN (G. P.
Putman's Sons, N.Y., 1946). He mentions, 
instead, a relatively minor condition: "a nagging
inflammation of the bronchial tubes" which he reports
troubled Roosevelt during the 1943 Christmas celebration at Hyde Park. 



Adm. Mclntire's efforts to delude the Press and the 
public about the state of health of his patient, were
frustrated by a statement issued by Roosevelt himself to 
press correspondents on February 4, 1944, that was published
in the New York Times on the following day (p. 17, 
col. 7). He revealed that he had had an "operation to 
remove a wen on his head". But Mclntire and his consultants
had made no mention of the operation in their 
bulletins, which they had issued as supposedly honest
reports to their employers, the nation, on the condition of 
the patient. 



Residents of Ormond Beach, Florida, reported that in 
January, 1944, they had seen President Roosevelt there 
with a bandage about his head, obviously convalescing 
from an operation, at the estate of John D. Rockefeller. 
It is highly probable that it was at that time there was 
removed the melanosarcoma (one of the most malignant 
forms of cancer) that had developed in the mole over 
Roosevelt's left eyebrow. 



From the time of Roosevelt's return from Teheran, until 
January 6, 1945, more than a year later, Press photographers
were ordered not to take, or publish, any photographs of the
ailing President, except when specifically 
permitted to do so by the White House. Few exceptions 
were made. 



What could have been the reason for that order? 



It long has been the custom for the world dictatorship 
conspirators to use doubles for the men that, as their 
agents, they place at the heads of governments. This is 
clearly illustrated by the widely published report of the 
experience of the German medical consultant who was 
summoned to Moscow to examine Stalin, in the year before he
died. The physician was taken to a hospital ward, 
where he was confronted with seven men. All of the men 
resembled Stalin sufficiently to be mistaken for him. This 
childish maneuver was intended, evidently, to delude 
the physician as to whom he was treating. 



Likewise, Hitler and Mussolini had their doubles. 



One of the doubles for President Franklin Delano 
Roosevelt, who acknowledged that he had acted on public
occasions as "Roosevelt", appeared with the author on 
the Tom Duggan Television program on Station KCOP, 
Los Angeles, in November, 1957. He was the Warner 
Bros, actor, Captain Jack Young, of Norwood, Ontario 
and Beverly Hills, California. Capt. Young stated on the 
program that after he had been given the assignment to 
double for Roosevelt in 1941, he had spent several months 
as a guest in the White House, studying the President's 
speech, actions and mannerisms, until he learned to imitate
them perfectly. He stated that in addition to his public
appearances in the role of "President", he had been 
featured in that role by Warner Bros., in the movies "Yankee
Doodle Dandy", "Mission To Moscow" and "This Is 
The Army"; and by 20th Century Fox, in "Woodrow Wilson".
Capt. Young delighted his audience by imitating 
Roosevelt and his "again and again" speech. 



Undoubtedly, the doubles served the conspirators as 
puppets quite as well as did their originals. 



It is quite obvious that such robust doubles as Capt. 
Young could not play the role of the aged, wasted, emaciated
and deathly sick Roosevelt who returned from 
Teheran. He is too robust. But there is reason to believe 
that, subsequently, other doubles assumed the role of the 
dying President, and carried it off well. 



In the months following the original operation announced by
Roosevelt, Drew Pearson reported in his radio broadcasts
that the President had had two additional 
operations, supposedly for "wens", that were done at the 
Bethesda Naval Hospital. During those months there 
were relatively long periods of time when the Press
correspondents who constantly surrounded Roosevelt, and 
had virtually lived at his side, as well as other close
associates, were completely cut off from any communication 
with the President. Indeed, it is open to question if any of 
them ever saw him, in person, again. Elaborate efforts 
were made by the conspirators to keep the public from 
learning of the vanishing of the President from the public scene. 



Gen. Dwight D. Eisenhower, for instance, was reported to
have had an audience with the President, by the 
N.Y. Times on January 18, 1944 (p. 40, Col. 5). A Press 
conference was also announced by the Times, on January 
19 (p. 5, Col. 6). But these followed a shock-breaking 
announcement in its columns of January 15 (p. 9, col. 6 
that "Roosevelt" had lost ten pounds. This might well 
have been a maneuver to cover up the use of one of the 
doubles to play the role of "President". 



The February 25, 1944 N.Y. Times carried (p. 17, col. 7) 
a strange dateline and even more curious headline that 
read as follows: "With Pres. Roosevelt, Feb. 24. PRESIDENT
HOLDS ALOOF FROM PRESS". The dispatch 
relates that the correspondents had been informed that 
his presence could not be recognized, he was absent from 
the city, and no questions would be entertained by the 
President. It was emphasized that the dispatch did not 
come from the Press correspondents "who continually 
stay near the President" because the correspondents had 
not been permitted to take the trip. 



The absence of Roosevelt from the White House was 
covered up by statements issued by various persons
concerning the state of health of the President, whose
whereabouts was shrouded in mystery. On March 25, however, 
it was announced that the President had left the White 
House for the first time after his prolonged illness.



In the meantime, something had occurred that is of 
special interest in connection with the situation. On 
March 21, 1944, the N.Y. Times (p. 19, Col. 3) reported 
that Winthrop Rutherfurd, a distant kinsman of Roosevelt's,
had died on March 19, at his estate in Aiken, S.C. 
That there may have been some connection between 
Roosevelt's disappearance from the public eye and this 
death at Aiken, is brought up by a revelation of Grace 
Tully, Roosevelt's secretary, in her biography entitled 
F.D.R. MY BOSS. 



Miss Tully exposed the fact that the widow, Mrs. Winthrop
Rutherfurd, nee Lucy Mercer, was present at Georgia Warm
Springs at the time that "Roosevelt's" death 
was announced—more than a year later. 



Prior to her marriage in 1920, Lucy Mercer had been 
in the employ of the Roosevelts. She had attracted the 
roving eye, that is so characteristic of the clan, of
Franklin D. Roosevelt. In the true family tradition, that
was followed more recently by his son Jimmy, FDR had indulged in
a kiss-and-tell romance with his attractive employee—and
then cavalierly blabbed about it to his spouse, Eleanor. 



Miss Mercer left the Roosevelt employ, married shortly
thereafter and presented her aged husband with a 
daughter to take a place beside her five stepchildren. 
Curiously, Eleanor Roosevelt makes no mention of these 
intriguing matters in her supposed utterly candid biographies! 



Visits of the President, clandestinely, to the Rutherfurd 
New Jersey estate on several previous occasions, that 
were kept from public ken by censorship, are related by 
Westbrook Pegler, in his King Features column dispatched
from Washington on December 22, 1949. 



It seems hardly probable that Mrs. Winthrop Rutherfurd would
have been present at Georgia Warm Springs, 
visiting an admirer whom she had spurned—Franklin D. 
Roosevelt—within a year after the death of her husband. 
It is highly improbable that she would have brazenly 
employed an artist, Mrs. Elizabeth Shoumatoff, to paint 
the portrait of a former lover, FDR, as stated by Miss 
Tully. Since Mrs. Shoumatoff had been commissioned to 
do portraits of several members of the Rutherfurd family, it
appears more probable that she and Mrs. Rutherfurd were
present at Georgia Warm Springs with a member of the
Rutherfurd family. Is it possible that the more 
aged Winthrop Rutherfurd was substituted for the dying 
President in the early months of 1944, when the latter 
vanished from the public scene? 



The author interviewed Mrs. Shoumatoff at her Fifth 
Ave. apartment, in the early 1950's. Her story was a 
strange one. She stated that she had done a portrait in 
water color, years earlier, of a younger Roosevelt, which 
she had in her apartment, and showed me. It showed 
FDR, who had managed to evade the draft and military 
service, striking a pose as a "fighting man", a naval
officer. She had nothing to show for a portrait of the Warm 
Springs invalid. 



For keeping her secret, concerning the nature of which 
she was not specific, Mrs. Shoumatoff related, Eleanor 
Roosevelt had offered, after the death at Warm Springs, 
to hang that portrait at the Hyde Park "shrine" for a 
period of time; and promised that at the end of the period
she would pay her handsomely (my recollection 
was that the sum specified was $50,000, a really handsome
bribe) for the portrait and make it a permanent 
part of the exhibit. However, Mrs. Shoumatoff related, 
at the end of a year, after the myth of the "Roosevelt" 
death had become too firmly established in the minds of 
us "peasants" to dislodge, Eleanor Roosevelt curtly
returned the portrait to the artist with not even a "thank 
you", and welshed on the deal in characteristic Roosevelt style. 



This affair may give some clue as to who was the double who
campaigned for Roosevelt in 1944, who went to 
Yalta with Alger Hiss for the "One World", Rockefeller-Soviet
conspirators; and who it was that died so mysteriously at
Georgia Warm Springs. 



In spite of censorship and propaganda, it was fairly 
widely suspected that the man who campaigned as Democratic
candidate in 1944 was not Roosevelt. Fulton Lewis Jr.
informed the author that he attended one of the 
few personal appearances of the "candidate" in the 
campaign—the foreign policy speech that was delivered to a 
rowdy bootlegger—and racketeer-infested Teamsters' Union
convention in New York. The appearance, speech, diction,
enunciation and mannerisms of the speaker were so 
different from those of Franklin Delano Roosevelt, Mr. 
Lewis related, that he approached Presidential secretary, 
Steve Early, and asked him who had substituted for 
Roosevelt in delivering the speech. Early took Lewis 
aside, shushed him, and tried to pass off the question by 
alleging: "The President has had too many drinks". 



The fact that it was some one other than the President 
who delivered the "fireside talks" during the campaign 
was evident to every critical listener; and it can be
discerned from the recordings of them. 



The order prohibiting the taking or publishing of a 
photograph of the President that had been issued to the 
Press in December, 1943, was countermanded on January 6,
1945. The Press photographers were ordered to 
take, for publication, a photograph of "President Roosevelt
broadcasting his message on the state of the Nation". 
But contrary to the practise that had previously prevailed, 
they were not permitted to take any "closeups", or to
publish enlargements of the "President's" features; and were 
required to take only distant views from across the chamber.
As a consequence, the face of the broadcaster was 
so small, in the picture, that the features could not be 
discerned in the prints. In published reproductions of the 
picture, printed with screening, the details were entirely 
indistinguishable; and accurate identification of the
subject was impossible. 



The author purchased an enlargement of the photograph taken
by the Associated Press photographer, 
together with a number of closeup portraits taken in years 
prior. It is reproduced here, together with the earlier
photos known to be those of F. D. Roosevelt The enlargement
reveals the fact that the person making the January 6 broadcast 
on the state of the nation could not possibly 
be mistaken for Roosevelt. The differences in the features 
are such that neither age nor disease can effect, viz: 



	
The ears presented by the two, differ in shape. 


	
The position of the ears on the heads differ. 


	
The shapes of the heads and of the hairlines differ. 


	
The shapes and color values of the eyes differ. 


	
The shapes of the noses differ. 


	
The broadcaster presents a butterfly eruption over 
the saddle of the nose that is typical of pellagra. 
This arises from heavy drinking without an adequate 
diet, that results in a deficiency of Vitamin B. Since 
Roosevelt drank liberally, but also ate heartily, he 
never presented any pellagratous signs. 


	
The broadcaster is edentulous, presenting only two 
long, rounded upper incisor teeth. Roosevelt had a 
full set of short, irregular, angular teeth and his
physicians never reported that any tooth extractions were 
done on the President, though they would have been 
certain to report it because it would have helped explain
their patient's difficulties without creating any 
alarm. 


	
The shape of the two chins differ in a manner that no 
disease could bring about 


	
The ratio of the width of the cheek bones to the 
height of the skull, which is an anthropometric index 
that does not vary with disease, differs widely in the 
two photographs. 


	
The mole that Roosevelt had presented on his forehead
over the left eyebrow, for many years is absent 
in the broadcaster, but in its place there is a scar at 
the site, through the eyebrow. The impression given 
by the picture, is that the scar was deliberately created by
an incision through the eyebrow, in the effort 
to make the deception more perfect 
The enlarged photograph of the broadcaster makes it 
quite evident that both the photographers and the nation 
were duped. The conspirators evidently trusted that their 
deception in palming off a double would be insured success
by the barring of close-ups. 




 
It is reasonably certain that no such chances would 
have been taken by the conspirators if Roosevelt was 
alive and competent mentally. It therefore appears to be 
a certainty that President Roosevelt was either dead, or 
incompetent mentally, on January 6, 1945; and that since 
the same person appears in the photographs released from 
the Yalta conference, it evidently was the double who 
attended that conference. Winston Churchill remarked 
in his autobiography about how strangely different a person
was the "Roosevelt" who attended the Yalta conference. There
is reason to believe that he was aware of the 
fact that he was dealing with a double. The Communists,
undoubtedly, had been informed of the deception 
by their Axis partners, and were fully aware of it. This 
may explain the demand on the part of the Soviet Ambassador
following the death that the coffin be opened 
and he be permitted to view the remains, on behalf of his 
government. The request was denied. Both the request 
and its denial are quite extraordinary. It creates the
impression that Stalin and the Soviets were trying to make 
sure of the elimination of a trusted agent; or that they 
were checking to make sure of a purge. 



Strange as were the features and circumstances of 
Roosevelt's illness and operations, the circumstances of 
the death at Georgia Warm Springs were even stranger. 
These make it obvious that there is more to the situation 
than meets the eye, and that gross deception has been 
practiced on the nation. They have given rise, quite
naturally, to many rumors that could and can be set at rest, 
and should be, by the legally required postmortem on the 
remains. But all demands made upon the authorities for 
compliance with Federal and State laws which require an 
autopsy in the case of sudden deaths of unexpected nature,
to eliminate the possibility of murder and foul-play, 
have been ignored. 



The sudden and unexpected nature of the death is attested to
by the statements and actions of President 
Roosevelt's personal physician who was assigned by the 
Navy to be in constant attendance on him. Vice Admiral 
Ross T. McIntire. He was not present in Georgia Warm 
Springs at the time of the death. This fact makes it highly 
probable, almost a certainty, that the person who died 
there was not President Roosevelt. 



The alibi that the professional perverter of the truth 
for public deception, otherwise known as "public relations
counsellor", assigned by the Government to fashion 



the Doctor's published story to suit their purposes, and to 
protect those involved, is so weak that it merely serves to 
fully confirm the justified suspicions. Ghost-writer, 
George Creel represents the Doctor as asserting: that 
tests proved him (Ed. i.e. Roosevelt) organically sound 
. . . (p. 238). His heart was their principal concern . . .
The signs counted on for diagnosis of the condition of the 
cerebral arteries, were absent. 



There emerges, quite obviously, from this statement the 
fact that whoever it was that died at Georgia Warm 
Springs, did die a sudden and unexpected death from a 
cause that might be surmised, or guessed, but could not 
be definitely established except by a postmortem. In such 
cases the laws of every State in the Union, and the Federal
laws, require a postmortem for the purpose of definitely and
positively determining the cause of the death, 
and for elimination of the possibility of murder or
foul play. This means that the burial of the Georgia Warm 
Springs victim without a postmortem was a flagrant and 
deliberate violation of the law. Consequently, it raises a 
grave suspicion of assassination, or murder, of the victim.
And to this date, no move has been made by law 
enforcement agencies to dispel that suspicion in spite of a 
public demand made by the author! 



Ghost-writer Creel has acknowledged on behalf of Dr. 
McIntire that an autopsy was in order; but alleges that it 
would serve no useful purpose (p. 239). This allegation 
is preposterously false. It would serve the obvious and 
most important purpose of complying with the law that 
was enacted for the purpose of guarding against 
murder—which is a highly useful purpose. The 
postmortem, if it 
had been performed, would have determined that the 
"cerebral hemorrhage" that is given as the cause of death 
in the death certificate had not been brought about
deliberately by any one of a number of means, for the
purpose of murder. 



The hemorrhage might have been caused by a fracture 
of the skull. It might have been due to an assassin's bullet, 
the point of entry of which, as happens at times, was not 
evidenced by any external mark, but might have been 
discovered at autopsy. It might have been caused by 
the administration of a poison, such as dicoumarol, that 
favors the development of hemorrhages, that might have 
been administered either for the purpose of accomplishing a
murder, or carelessly administered by the treating 
physician in excessive amounts. Or the hemorrhage might 
have been caused by a brain tumor, or a metastasis to 
the brain of a mole become cancerous; and this undeniably
would be a most useful bit of information for the 
nation to know—with its evidence that there was a
pathologic basis of mental impairment in the brain of the
nation's ruler who had done so much to change the structure
and administration of its government. It would open 
to question the decrees and orders he was supposed to 
have signed. And finally it might have revealed that the 
remains were that of an impostor, of a double, who had 
been used by conspirators to accomplish their malign
purposes. 



NO AUTOPSY WAS MORE DEFINITELY REQUIRED BY LAW, AND NONE
COULD SERVE A BETTER PURPOSE, THAN ONE MADE ON THE 
REMAINS OF THE GEORGIA WARM SPRINGS VICTIM! 



An explanation of the possible cause for the failure to 
perform an autopsy on the corpse may lie in the report 
that emanates from a local clergyman who chanced on 
the death scene. He reported that the death had been 
caused by a bullet through the skull from behind forward,
that had blown away the victim's face. This would 
also serve to explain why the body never was laid out in 
state. 



A survey made at an undertakers' convention in the 
South, a year or two after the death, reported that no 
undertaker had been found who would acknowledge that 
he had embalmed the remains. However, Mr. Patterson, 
of H. M. Patterson & Son, of Atlanta, Georgia, more recently
informed the author, in August, 1958, that he had 
embalmed the body before it had entrained from Atlanta 
for Washington, accompanied by soldiers, sailors and marines
as pall-bearers. 



Before it was shipped, the coffin was sealed. And it 
was never again opened, even for the family services. 
The GI's who accompanied the body had instructions to 
shoot anyone who attempted to open the coffin. In
Washington, those who came to view the remains, saw only 
the unopened coffin. While in broadcasts to the Armed 
Forces Elmer Davis, Chief of the Office of War
"Intelligence", falsely alleged that the body lay in state,
the buddies of the deluded GI's stood guard about the coffin 
to make sure that no one could view the remains by opening
the coffin. The sealed coffin was placed in the East 
Room of the White House, where services were held on 
April 14 with Rev. Angus Dun, bishop of the Episcopal 
diocese of Washington officiating. 



On the same afternoon, the sealed coffin was shipped, 
under armed guard, to the funeral parlor of Auchmoody, 
of Fishkill, N.Y. Mr. Auchmoody informed the author 
that he was given strict orders not to dare to open the 
coffin, and was told that the armed guard was under orders
to shoot anyone who would attempt to open it. 



On the following day, April 15, the unopened coffin 
was buried with military honors. These were anomalous 
in view of the fact that FDR had carefully avoided and 
evaded draft into active military service though he
inflicted it gleefully on others. The coffin was buried in 
the garden of the Roosevelt Hyde Park estate. Rev. 
George W. Anthony, rector of St James' Episcopal 
Church at Hyde Park, officiated. For a long time, armed 
GI's with drawn bayonets stood guard, day and night, 
over this country grave. They were succeeded by National
Park Service guards. 



By way of sharp contrast, let us consider the status of 
the tomb of FDR's closest relative among the U.S.
Presidents, Ulysses S. Grant. Grant's tomb is located at
125th St. and Riverside Drive, in Harlem, one of the most 
crime-ridden sections of the land. But never has any 
armed guard been posted over his tomb. 



The situation stresses the questions: 'WHAT ARE THE 
CONSPIRATORS TRYING SO DESPERATELY TO HIDE? WHO LIES 
BURIED AT HYDE PARK? 



The postmortem that is required by the law that was 
flaunted in the burial, would help, at even this late date, 
to supply the answers. Dentures could be compared with 
the records of the President's dentist. They could suffice 
for identification of the skeleton. The presence of bullet 
holes in the skull, or their absence, would set at rest that 
story, and would dispel some of the mystery. 



The author made a public demand for the disinterring 
of the remains and their postmortem examination upon 
the public officials who are required to enforce the law 
that is designed to discourage and expose murder and 
foul-play. The demand was served on Thomas E. Dewey, 
who was then Governor of the State of New York, in 
which the burial took place. It was published in the N.Y. 
Enquirer. But no more has been done about investigation 
of the death in compliance with the law, than was 
done in another activity of the same breed of conspirators,
back in Civil War days, when they engineered the 
assassination of Abraham Lincoln. 



An effort was made to cover up the irregularity, failure 
to perform a portmortem, in the death certificate signed 
at Georgia Warm Springs by Dr. Howard T. Bruenn of 
the U.S. Naval Hospital, Bethesda, Md. that is here
reproduced. He stated as the primary cause of death,
"cerebral hemorrhage". As contributory cause, to which the 
death should be charged, he names "arterio sclerosis". 
This representation is proved utterly false, however, by 
the statement made by ghost-writer Creel in the name of 
Dr. Mclntire, to the effect that the patient did not have 
either extremely high blood pressure or generalized
arteriosclerosis, or any signs that would lead one to
suspect damage to the cerebral arteries (p.244). This completely 
belies the death certificate and further stresses the legal 
requirement for autopsy that was disregarded. 



Eleanor Roosevelt, in an effort to cover up the fact that 
the body did not lie in state, as custom requires, made 
the obviously false allegation, in one of her publications, 
that it was not the custom in the Roosevelt family. This 
was belied, however, by the fact that the President's own 
mother, Sara Delano Roosevelt, lay in state on the order 
of her son. 



It indicates something very peculiar in the situation, 
that the Roosevelts, with their love of ostentation, missed 
the chance for a display of public adoration. And Eleanor 
Roosevelt has added considerable fuel to the fire of
suspicion concerning the death of her husband by her later 
confession to the truth of the matter, in an article of hers 
that was published in the February 8, 1958, issue of the 
Saturday Evening Post, entitled ON MY OWN (pp. 6970). She
alleges that on the day following the Hyde Park 
burial, son Jimmy belatedly found in a safe, the directions 
left by the President for the arrangements of his funeral. 
She says that Roosevelt had directed that his body lie in 
state in Washington, in the Capitol. But, she relates, by 
some curious chance, all other of his instructions had 
been followed exactly. 



This story bears all the earmarks of some of her other 
fiction. For, as above said, it is utterly inconceivable
that the Roosevelts, with their love of self-aggrandizement 
and their exhibitionist delight in public homage, would 
have missed the chance for a display of public adulation. 
One is forced to the conclusion that there must have been 
a very compelling reason for not opening the coffin, to 
permit the body to lie in state. 



In death, as in life, Roosevelt and his fellow conspirators
disdained, defied and violated the law. His burial 
without an autopsy was a flagrant violation, a criminal 
act. Under the law, persons responsible for such illicit 
burials are subject to criminal prosecution. For they might 
well prove to be accessories to murder. 
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Certified Copy of Roosevelt's Death Certificate 
"Contributory Causes (to which this death should be charged) 
Arterio Sclerosis" belies statement made by George Creel in
the book he ghost-wrote for Roosevelt's personal physician. Vice 
Admiral Mclntire. 






The nation is entitled to every precaution to make sure 
that the control of its destinies is not usurped by
conspirators acting through the agency of an incompetent, or 
a bogus "President". Every G.I. is subjected to many
procedures such as finger-printing, photographing,
intelligence tests and so forth, to make certain of his
identity and competence. It can not be said that a random G.I. 
is more important in the conduct of national affairs than 
the President is supposed to be. Obviously it is far more 
important for the nation that the identity and the
competence of the President be established repeatedly and
with absolute certainty—both in life and in death. 



Too often in our past history, have the reins of our 
Government been taken over by conspirators of the
Illuminist-Communist, Rockefeller-Soviet breed, during
periods of incompetence of the President. Such incident
occurred when President Grover Cleveland was carried off 
to sea for an operation for removal of a cancerous palate. 
Another far more disastrous incident was the control of 
the nation by the conspirators during the period of physical
and mental incompetence of President Wilson, after 
his apoplectic stroke. This was facilitated by the
cooperation of his second wife whom he wedded under curious 
circumstances. And it happened once again throughout 
the regime of Franklin Delano Roosevelt. The rapid advance
of the conspiracy to destroy our Constitution, in 
the two latter cases illustrates the advantage to the
conspirators of adopting measures that insure the
incompetence of the President. 



It has been reported that the Russian Ambassador 
demanded, on official order of his government, that 
the casket be opened and that he be permitted to view 
the body; and that this request was denied. Both the 
request and its denial must be regarded as extraordinary.
The Russians might have suspected that the body 
was not that of Roosevelt, as rumors allege. This raises 
the question: "Why was it so important to the Russians to
make positive that Roosevelt was dead?" Could 
it be that he was a tool who had served his purpose 
and, with Churchill, would be an annoyance in the way 
of future plans? Could it be that Russia planned alleging
secret agreements that might be denied? Could 
it be merely the scientific interest of a toxicologist? Or 
had Stalin found Roosevelt's obsequiousness coupled 
with his betrayal of his own country a disgusting annoyance? 



There is more in this situation than meets the eye. 
Ample excuse is given for rumors, however wild. And 
credence will continue to be given them until the body 
is disinterred and autopsied. Failure to do so indicates 
a desire to hide something that may be of serious import to
the nation. 



It has become a standing practice in this country to 
protect the interests that control the country by denying
the nation and the world at large information on 
the state of the President's health. This was done in 
the case of Grover Cleveland's cancer of the palate, 
Wilson's apoplexy and F.D.R.'s various ailments. That 
would be of no moment if the President's powers and 
influence were checked and limited as provided in the 
Constitution. But those checks have been steadily and 
progressively eliminated and in many respects the
President's power has become more absolute than that of 
most kings. Illnesses which incapacitate the President 
enable the group that controls him to work their will 
on the nation in his name. That is a very strong temptation
that may actually endanger the President's life 
at times of disagreement with his bosses. In a way the 
secrecy regarding the ailments of the President illustrates
and stresses how much the office has assumed the aura 
of monarchy. 



Certainly the health of Commander in Chief of the 
Armed Forces, a title in which Roosevelt took great 
delight and a role which he had insisted on playing, is 
of more vital significance to the nation than the health 
of a mere private. But the private is compelled to undergo a
rigid physical and mental examination before 
he is accepted for service; and he must continue to be 
revealed fit by subsequent examinations so long as he 
remains in the service. Psychopathic conditions call for 
compulsory relief from duty and discharge. The nation can
not demand less of so important figure as its 
Commander in Chief. Nevertheless twice in a quarter 
of a century, the helm of the nation's ship of state has 
been held by paralytics who were mental and physical 
wrecks, Wilson and Roosevelt. 



The safety and security of the nation demands that 
never again shall its destiny be controlled by agencies 
operating through the impotent hands of a prostrated 
executive. The nation must demand as rigid medical 
examinations and as fit a physical and mental condition of
its chief executive as it demands of the lowest 
soldier. There is danger enough in the domination and 
control of a healthy executive by malign forces. With 
a diseased executive it is certain, and fraught with 
grave peril for the nation. It should never happen 
again. The nation should require by law periodic physical
examination of the President and honest reports 
to it of the findings. Disabling mental and physical 
conditions, by law should disqualify the incumbent 
and require his replacement. 



The deception perpetrated on the public in regard 
to Roosevelt's health is characteristic of that which
prevailed in all matters during his Administration. 
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On return from Teheran, lesion over left eyebrow showed
rapid growth, indicating conversion to melanosarcoma.  No
subsequent close-up was released.  The but enlargement of 
distant view in "State of Nation" broadcast picture of Jan 6, 1945
is shown right. The cancerous growth is missing. 
Distortion of left eyebrow appears to show scar of operation.
Note the butterfly-like pigmentation over nose and cheeks
like that of pellagra or the rosacea of chronic alcoholism.
Illness, pain, and emaciation are obvious.  Could be picture
of another, a stand-in.
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Birthday closeups of President F.D. Roosevelt. 1938, 1939, 1940,
showing growth of mole over left eyebrow.  







Presidents on the Roosevelt Family Tree 




 Washington     
 John Adams      
 Madison     
 J.Q. Adams     
 Van Buren     
 W.H. Harrison      
 Taylor      
 Johnson      
 Grant     
 H. Harrison      
 T. Roosevelt      
 Taft      






Franklin Delano Roosevelt displayed on his family 
tree twelve presidents of the United States, and one 
president of the Confederate States, with whom he 
claimed direct relationship. Only four of the presidents
were on the Roosevelt side of the family. Eight 
were derived from the influential and powerful Delano 
family. 



So closely has the secret been kept that it will undoubtedly
surprise the reader to know that the most 
closely related of these presidents to F.D.R. was not 
Theodore Roosevelt, but Ulysses S. Grant. 



On the Roosevelt side of the family, F.D.R. claims 
relationship to John Adams, the second president and 
John Quincy Adams, the sixth president, Martin Van 
Burcn, the eighth president, and Theodore Roosevelt, 
the twenty-sixth president. On the Delano side he 
claims relationship to George Washington, James Madison,
fourth president, William Henry Harrison, Zachary Taylor,
twelfth, Andrew Johnson, seventeenth. Ulysses S. Grant,
eighteenth, Benjamin Harrison, twenty-third. and William
Howard Taft, twenty-seventh. 
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GEORGE WASHINGTON



The relationship of President George Washington to 
the Roosevelt-Delano clan is remote and not nearly so 
direct as in the case of the other eleven. It traces 
through George W. Parke Custis, a nephew of Martha 
Washington by her first marriage to Daniel Custis, 
whose daughter married General Robert E. Lee, a fifth 
cousin of Sara Delano Roosevelt. 



An interesting sidelight on the remoteness of the 
relationship is cast by George Washington's rejection 
of an invitation to attend the funeral of the wife of 
the Revolutionary War veteran and New York State 
Senator, Isaac Roosevelt, which he noted in his diary 
on November 14th, 1789 in the following entry: 



"Received an invitation to attend the funeral of Mrs. 
Roosevelt (the wife of a Senator of the State) but declined
complying with it, first because the propriety 
of accepting an invitation of this sort appeared to be 
very questionable, and secondly (though to do so in 
this case might not be improper), because it might be 
difficult to discriminate in cases which might thereafter
happen." (F. D. Roosevelt's Colonial Ancestors, 
A. V. Page, 1933, p. 21). 



The remoteness of the relationship would serve in 
some measure to explain the complete absence in 
F.D.R. of the nobler and finer qualities of George 
Washington—his modesty, his humility, his sanity, his 
absolute honesty, his high and rigid principles, his refusal
to stoop to cheap expediency and politics, his 
passionate devotion to the cause of freedom, liberty 
and democracy, his loyalty to his country and refusal 
to sacrifice it to the interests of any foreign land, his 
spurning of nepotism and abhorrence of the cheapening of the
office of President through exploitation for 
social or business advancement. 



All of these characteristics definitely stamp George 
Washington as not a true member of the Roosevelt-Delano clan,
however insistently they claim him. Affirmation of
relationship to George Washington by 
Franklin Delano Roosevelt, who lent his support to 
the "Union Now" movement and had as a member of 
his cabinet, Harold Ickes an official of that movement, 
and who was instrumental in World Wars I and II in 
betraying the interests of his country to Great Rritain 
and reducing it to a more subject state than the lowliest of
the British colonies, is the height of irony. 



Washington nobly rejected the "indispensable", dictatorial
and regal status that Franklin Delano Roosevelt and other
members of the Dynasty have sought. 
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JOHN ADAMS 



John Adams was originally related to the Roosevelts 
through the marriage of Franklin Delano Roosevelt's 
grandfather, James to Mary Aspinwall, a descendant of 
Thomas Shepard and Ann Tyng who were ancestors 
also of the Adamses. The relationship was in the order of
seventh cousin. But as is so common in royal 
families, relationships in the Roosevelt-Delano clan 
are intensified and made closer by inbreeding and marriage 
of cousins. In the present generation for instance,
Frederick B. Adams married his distant cousin, 
Ellen W. Delano, thus enabling heir apparent, James 
Roosevelt to talk of "my cousin" Fred Adams when 
discussing sugar and insurance deals. 



John Adams was an Illuminist (as the Communists 
were named then) a follower of Adam Weishaupt who 
was the grandfather of present day Communism. Adams 
organized the first Illuminist cell in New England. 



John Adams and his second cousin Samuel Adam 
were moving spirits in the resistance of New England to 
British tyranny. Whether influenced by their interests 
in commerce and trade, especially with the West Indies and
other British colonies, and in smuggling, as 
some folks allege, or not, there can be no question as 
to their devotion to the cause of the Revolution. Both 
signed the Declaration of Independence. Popular Samuel Adams
is regarded as the author of most of the 
Bill of Rights and was instrumental in the adoption of 
the Constitution by the State of Massachusetts which 
he served as lieutenant governor and governor between 
1789 and 1797. 



John Adams, Harvard graduate, courageous and devoted to the
cause of the Revolution, but vain, argumentative, impetuous,
resentful, suspicious and in the 
main unpopular, member of the Continental Congress, 
ambassador to France and to England, got only thirty-four out
of sixty votes for vice president as contrasted 
with the unanimous vote for George Washington in 
1789. His snobbishness which impelled him to write 
that "the rich, the well-born and the able" members 
of Congress should be kept apart in a Senate did not 
add to his popularity. In the role of proud aristocrat 
he fiercely resented the failure of the electors to make 
him President instead of George Washington. With 
Alexander Hamilton, Adams became a recognized political
leader of the Federalist party. 



Adams secured his election to the Presidency by eliminating
Thomas Jefferson. Feeling against the Illuminists 
ran high in the colonies in 1796, because of their
involvement in the engineering of the French Revolution and 
its "Reign of Terror". Adams publicly betrayed his fellow 
Illuminist, Jefferson, who had organized the first Red cell 
in Virginia, in 1785, and exposed him in a letter which 
can be seen in the library on Rittenhouse Square in
Philadelphia. As a result, Jefferson was defeated in that
election. 



In 1796, Washington refused to accept another election to
serve a third term, because of the danger of 
setting the precedent of a president assuming office for 
life and becoming dictator or monarch. John Adams 
was chosen as President despite his unpopularity, because of
the miscarriage of a maneuver within his 
own party which sought to defeat him. During his 
term, he fell out with Hamilton and his own supporters. By
1800 he had gained such complete control 
of his party that despite their distrust of him he secured
the Federalist nomination for presidency. He 
was defeated by Thomas Jefferson. In a spirit characteristic
of the clan, John Adams was so enraged at 
his loss of office that he refused to attend Jefferson's 
inauguration and instead drove out of Washington 
during the inaugural. 



John Adams assumed the role of aristocrat among 
revolutionary rabble. His concept of the proper form 
of government for the country was domination by a 
self-perpetuating aristocracy that would rule, in reality, 
and further their interests while maintaining a pretense of
democracy and popular franchise. It is his 
idea that now prevails in the Dynasty. The Federalist 
political machinery which he was instrumental in creating,
served the purpose of securing his nomination to 
the presidency despite unpopularity in his own party. 
The control of the political machine which he built has 
been handed down more or less intact in his family 
and Dynasty throughout the subsequent generations. 
It has served to advance numerous members of the 
Dynasty to the top ranks of society, politics, industry 
and commerce. It is one of the mainstays of power of 
the Roosevelt-Delano clan. 



It was fortunate, indeed, for the country that the 
interests of John Adams coincided with those of the 
Revolutionists. For he had the courage of his convictions
and he furthered them with vigor and intensity 
that might have been telling if he had opposed the 
Revolutionary cause. But it was even more fortunate 
for the cause of democracy that there were such men 
as Thomas Jefferson and James Madison to offer 
some opposition to his plans for setting up a hereditary 
oligarchic rule. 



The opposition that confronted John Adams and his 
associates was not sufficient, however, to avert the
establishment of an oligarchy that is in large measure 
hereditary. But it was sufficiently powerful to force 
the oligarchs to maintain a pretense of democracy. 
This pretense of adoption of the most radical, they call 
it "liberal", cause of the times, has come to he adopted 
as a screen behind which each successive generation 
of the Roosevelt-Delano Dynasty push their drive for 
establishment of absolute rule by an oligarchy and the 
ultimate establishment of a monarchy. 



John Adams established the precedent of nepotism 
which has become one of the outstanding characteristics in
the political activity of the Roosevelt-Delano 
Dynasty, and one of their strongest traditions. This 
was evidenced in his appointment in 1782 of his fifteen year
old son, John Quincy Adams, as "additional 
secretary" to the American Commissioners in Paris 
negotiating the treaty of peace of the Revolutionary War. 
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JAMES MADISON



James Madison was one of many distinguished descendants of
William and Margaret Cheney. These included his third
cousin. President Zachary Taylor who 
was father-in-law of Jefferson Davis, his fourth cousin. 
General R. E. Lee, and his seventh cousin. President William
Howard Taft. Through the marriage of his great 
grand uncle, Hancock Lee to Sarah Allerton, Franklin 
Delano Roosevelt was a seventh cousin of James Madison.



Jamee Madison studied for the ministry at Princeton. In 1775
he became chairman of the Committee of 
Public Safety and in 1779 was elected delegate to the 
Continental Congress, where he urged that Congress be 
given the right to levy duties, despite the opposition 
of his constituency. When elected to Virginia's House 
of Delegates in 1784, as a Unitarian, he opposed the 
granting of special privileges to the Episcopalian 
Church and fought for religious freedom. The bill he 
introduced was labelled Jefferson's Bill and was passed 
the following year. He also opposed the further issue 
of paper money. His influence was largely responsible 
for the form which the Constitution took and for its 
adoption against the opposition of the Federalists and 
others. Though defeated in his senatorial candidacy, 
he was elected to Congress from his home district, defeating
James Monroe. 



In Congress, Madison introduced the first Tariff 
Bill as well as the amendments to the Constitution 
that were subsequently adopted as the Bill of Rights. 
He was an advocate of State rights and opposed Hamilton's
bill to establish a national bank. He sought to 
limit the President's prerogative and favored France 
and was antagonistic to England. In 1807, Madison was 
elected President, as candidate of the Republican ticket. 
Throughout his career, Madison had advocated commercial
reprisals rather than war against England to 
force her to recognize our neutral rights. But when 
seeking reelection, less than two weeks after his
nomination, he sent his war message to Congress on June 
1, 1812. His reelection followed, despite the suggestion 
of the Federalists that he be forced to resign because of 
their opposition to war. 
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JOHN QUINCY ADAMS 



John Quincy Adams, son of John Adams, furnished 
the country with the spectacle that has been uncommon in our
history outside of the Roosevelt-Delano 
Dynasty, father and son simultaneously serving in the 
top rungs of the national government and succeeding 
each other to the presidency. At the time that John 
Adams was vice-president, George Washington appointed his
son, John Quincy Adams, successively as 
Minister to Netherlands, at the age of twenty-seven, 
and then Minister to Portugal. Before he took the latter 
post he was transferred in 1797, by his father who had 
succeeded Washington as president, to the post of Minister
to Prussia. At the end of the presidential term, 
his father recalled him. 



In 1802 he was elected to the Massachusetts Senate 
and in 1803 he was appointed United States Senator 
in spite of the unpopularity of his father with a large 
group of his own party, the Federalists led by Alexander 
Hamilton. He resigned before his term of office ended 
and returned to his alma mater. Harvard, as professor 
of rhetoric and oratory. 



In the meantime, he had bolted the Federalist Party, 
joined the Republicans and participated in the caucus 
which nominated Madison for the presidency. President 
Madison appointed Adams, Minister to Russia in 1809 
and in 1815 to England, a position occupied by his father
before him and his son, Charles Frances Adams, after him. In
1817 he became Secretary of State on the 
Cabinet of President Monroe. 



In 1825, John Quincy Adams was chosen President 
by the House of Representatives as a result of a deal 
made by him with Henry Clay, for the purpose of defeating
Andrew Jackson. In return Adams made Henry 
Clay, Secretary of State. This raised the cry of bribery 
and corruption. So great was the unpopularity of Adams 
and the opposition to him in Congress that his presidency
proved a failure. He was renominated by his party in 1828.
Another scion of the Roosevelt-Delano Dynasty, General
William Henry Harrison, was his running mate as
vice-president, but Andrew Jackson was 
elected in 1828 to succeed him. 



In 1831 Adams was elected to Congress where during 
a period of seventeen years, his energies were largely
devoted to abolitionist activities. 
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MARTIN VAN BUREN 



Martin Van Buren was a descendant of Martin Van 
Buren and Marytyice Quackenbush as was also his fourth 
cousin, Isaac Roosevelt, great-great-grandfather of 
Franklin Delano Roosevelt. Van Buren's daughter-in-law,
Angelina Singleton, wife of Abraham Van Buren, 
who was his hostess in the White House, was a cousin 
of President Madison's wife, Dolly. 



Van Buren was a native of Kinderhook, New York, 
which lies not many miles north of the bailiwick of 
Franklin D. Roosevelt. A successful lawyer, though 
possessed of a very rudimentary education, he entered 
politics as an adherent of the George Clinton section 
of the Republican party. In politics his success was 
signalized by his leadership of a corrupt political machine
that was known as the "Albany Regency", and 
dominated New York State politics for decades. His 
nickname "Little Magician" attests to his skill at 
nepotism and the spoils system. The Roosevelt-Delano 
Dynasty has since then done its level best to live up 
to the tradition Van Buren set for it of dirty politics, 
corruption, nepotism and the spoils system. With rare 
exception, all these later presidents of the Dynasty 
have proved a credit to their vicious progenitor. 



Van Buren filled the offices of Surrogate of Columbia
County, New York State, State Senator, and 
Attorney General of New York State. In 1821 he was 
elected to the U.S. Senate, and in 1827 was reelected. 
At the same time he served as campaign manager for 
Andrew Jackson. In the following year he was elected 
Governor of New York State, and resigned from the 
Senate. But after less than two months as Governor of 
New York, in 1829, he was appointed Secretary of State 
by President Jackson. He courted Jackson's favor; and 
after an interlude in which he served as Minister to 
England, without confirmation of his appointment, 
displaced Calhoun as vice-presidential candidate of the 
first Democratic convention. 



In 1836 Van Buren, as successor of Andrew Jackson, 
defeated William Henry Harrison in the presidential 
election. On assuming office he appointed his son, 
Captain Abraham Van Buren, as his secretary. Abraham's wife,
who was a cousin of President Madison's 
wife Dolly, was mistress of the White House during 
Van Buren's term of office. 



Van Buren's presidency was marked by two successive
commercial panics in 1837 and 1839. He undertook to "follow
in the footsteps of his illustrious predecessor". Though
renominated in 1840 he was defeated by William Henry
Harrison. He sought the 
nomination of the Democrats in 1844 but failed to secure it. 



True to the tradition of the Roosevelt-Delano Dynasty, no
loyalty or allegiance to any party could be 
expected of him and no party could hold him. Traditionally,
they acknowledge no allegiance except to 
themselves. As in the case of John Quincy Adams, 
Van Buren bolted his party and, with Adam's son, 
Charles Francis Adams as vice-presidential candidate, 
ran for office as candidate of the "Free Soil" Party in 
1848, but did not win a single electoral vote. This
presents an interesting demonstration of the influence 
attained, the cooperation between its members and the 
control of political machinery developed, even at this 
early date, by the branches of the growing Roosevelt 
clan. Both candidates were members of the Dynasty, for 
the second time in a generation. 
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GENERAL WILLIAM HENRY HARRISON



The use of the Army as a springboard to the Presidency, and
of war heroes as political fronts is an old 
one and a favorite of the Roosevelt-Delano Dynasty. 
Setting aside their claim to George Washington, they 
have contributed five of them to the role of President. 
Some of these hero-presidents have been real and others
have been synthesized for political purposes,—created by
rapid promotion through nepotism of favored 
individuals to the rank of general-in-command towards 
the end of a war so that they can claim some credit 
for the successful course of the war. Such an instance 
is still fresh in the minds of the public in the promotion
of Franklin Delano Roosevelt's son, Elliott to the 
rank of General over the heads of thousands of professional
career soldiers and officers, for his distinguished 
services in commuting to and from the fronts and 
fighting the battles of the cabarets, nightclubs and 
bistros on the home front. This brings to mind the old 
saying: "Generals die in bed with their shoes off." 



William Henry Harrison was the first of the series 
of military presidents. He was a grandson of Benjamin 
Harrison, a Virginian, a signer of the Declaration of 
Independence, and a grandfather of Benjamin Harrison, the
23rd President. He was a third cousin of Henry Lee, father
of General Robert E. Lee, as well as 
second cousin of James Madison, fourth President, 
and General Zachary Taylor, twelfth President, and 
a fourth cousin of General Ulysses S. Grant, eighteenth 
President. 



Harrison graduated from Hampden-Sidney College 
and began the study of medicine in Philadelphia. After the
death of his father, against the advice of his 
guardian, Robert Morris, Harrison joined the Army in 
1791 as ensign, went West and fought the Indians. He 
was rapidly promoted to captaincy, but resigned from 
the Army in 1798. Shortly thereafter, he was appointed 
Secretary of the Northwest Territory. In 1799 he was 
chosen by the Jeffersonian Republicans as delegate 
to Congress from the Territory. In 1800 President 
Madison, his cousin, appointed him Governor of the 
Indian Territory and for a short time in 1804 he acted 
also as Governor of the Louisiana Territory, a tremendous
expanse of territory. 



In a skirmish against the Indians, preliminary to the 
War of 1812, Harrison engaged some Indians with a 
force of militia and regular troops,—the much touted 
victory of Tippecanoe. After the outbreak of the War 
of 1812, he was made brigadier-general and placed 
in charge of all troops in the Northwest Territory, 
and the following year he was promoted to the rank 
of major-general. At the end of the War, after Perry's 
naval victory, Harrison advanced on Detroit and captured the
territory previously lost to the British. In 
1814 he once again resigned from the Army. 



Between 1816 and 1828, Harrison was successively 
Congressman, Ohio State Senator, and U.S. Senator. 
In 1828 efforts to secure for him command of the Army and
Vice-Presidential election on the ticket of 
John Quincy Adams both failed. He was appointed 
first American Minister to Colombia, but was recalled 
within a year. Retiring, he took the lowly job of Clerk 
in the Court of Common Pleas, Hammond County. 



Defeated as Whig Candidate for the presidency by 
Van Buren, in 1836, Harrison in turn defeated Van 
Buren in 1840. He survived his inauguration by one 
month and was succeeded by Vice-President John Tyler. 
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GENERAL ZACHARY TAYLOR



Zachary Taylor was the second of the series of five 
Army presidents of the Roosevelt-Delano clan. He was 
a second cousin of President James Madison and of 
(President) General William Henry Harrison, father-in-law of
President Jefferson Davis, third cousin of 
Henry Lee, father of General Robert E. Lee, fourth 
cousin of (President) General Ulysses S. Grant, fifth 
cousin of President Franklin Delano Roosevelt, and 
sixth cousin of President William Howard Taft. 



Zachary Taylor, following in the footsteps of his father,
Revolutionary veteran. Col. Richard Taylor, was 
commissioned at 23, first lieutenant in the Army in 
1808. In the War of 1812 he participated in the 
defense of Fort Harrison. By 1814 he had attained the 
rank of major and resigned from the service. He was 
reinstated in the service in 1816, promoted to the rank 
of lieutenant-colonel in 1819. He took part in the 
Black Hawk War in 1832 and the Seminole War in 
1836. Following the battle of Okeechobee, be was breveted
brigadier-general. In 1846, he defeated the Mexicans in the
Rio Grande Valley and at Saltillo, and 
had become the popular hero of the Mexican War. 



Nominated presidential candidate of the Whig Party 
in 1848 at the height of his military success and popular
acclaim, his Louisiana plantation, slave ownership and his
family background swung the tide in an 
election in which the question of slavery played a
paramount role. His support of slavery was not as 
whole-hearted as he had led his supporters to anticipate.
Shortly after his entering office he had antagonized them
and was bitterly attacked by them. He 
was stricken by illness and died while in office, July 
9, 1850. Millard Fillmore succeeded him in office. 
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ANDREW JOHNSON



Andrew Johnson is named as one of the twelve presidents of
the United States who share common ancestry through the
Delanos with Franklin D. Rosevelt in 
an article entitled "MY COUSIN IN THE WHITE 
HOUSE" by Daniel W. Delano, published in "PIC" 
Magazine on July 8, 1941. No data is available that 
permits detailing the degree and manner of the
relationship. The ancestry probably traces back to 
Humphrey Johnson. In spirit Andrew Johnson is outstandingly
a true progenitor of Franklin Delano Roosevelt. 



Andrew Johnson began his political career in 1821 
as Alderman in Greenville, Tennessee of which he became
Mayor in 1830. After a period in legislature, he 
was elected to Congress in 1843. On his defeat for
reelection to Congress in 1853, he became Governor of 
Tennessee. In 1857 he was elected Senator on the 
Democratic ticket, in which capacity he remained until 1862
when he was appointed military governor of 
recaptured Tennessee. True to the tradition of the 
Dynasty, once in high office he flaunted his campaign
platforms and violated the interests of the 
electorate. In 1864, to hold the votes of the Democrats 
who favored the war, Johnson was nominated vice-president to
run with Lincoln on the ticket of the 
Union Party. 



Following Lincoln's assassination, Andrew Johnson 
became President. Johnson favored a lenient reconstruction
policy, opposed immediate, general negro suffrage, and
personally attempted to force an antagonistic 
Congress to rubber-stamp his bills. But in those days 
men were men—and even Congressmen were men. 
To assert their authority. Congress passed in 1867 the 
Tenure of Office Act over the President's veto. The act 
prohibited the President dismissing from office without the
consent of the Senate, any officer appointed by 
and with the consent of Senate; also an amendment to 
the Army Appropriations Bill subordinating the President to
the Senate and the Chief of Staff of the Army 
in military matters. This wholesome move to restrict 
the monarchic power of the President was defiantly 
violated by President Johnson by his removing from 
office, Secretary of War, Edwin M. Stanton and replacing him
ad interim first with Grant and then with 
Lorenzo Thomas. 



Congress promptly brought impeachment proceedings 
against President Johnson, in February 1868. The 
charge finally voted on, rings familiar to us these 
days, viz; "eleventh, that Johnson had publicly stated 
that the 39th Congress was not an authorized Congress 
and that its legislation was not binding upon him." 
Unfortunately the vote was 35 to 19, lacking but one 
of the two-thirds majority required for impeachment. 



Johnson's victory considerably enhanced the monarchic power
of the President. It prepared the way 
for the abuses of executive power that signalized the 
regime of later members of the Dynasty. The deliberate
effort of Franklin Delano Roosevelt and the New 
Deal to eliminate the Constitutional check on the 
monarchic power of the President by Congress through 
the device of discrediting it with the nation by a constant
stream of vicious propaganda and through various devices
robbing it of its power and initiative and 
converting it into an impotent and pathetic rubberstamp,
culminate this fight for expansion of presidential powers
initiated by Johnson. 


 
There should be noted at this point, the odd
"coincidence" that of the three Presidents of the United 
States who have been assassinated, two have been succeeded in
office by members of the Roosevelt-Delano 
Dynasty—Andrew Johnson and Theodore Roosevelt. 
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GENERAL ULYSSES S. GRANT



General Ulysses S. Grant was the closest relative of 
Franklin Delano Roosevelt among the Presidents of the 
United States. He was one degree closer than Theodore
Roosevelt, who was a fifth cousin. Grant's great 
grandmother was Susana Delano, and Franklin D. 
Roosevelt's great great grandfather was her brother 
Thomas Delano. 



Hiram S. Grant received an appointment to West 
Point under the name Ulysses S. Grant. In 1845, two 
years after his graduation, his regiment joined the 
forces of General Taylor in Mexico, where he fought 
in a number of engagements in the war. He emerged 
from the war, a captain. After marriage to Julia T. 
Dent, in 1848, he was stationed in California and 
Oregon. 



In 1854, he resigned his commission amid charges 
of excessive drinking. During the following six years 
he lived in St. Louis making a poor living at farming 
and dealing in real-estate. In 1860 he became a clerk 
in the leather store of his father at Galena, Illinois. 



Grant volunteered at the outbreak of the Civil War 
and was commissioned Colonel of the 21st Illinois Regiment
by Governor Yates; and then was commissioned 
brigadier-general. Shortly thereafter he fell into 
disgrace, suffered serious military reverses, and was relieved
of his command. Subsequently he was reinstated but sustained
further reverses. 



Despite Grant's mistakes and reverses, Lincoln and 
Stanton supported him. This political support served 
to keep him in his command. To outcries against Grant's 
drunkeness, Lincoln replied to the deputations that if 
they would find out what sort of liquor Grant drank, he 
would send some kegs of it to the other generals. 



The fall of Vicksburg on July 4, 1863, marked the turning
point in Grant's career. At Chattanooga he was placed 
in command of four armies that on November 25, 1863, 
administered a crushing blow to the Confederates. Grant 
then was made Commander-in-Chief of the Union forces 
with the rank of Lieutenant-General. In the months that 
followed, the war was characterized by a ruthless sacrifice 
of Union forces in a drive on Lee's army in Virginia. Six 
thousand men, for instance, fell in a useless assault lasting 
only one hour, at Cold Harbor; and in two months the 
Union Armies before Richmond and Petersburg lost 
seventy-two thousand men. These sacrifices were eventually
rewarded with success. 



To the people at large Grant appeared as a savior of the 
Union. His dispute with President Johnson over his
appointment by Johnson in defiance of Congress as Secretary
of War to succeed Stanton, contributed in some 
measure to his nomination as presidential candidate on 
the Republican ticket. He was elected against a weak 
Democratic candidate set up by the New York party machine,
ex-Governor Seymour. 



Grant during his presidency dropped to lower depths 
than ever Martin Van Buren had dreamed of, the level 
of crookedness, corruption and nepotism traditional in the 
Roosevelt-Delano dynasty. Cabinet positions were put on 
the auction block. For instance, Alexander T. Steward, 
drygoods merchant of New York City was repaid for 
many costly gifts which he presented to Mrs. Grant by 
the post of Secretary of the Treasury. 



Numerous members of Grant's immediate family were 
placed on the public payroll, including the following: 




	
Frederick Dent, Grant's brother-in-law, aid to the Vice-President. 


	
A second brother-in-law, (brother of Frederick Dent) United States Customs. San Francisco. 


	
A third brother-in-law. Government Indian trader. New Mexico. 


	
A second cousin. Receiver of Public Moneys, Oregon. 


	
James F. Casey, Collector of Port, New Orleans and distributor of Federal patronage. 


	
Peter Casey, Postmaster, Vicksburg, Mississippi. 


	
Jesse Root Grant, Postmaster, Covington, Kentucky. 


	
Michael J. Cramer, his brother-in-law. Minister 
to Denmark. Cramer who was a German, antagonized 
the Danes by telling them how inferior they were to the Germans. 


	
Columbus Delano, Secretary of the Interior. 






All types of shady and dishonest ventures were sponsored or
aided by associates of Grant. The Fisk-Gould 
Gold Conspiracy manipulated the price of gold from 
132 to 155 and then smashed it down to 135 and precipitated
a financial panic known as Black Friday. Associated in this
enterprise was Grant's brother-in-law 
A. R. Corbin. And Grant himself played an important 
part in directing the policy of the Treasury Department to
make this manipulation possible. 



Secretary of the Treasury, William A. Richardson, 
appointed a political henchman of Grant's, John D. 
Sanborn, special agent for collection of delinquent 
taxes. Sanborn received, as commission, half of the 
taxes collected. He soon expanded his activities to take 
a cut of half of all moneys pouring into the United 
States Treasury until a Congressional Committee stumbled
onto this looting of the Treasury. The Committee 
urged dismissal of Secretary Richardson. Grant permitted him
to resign. He was appointed immediately 
Justice of the Court of Claims. 



Benjamin N. Bristow, who succeeded as Secretary 
of the Treasury uncovered evasion of Excise Tax on a 
huge scale by the Whisky Ring that involved bribery 
of Grant's principal secretary. General Orville E. Babcock.
The money collected by Babcock had been used 
to finance Grant's campaign for reelection in 1872. 
Indicted with the rest of the conspirators, Babcock 
was acquitted as a result of voluntary intercession and 
character testimony by President Grant. Secretary Britow who
had so courageously performed his duty in 
protecting the Treasury, was "cold shouldered" out of 
office by Grant. 



Grant had the same contempt of the Constitution as 
characterized most of the Presidents of the Dynasty. 
He assumed the royal prerogative of making a treaty 
to annex San Domingo, disregarding the Senate's role 
prescribed in the Constitution in making treaties. The 
treaty was rejected by a Senate that had not yet degenerated
to the rubber stamp state. 



These and numerous other exposed cases of nepotism, bribery
and corruption served to stamp Grant's 
two terms in office as the most shameful and dishonest 
in our history to that date. They have been surpassed, 
however, by the corruption of Franklin Delano 
Roosevelt's regime that was so closely patterned after Grant's 
in that respect. 



True to the tradition of the Roosevelt-Delano Dynasty, Grant
held in contempt the democratic precept 
laid down by George Washington who refused to serve 
a third term, in the interest of preserving democracy. 
In 1880 Grant's profligacy and incompetence left him 
in poor financial condition. He widely advertised 
among his friends that he would either have to obtain 
lucrative employment or get a third term as President. 
Whereupon he set out to secure the nomination of 
the Republican Party. Nomination was refused him 
and given to Garfield, who did not live to enjoy his 
office long. He was succeeded by Chester A. Arthur, 
leader in the fight at the Republican National Convention to
reelect Grant for a third term. 



Grant's financial needs were provided for by a two 
hundred and fifty thousand dollar fund raised by
subscription by the New York Times, just as Franklin 
Delano Roosevelt's needs were taken care of by a
subscription fund of eight hundred thousand dollars raised
from the financial community to bribe him to run 
for office. Jay Gould repaid the service Grant and his 
family had rendered him in the Gold Conspiracy by 
contributing twenty-five thousand dollars to the fund. 
It was gratefully accepted by Grant. 



Not content with the provision thus made for him. 
Grant barged into Wall Street and engaged through 
the firm of Grant and Ward in a colossal swindle as 
stupid as Franklin Delano Roosevelt's financial flotations. 



Senator Charles Sumner, in a speech before Senate, 
on May 31, 1872, aptly summed up the unprincipled 
incompetence of Grant. Several of his statements emphasize
the pattern of conduct in public office that 
has come to be expected of the Roosevelt-Delano Dynasty such as: 




	The Strange Death of FDR
	




The Rockefeller Empire 
 Communism, 
War, and Other 'Philanthropies' 




The Rockefeller Empire is an outgrowth of the Standard Oil
Company. Rockefeller had built up with tremendous skill the
powerful oil monopoly. By 1915, the 
Company produced almost one third of the oil yield of 
the United States. Complete monopoly of the oil business 
in the United States and throughout the world loomed as 
a conceivable goal and became the objective. 



The dominant position in oil had been gained by gangsterism,
that would make Al Capone blush. Special railroad rates and
rebates extracted from railroads also 
played an important role in wiping out competition. In 
the process there had been used the unsavory methods, 
ranging from theft to slaughter, which were the custom 
of the time in business. Those methods did not differ
materially from those of the respected Morgans, Vanderbilts, 
Goulds and a host of others of that time. Rockefeller's 
chief offense was his inordinate success and his taciturnity 
and independence. 



Rivals who were less successful in the application of the 
identical methods used by the Standard Oil Company, 
organized the "liberals" and the "socially minded," the 
social service cliques of that era, together with the
demagogues, politicians, and crooked newspapers, for another 
type of battle on their successful competitor—commercial 
blackmail. 



As resentment against the Oil Trust grew, the Rockefeller
Standard Oil interests were held up by the politicians
through the device of "strike bills", and badgered by
investigations and court actions. The muckrakers, church
organizations and social service groups 
exposed the ugly situation and further fanned public 
resentment. President Theodore Roosevelt, who had 
succeeded Rockefeller's hand-picked ally, President 
McKinley, played to the gallery by attacking the Standard
Oil Company while indirectly he demanded increased Standard
Oil contributions to his campaign funds. 



The situation reached its climax in 1907 with the 
decree handed down by Judge Kenesaw Landis against 
the Standard Oil Company imposing a fine of twenty-nine
million dollars. Two weeks later the panic of 1907 
was precipitated. In 1911 the dissolution of the Standard
Oil Company was ordered by the Supreme Court. 



Rockefeller fiercely resented what he regarded as 
government interference in his private business. He regarded
its conduct as his own affair. It could hardly 
be expected that he would not fight back. He responded as
keenly and as incisively to the virulent and well 
organized slander and persecution as he had to the 
other problems that had confronted him in his business. Two
modes of approach to such a problem were 
habitual; first was to compromise with a powerful enemy and
to join forces with him; the second was to 
engineer in the meantime to master and destroy him. 



The enemies who confronted Rockefeller and who 
were responsible for the situation were three—the Wall 
Street crowd whom he had bested, the welfare and 
"liberal" crowd, and the government. His score with 
Wall Street he paid rapidly. Within two weeks after 
the handing down of the decree, there broke loose 
the 1907 panic. 



The effectiveness with which the welfare and "liberal" crowd
had been used in the campaign against 
him and his Company impressed Rockefeller. They 
could be made to fit into the pattern of "philanthropy".
They were cheaply bought off; and he took them 
over lock, stock and barrel. Among these "welfare" 
agencies were the radical church element, the Federation of Churches. 



The social service and "uplift" organizations and 
their allies were taken in hand and later organized 
through the New York Tuberculosis and Health Association,
under the directorship of Harry L. Hopkins, 
into a nation-wide Social Service Trust. The control of 
social service and church organizations served a dual 
purpose. It muzzled the sanctimonious and self-righteous
elements and covered all activities thus engaged 
in with a cloak of respectability. But what was even 
more important, they tapped the pocketbook of the 
gullible to the tune of four billion dollars a year in 
normal times. That money could be put to many important
uses. 



Not one cent, for instance, of the money collected by 
the New York Tuberculosis and Health Association 
from the sale of Christmas seals under the direction of Harry L.
Hopkins ever went to a person with tuberculosis 
or an institution for his care. It was spent in building 
up the Social Service Trust, in political activities, in 
building up a press censorship and for the personal use 
of its bosses especially Hopkins. (Your Life Is Their 
Toy, Chedney Press 1940, pp. 22-24). Harry Hopkins 
became one of the principal Rockefeller almoners, 
Frances Perkins also ranked high. 



The Rockefeller "philanthropies" were conceived for 
the dual purpose of taking the curse off the Rockefeller
name and enabling the Rockefeller-Standard Oil 
interests to carry on without interference from a hostile
public or the government. One could hardly expect a man of
Rockefeller's efficiency and financial 
ability to fail to expect to profit handsomely from the 
disarming advantages of a "philanthropic" front. That 
Rockefeller realized the profitable business possibilities
of a "philanthropic" set-up is indicated by an interesting
and revelatory story told of the inception of 
the plan to buy over public opinion and confound his 
detractors. It was conceived by Rev. Frederick Taylor 
Gates who had won John's D.'s respect by his sharpness 
clothed with piety. Rockefeller had profited handsomely from
deals engineered by Gates through religious activities as an
executive officer of the American Baptist 
Education Society. Especially appreciated was his aid 
in gaining control for a pittance of the Mesabi Mines, 
one of the richest iron deposits in the country. It netted
many millions of dollars when later incorporated into the U.
S. Steel Corporation. In John D. A Portrait 
in Oil John K. Winkler quotes Rockefeller Sr. as follows: 



"'Fred Gates was a wonderful business man,' says 
John D. with satisfaction. 'His work for the American 
Baptist Education Society required him to travel
extensively. Once, as he was going south, I asked him to
look into an iron mill in which I had an interest. His report 
was a model of clarity! 



"'Then I asked him to make some investigation of 
other property in the west. I had been told this particular
company was rolling in wealth. Mr. Gates' report 
showed that I had been deceived. 



"'Now I realize that I had met a commercial genius. 
I persuaded Mr. Gates to become a man of business.'" 



Mayhap one can judge with reasonable correctness 
that if religion helped net Reverend Frederick T. Gates 
inordinately large profits in his dealings with his fellow
men, the manipulation of millions certainly would 
not fail to do so. The "philanthropies" established by 
this "wonderful business man" could be expected to be 
highly profitable, directly or indirectly. They have 
been more profitable than investments of identical 
sums in even the Standard Oil Company. 



The objective that lay at the back of Gate's and 
Rockefeller's minds at the inception of these
"philanthropies" were clearly stated by Gates in the first
publication of the Central Education Board, the "Occasional
Letter No. 1", as follows: 



"In our dreams we have limitless resources and the 
people yield themselves with perfect docility to our 
molding hands. The present educational conventions 
fade from our minds, and unhampered by tradition, 
we work our own good will upon a grateful and responsive
rural folk. We shall not try to make these people 
or any of their children into philosophers or men of 
learning, or of science. We have not to raise up from 
among them authors, editors, poets or men of letters. 
We shall not search for embryo great artists, painters, 
musicians, nor lawyers, doctors, preachers, politicians, 
statesmen of whom we have ample supply. The task 
we set before ourselves is very simple as well as a very 
beautiful one, to train these people as we find them to 
a perfectly ideal life just where they are. So we will 
organize our children into a little community and teach 
them to do in a perfect way the things their fathers 
and mothers are doing in an imperfect way, in the 
homes, in the shop and on the farm." 



It is noteworthy that the ultimate object of the 
"educational philanthropy" is the opposite of its current
"window-dressing" activities. 



The degree in which their objective has been attained is
illustrated by the unanimity of views between 
all political parties aired by Assistant Attorney General 
Thurman Arnold which already has been mentioned. 
This unanimity is traceable to the influence of the 
Rockefeller interests on the educational institutions of 
the country and to the power which their interests exercise
in the councils of all major political parties. 



The objective was fundamentally propaganda of the 
type that is now regarded as essential for the establishment
of a dictatorship or a totalitarian regime, such as 
was the goal envisioned by Bismarck a generation prior. 
In some respects the goal sought was tantamount to the 
restoration of the caste system that characterizes feudalism
and medievalism. 



The school of thought which this objective represents found
its fullest expression in Hoffman Nickerson's masterpiece
"The American Rich," which anticipated Hitler's regime and
advocated a similar form of 
government for the United States. He suggested the 
abolition of universal franchise, restriction of the vote 
to wealthy property owners, elimination of education 
because of the spirit of inquiry which it creates so that 
there may be restored the medieval mind and its
submissiveness, and ends with a plea for establishment of 
a de facto monarchy in the U.S. A. 



Gates shrewdly realized the advantages of poisoning 
and perverting public opinion at its fountainhead, the 
schools, colleges and universities. Gates took full
advantage of the cloak of piety and the support offered 
by his position in the Baptist Church in accomplishing his
purpose. He had Rockefeller endow the University of Chicago,
as the first step in gaining control of education. 



In 1901, Rockefeller established and endowed the 
Rockefeller Institute for Medical Research. The Rockefeller
interest in medicine is explainable on a number 
of grounds. First is the realization that there is no more 
vital interest for mankind than health; and those who 
offer to promote health are naturally regarded as
benefactors. Folks are generally willing to spend all they 
have to recover their health. This makes the business 
aspects of medicine very profitable. Rockefeller was 
well aware of this because his father "Doc" William 
Rockefeller had earned his livelihood as a quack doctor
selling petroleum oil as a fake patent medicine 
"cure" for cancer. The Rockefeller interest in oil had 
in fact arisen out of their interest in patent medicine. 



A few benefits have accrued to mankind from the activities
of the Rockefeller endowed medical research 
organizations. These have been surprisingly few in 
comparison with the large sums expended. Most of 
them that have had any real value have been sanitation 
projects that bore some relation to commercial or industrial
developments. It is notable that in era of vast 
strides in the chemistry of medicine, no basic discoveries
and few significant ones have emanated from the 
Rockefeller group. Some outside investigators have been 
subsidized, however, after they made significant discoveries. 



A large proportion of the discoveries announced, on 
the other hand, have proved unfounded. Among them 
are the following: 



	
The discovery of the organism that causes infantile paralysis. 


	
The discovery of the organism that cause smallpox. 


	
The discovery of the organism causing mumps. 


	
The discovery of the organism causing measles. 


	
The discovery of a curative serum of pneumonia. 


	
The discovery of a preventive vaccine and curative 
serum for yellow fever, and numerous others. 




 
Tremendous medico-political pressure has been 
brought to bear to protect the reputations of these 
supposed discoverers and of the Institute. 



The vast funds of the Rockefeller endowed Institutions have
been utilized for the purpose of gaming control of
educational institutions, hospitals and other 
medical and research facilities. It has created vested 
interests and rackets in medical research. Institutional and
personal jealousies, intensified by tremendous 
power acquired by small cliques with the funds of the 
Foundation, have resulted in the suppression of needed 
researches by really capable, independent workers. It 
has barred many of them from the opportunity to engage in
research. It has served to enable its employees 
to reestablish medieval dogmatism in medicine in order 
to protect their reputations and interests. Their efforts 
to protect their jobs have served to retard medical advance
and to injure the interests of the public. 



The Rockefeller Institute was founded for the avowed purpose
of directing medical practise in channels 
desired for various reasons by Gates and Rockefeller. 
It was designed for the purpose of control of 
medicine. Gates was convinced that the medical tradition 
built up through the ages was unsound and must be 
replaced by an arrogant "Medical Science" which insists that
what it does not know is untrue. This ignorant dogmatism
coupled with research politics has resulted in the Institute
retarding the advance of medical 
knowledge, prostituting it to commercial interests, and 
has cost many lives. 



Discoveries such as the improvement of the method 
of preparation of tryparsamide have been patented by 
the Institute and licensed to manufacturers. Whether 
the anti-pneumococcus serum processes, many of which 
were developed in the Institute, are patented or licensed
has not been made public. But at least one of 
the firms which exploits the serum has been identified 
in the public mind with the Rockefeller interests. 



The Institute denies that it receives any royalties on 
its patents. It does not state whether it, or its sponsor, 
owns any stocks in the companies involved. It also refuses
to make public its stock holdings. This refusal is 
surprising in view of the full and detailed publication 
made by the Foundation of all its holdings. 



The Rockefellers have large interests in the chemical 
and pharmaceutical industries. They also have very 
large holdings in the German Dye Trust, I. G.
Farben industrie, on the directorate of which the Standard 
Oil of New Jersey was represented by its president, 
the late Walter Teagle. The Chase National Bank, with 
which the Rockefellers are closely identified, has floated
Dye Trust securities on the American market; and 
its attorneys, Milbank, Tweed, Hope and Webb, headed by A.
G. Milbank, Chairman of the Board of the 
Borden Company and the Milbank Memorial Fund, 
have acted for these interests. 



It is reasonable to suppose that an institution operated
with the efficiency and in the spirit of the Rockefeller
"philanthropies" would not be so unbusinesslike as to cast
to the winds the large profits which have 
devolved from some of the Institute's products. Gates 
undoubtedly was a "business genius" of the rarest foresight
and perspicacity. 



There is at hand evidence that profits rather than 
charity or humanitarianism were the prime objectives 
of the Rockefeller medical "philanthropies." An instance of
commercial advantage of "research" endowment 
leading to the disregard of human values is the 
million dollar endowed "research" on ethyl gas and the 
danger of lead-poisoning that it inflicts on the nation. 
The U.S. Public Health Service and the U.S. Government had
barred the use of ethyl-lead gasoline after a 
series of poisonings and deaths of workers who made 
the mixture. 



Then a munificently endowed research led the Government and
the U.S. Public Health Service to withdraw 
its prohibition of this type of gasoline. As a result, the 
entire nation is now exposed to the danger of chronic 
lead poisoning by lead-filled, automobile-exhaust gases. 
In due time the mental and physical health of the 
people is certain to suffer. 



Another instance is the tryparsamide patent licensed 
to Merck and Company by the Rockefeller Institute, 
Tryparsamide is a dangerous drug that not infrequently
causes complete and permanent blindness. Nevertheless the
anti-venereal disease campaign that has 
been conducted by the government under Rockefeller 
controlled Surgeon General of the United States Public 
Health Service, Dr. Thomas Parran, has compelled the 
use of this blinding remedy in the treatment of often 
benign and quiescent cases of syphilis. Many persons 
have been totally and completely blinded by the use 
of this Rockefeller Institute licensed patent drug. 



Enormous profits are being made in drugs and chemicals that
exceed even those made from oil. In more recent years oil
and gas are being used to supply the raw 
materials for drugs. The Rockefeller interests are known 
to have extensive holdings in the drug industries. They 
control among others American Home Products, Sterling
Products, Winthrop Chemical Company, American 
Cyanamide and its subsidiary Lederle Laboratories, 
and numerous other highly profitable enterprises in 
the drug field. It is probably safe to say that the 
Rockefeller profits from drugs and chemicals match 
their profits from oil. 



The Rockefeller interests in the medical and allied 
industries has been reinforced by the control which 
they have acquired over medical education through 
the agency of the Institute and their other
"philanthropies". 



In the field of medical education, they met with 
early and easy success. They joined forces with the 
American Medical Association and its rackets. Medical 
education is one of the more lucrative medical commercial
rackets which the A. M. A. bosses sought to 
monopolize by destroying their competitors. Alone 
they could not manage to put the competing schools 
out of business. But with the aid of the Rockefeller 
power they forced through legislation in all parts of 
the country that drove their rivals out of business, after 
public opinion had been prepared by a specially designed
report on medical education by Abraham Flexner. 



More than half of the medical schools in the country 
were driven out of existence; and the Rockefeller interests
gained control over medical education and over 
medical business that eventually enhanced materially 
the possibilities of profits inherent in the
"philanthropies". By some odd quirk the quest for profits in
medicine has led them to support the cause of
"socialization" of medicine. They do not seem to have
stopped to consider that the "socialization" of medicine will 
point the way to the "socialization" of industry and of 
"philanthropies" as well. They have saddled on the medical
school Bismarxian or Communist propagandists 
and agitators, in the case of Johns Hopkins University 
Medical School in the guise of "professor of the history 
of medicine." 



Professor Henry Sigerist, their protege whom they 
have planted in that school has signed, with Earl Browder
and Robert Minor, all the important manifestoes 
issued by the Communist Party, including that approving of
the alliance of Russia with Hitler. He is 
a ranking agitator for "Socialized Medicine", a key 
Communist program. 



The General Education Board which is by far the 
most important of the Rockefeller propaganda agencies was
founded in 1903, by John D. Rockefeller Jr. 
and a group that included as collaborator, George Foster
Peabody. This is the same George Foster Peabody 
who later turned over Georgia Warm Springs to Franklin
Delano Roosevelt in the maneuvers that prepared 
the way for his serving the Rockefeller interests as 
President of the United States of America. Initiated as 
a Baptist Church endeavor to promote education 
among the Negroes, the General Education Board was 
granted a charter by Congress through a bill introduced 
by Rockefeller's agent in the Senate, Senator 
Nelson W. Aldrich. The charter was virtually unlimited in
its scope in the field of any activity that might 
be construed as remotely resembling education. 



The General Education Board was the chief agency 
employed in the drive for the destruction of democracy and
the establishment of a dictatorship in the 
United States. For this purpose it fosters, as did Bismarck,
Communism as the shortest route to dictatorship in a
Democracy, and has converted the U.S. educational system
into Communist propaganda agencies. 



The progress made by the Board was disclosed in an 
article in the New York Globe on March 28, 1919, by 
Dr. W. S. Spillman, formerly Federal Farm Management Chief,
as follows: 



". . . I was approached by an agent of Mr. Rockefeller with
the statement that his object in establishing the General
Education Board was to gain control 
of the educational institutions of the country so that 
all men employed in them might be 'right.' I was then 
informed that the Board has been successful with 
smaller institutions but that the larger institutions had 
refused to accept the Rockefeller money with strings 
tied to it. My informant said that Rockefeller was going to
add $100,000,000 to the Foundation for the express purpose
of forcing his money on the big institutions." 



The Board eventually succeeded in gaining control 
of almost every school, college and university in the 
country. They found it hard to resist the lure of the 
jingle of ready cash. They were forced to turn over 
to the Board power of dictation of their personnel and 
curriculum. Senator Kenyon, of Iowa, reported this to 
the U.S. Senate in January 1917. 



The Board has saddled on our educational system, 
in the guise of teachers and professors of the "social 
sciences," the high priests of class war and revolution, 
professional agitators and the chanters of the abacadabra of
the "social philosophies" a la Bismarck and 
Marx. It has made them the haven of Socialists, Communists,
distributors of wealth and other crack-pot New 
Dealers. It has helped make the foundation source of 
prostituted "professors" and "authorities" for the agents 
provocateurs (also known as "leaders") of labor. These 
professorial propagandists make most of their incomes 
as front-men, partners, catspaws and agents of labor 
union racketeers and as "neutral arbitrators" of labor 
disputes under the Wagner Act. To-day there are few 
professors in the larger American Colleges who are not 
thoroughly Marxist or openly Communist. Particularly 
the professors of social sciences, who are so often
appointed by Presidents and other public officials to 
commissions as representatives of the public, can be
depended upon to support the Communist or radical labor
elements. The Commissions thus appointed under 
the New Deal, are "loaded" and biased. They can 
be depended upon to betray the public. They are on 
the payroll of the unions. 



In this respect, the General Education Board has 
been most damaging and dangerous. It has used its 
power over the schools, colleges and universities 
throughout the country to place on their teaching staffs 
hosts of advocates of radicalisms and outright
propagandists of alien doctrines. It has placed its
resources at the disposal of enemies of our country and its
government. 



Senator Chamberlain of Oregon, in 1917 foresaw and 
sounded a warning of this danger in the U.S. Senate. 
He stated: 



"The Carnegie-Rockefeller influence is bad. In two 
generations they can change the minds of the people 
to make them conform to the cult of Rockefeller or to 
the cult of Carnegie, rather than to the fundamental 
principles of American democracy." 



His prophecy is already fulfilled. 



The direct dividends derived from the activities of 
the General Education Board were many, including: 



	
Favorable publicity for the founders and advertising 
of their interests that was worth millions. 


	
The power to influence public opinion and the policies of
the Government by propaganda distributed 
through the schools, colleges and universities 


	
Control of researches and discoveries, and their application
and profits. 


	
The power of voting the stock holdings of the institutions
which they control and of dictating the expenditure of their funds. 


	
The power of appointment of personnel of the institutions
which can be converted to the uses of nepotism and favoritism. 




 
Directly following the Supreme Court decision in 
1911, ordering the dissolution of the Standard Oil Company,
Rockefeller sought of Congress a charter for the 
Rockefeller Foundation "to promote the well-being of 
mankind". Congress twice refused a charter to hold 
one hundred million dollars, on the grounds that it was 
a device for evasion of payment of taxes, that it was 
primarily intended for propaganda for seduction of 
public opinion and influencing politics, and that it 
would be a menace to the nation. The Foundation succeeded in
securing from New York State in 1913 a charter to hold five
hundred million dollars. 



The bill chartering the Rockefeller Foundation was 
introduced into New York State Legislature by a man 
who has discreetly served the Rockefeller interests 
though he has never permitted himself to be too closely
identified with them in the public eye—Senator 
Robert F. Wagner. 



The Foundation has supplemented the activities of 
the Institute and the General Education Board and has 
extended them into as many quarters of the world as 
go the ramifications of the Standard Oil Company
subsidiaries and successors. It combines the functions of a 
tax-exempt business relations agency and super-diplomatic
corps. Through its well-advertised and publicized 
subsidies it has gained entry into many governmental 
circles from which the interests which it represents 
would be excluded. 



Through a Director of its International Health Division. Dr.
Thomas Parran, Surgeon General of the U.S. 
Public Health Service, for instance, the Foundation is 
directly represented in a division of our government 
that is important for its sponsors. He also interlocks 
the directorship of the Milbank Memorial Fund and a 
host of other agencies. Significant names on the directorate
of the Foundation are: Arthur Hays Sulzberger, 
the publisher of the New York Times, John Foster 
Dulles and John J. McCloy. 



The creation of the Foundation followed closely on 
John D. Rockefeller Jr.'s shift in religious attitude toward
the "new" or "liberal" theology which pragmatically decried
fundamentalism and sectarianism in 
Protestantism. It is interesting to note that the
fundamentalist ministers such as John Roach Stratton accused
him of seeking to standardize education and religion through
German rationalization. 



The Foundation supplanted the activities which had 
formerly occupied Baptist missions. It is the diplomatic
corps that prepares the way for commercial conquests. By
elimination of inter-denominational antagonisms attached to
missionary work it no doubt proved 
more efficient. In China the medical missions prepared 
the way for the conquest by Standard Oil of the kerosene and
oil market. They also lent impetus to the creation of modern
China. The Bible-selling oil merchant, 
Soong, was the father of the commercial dynasty which 
now leads China. [Note: This war written in 1948, immediately 
before the Communist Revolution in China] Oil 
is also an important factor in the 
background of the Chinese-Japanese wars. 



The Rockefeller Foundation liberally supported Organized
Social Service, especially the organizations that 
have been devoted to the exploitation of disease under 
the guiding genius of Harry L. Hopkins. For a period 
of more than a decade John D. Jr. might have been 
termed the "angel" of Harry L. Hopkins. This implies 
that the Rockefellers have sponsored the political machine
financed with funds gathered for social service 
activities, which eventually created the "New Deal." 
The Rockefeller interests are well represented on the 
directorate of most of the more important social service agencies. 



It has been related that German-born Senator 
Robert F. Wagner, whose name is synonymous with all 
the specious doctrines and the most destructive measures of
the "New Deal," has been identified with the 
Rockefeller interests and originally secured the New 
York State charter for the Foundation. Harry L. Hopkins
acknowledged his debt to the Rockfellers, when 
he was appointed Secretary of Commerce, by offering 
the post of Assistant Secretary to Nelson Rockefeller. 
This was reported by Walter Winchell, who later announced
that the Rockefeller publicity staff had vetoed 
Nelson Rockefeller's acceptance of the post. The reason 
may be discerned in the quiet but persistent propaganda
conducted by the Rockefeller publicity men in 
the press, especially in the Rockefeller controlled or 
dominated papers such as the Hearst publications and 
in the New York Times, to pose John D. Rockefeller 
Jr. as a businessmen's candidate for the job of President
of the United States. It is noteworthy that the 
"New Deal" has dealt most kindly with the Rockefeller 
interests. 



Absurd and dangerous doctrines have been promulgated and
incorporated into the law for the deliberate 
purpose of creating chaos for sinister ulterior motives. 
This explains why the resources of the General Education 
Board and of the Foundation have not been used to promulgate
and to influence the adoption of a more rational 
concept of economic and social structure. 



With the aid of the machinery of the Foundation it 
would not take much effort to teach the nation that the 
menace to its security does not lie in accumulations of 
wealth, however large they may be; that on the contrary 
such accumulations constitute a factor of safety for the 
nation as well as for the individual. The real menace lies 
in the stupidly conceived and irrational monetary system 
which so limits the amount of money in circulation that 
accumulation of reserves by the nation and by individuals 
results in paralysis of exchange; and bars the setting up of 
reserves of essential commodities, the raw materials of 
the necessities of life. 



Little more than a century ago the distinguished economist
Malthus enunciated, on the basis of a tremendous 
amount of statistical research, what was named the "Law 
of Malthus." The "Law" states that population increases 
by geometric progression and must outstrip the production of
food, which it says increases only by arithmetic 
progression. 



From this economic "Law," Malthus deduced the idea 
that the world would become over-populated and consequently
reduced to starvation. Instead we are now 
ploughing under crops in order to prevent destruction of 
their value by supposed over-production. Man's ingenuity 
in improving production and in creating machinery of 
production was disregarded by Malthus. And they proved 
his "Law" an absurd fallacy. 



An equally fallacious economic "law," that of 
"supply and demand" and "marginal utility" (a euphuism 
for speculation, which is the real determining factor) bars 
us from remedying the reverse condition of that predicted 
by Malthus—an apparent over-production of food for our 
present-day populace. If one were to resort to the practice 
of framing fallacious thinking into "laws," the modem
version would read as follows: 



"The population and commodity production of 
the world grow to exceed the dimensions of its monetary
system. For survival of that monetary system 
population and commodities must be destroyed." 



And that is being done by means of wars. 



In final analysis the economy of the world requires one 
of two choices: Either the population and material wealth 
of the world must be destroyed to the point of bringing it 
within the scope of our present monetary system by a 
process of war and starvation, in conformity with the 
above-stated modernization of the "law of Malthus;" or 
the currency and medium of exchange must be rationally 
based and soundly expanded to match expansion of population
and real wealth. 



It is the first plan that rules throughout the world at 
the present time—identically in Russia as in the United 
States. It is taught dogmatically and without question in 
all our schools and universities, whether conservative or 
radical. Karl Marx in his "Socialism" has justified its
application to fixing the value of human beings and their 
labor. It is the mainspring of the so-called "New Deal" 
and is the fundamental premise of all social service
"philosophy" and thought. 



It is apparent that there has been a deliberate fostering 
of these fallacious views in the classroom, in the land and 
in the rest of the world, for the insane purpose of
precipitating a smashup of the world's economy that will
result in absolute concentration of all the wealth and power of 
the world in a single hand. 



The insanity of such an objective is obvious to anyone 
who stops to think or to consider history. Stability or 
security, which, in final analysis, all men seek in the 
brief span of life, can never exist in the presence of a 
system that breeds starvation and violence. In such a 
system the master is as likely to succumb to the forces 
which he has set loose as are the mastered. 



There was far greater wisdom in John D. Jr.'s Sunday School
homilies which taught that wealth is not 
essentially evil but a blessing. They did not point out 
that it is the stupid economic organization to which 
society clings that converts that blessing into the
semblance of a curse. 



The General Education Fund has suppressed such 
views as those of the son of its founder. It has done 
much to crush the originality of thought that might 
have enunciated and popularized such rational views. 
Instead the Rockefeller "philanthropies" have dogmatized the
teachings of institutions of learning, and they 
have fostered destructive Bismarxian propaganda. 



It is significant that the Foundation was conceived 
at the time of the dissolution of the Standard Oil Company.
Undoubtedly it had become apparent to the 
Rockefellers that in order to avoid interference with 
their enterprises by governments they must take them 
over more directly and completely than they had thus 
far done. Taking over governments would not insure 
absolute submissiveness. This required that the form 
of the governments of the world must be changed to 
absolute dictatorships and that all concepts of democracy
must be wiped out. That purpose is the obvious 
explanation of the objective of the Rockefeller interests in
giving unlimited support to Communism, Nazism, Fascism, New
Dealism and any other type of dictatorship. 



The international activities of the Foundation were 
invaluable in paving the way for the formation of a 
world-wide oil monopoly. Rockefeller personally directed
these maneuvers. This is clear from the report 
made by Chairman Walsh of the United State Commission on
Industrial Relations, who reported: 



" . . . Mr. Rockefeller is the Foundation. The testimony
shows that the trustees exercised no authority that does not
come from him." 



The Rockefeller-Standard Oil interests have fostered 
dictatorships and used them as pawns on their game of 
international diplomacy. Their all important game 
since gaining control of the oil reserves of the Americas
has been the play for oil lands in the East and 
the Near East, Caucasus, Iran. Iraq and Saudi Arabia 
with which to supply their European and Mediterranean
markets. Their chief competitors and adversaries 
have been the British, the Royal Dutch and Shell Companies.
The British government has been closely tied 
up with the companies and adamant in blocking the 
Rockefeller interests from the oil reserves in their 
sphere of influence. It was evident that nothing short 
of destruction of the British Empire would serve to 
open its territories to the Standard Oil. The Rockefeller
interests proceeded to destroy the British Empire 
in World Wars I and II. 



The objective of Kaiser Wilhelm's Berlin to Bagdad 
Railroad plan, that was one of the principal precipitating
causes of World War I, was to wrest Near Eastern 
oil from the control of the British. The fine hand of 
Standard Oil can be seen in this move that precipitated 
war. It was only when the British agreed to let down 
the barriers to Standard Oil that the U.S. was pushed into
the "War to Save Democracy"—a rather high-sounding title
for oil. Following the war. Standard Oil obtained
concessions in Roumania, Bulgaria. Ethopia, Sumatra, Persia,
Kamchatka, Turkey and Saudi Arabia. 
It also obtained oil monopolies in France in which the 
French Government was a partner, in Czecho-Slovakia 
and in China. 



After World War I the British took over the Baku 
oil fields from the Turks and Germans, who had seized them.
After their withdrawal they supported the 
Denikin Army. In the meantime in 1920 the Standard 
Oil of New Jersey purchased the Baku oil holdings of 
Nobel Oil Co. For eight years the Rockefeller Standard 
Oil group battled Royal Dutch and Shell for Baku oil. 
in the diplomatic field. The Rockefeller-Standard Oil 
group came out the winner. They offered to grant recognition
of the Soviet Government by the United States 
and the support of Communism in the U.S. in return 
for oil. After placing Roosevelt in office, they did effect
recognition. In 1935, the Socony Vacuum announced that it
had bought oil heavily from Russia since 1927. 



In the meantime the Rockefeller-Standard Oil interests were
busy developing another source of oil in the 
Mediterranean. A subsidiary, the Anglo-American Oil 
Company had obtained in 1933 an exclusive concession 
in the northern half of the Harrar Province in Ethiopia.
There is no record of any effective development 
of the concession, no doubt due to British pressure. 



In 1933 there was organized, the African Exploration 
and Development Company affiliated with Socony 
Vacuum for exploration of Ethopian oil. Sir Francis 
Rickett, Rockefeller-Standard Oil negotiator made no 
headway with Haile Selassie. He turned to Rome and 
offered Mussolini a deal on Abyssinian oil. In return 
for invasion of Abyssinia he offered the assurance of 
the Rockefeller Empire that no sanctions would be exercised
by the Rockefeller-controlled League of 
Nations of which Raymond B. Fosdick, a Rockefeller employee,
was executive. The Standard Oil undertook to 
supply Mussolini with Roumanian oil in return for a 
thirty year monopoly of the Italian oil market. And 
after the war started, Socony Vacuum built two refineries in
Naples for him. After two months of war, 
in December 1935, peace was offered Haile Selassie in 
return for the cession to Italy of the oil-rich Fafan 
Valley and the lands west of it. The Rockefeller interests
did not get complete control of Ethiopian reserves 
until 1947, when a concession was granted Sinclair Oil, 
a subsidiary of Standard Oil of Indiana. 



In the Chaco in 1933 Standard-British rivalry precipitated
the war between Bolivia, backed by the 
Rockefellers, and Paraguay, by the British. Paraguay 
openly brought charges against the Standard Oil Co. of 
New Jersey which in the meantime increased its leases 
in the war area from 386,000 to 2,703,000 hectares. 



The invisible Rockefeller Empire is a super-government that
is rapidly encompassing the entire globe. It 
has entered into partnership or other deals, and has 
dominated the governments of numerous countries 
throughout the world including France, Italy, Roumania,
Germany, Czecho-Slovakia, Iran, Iraq, Saudi Arabia, Turkey,
China, Abyssinia, Japan and Soviet Russia; and in the
Western Hemisphere, Canada, Mexico, 
Venezuela, Colombia, Bolivia, and Argentine. 



For the past thirty-five years, the government of the 
United States has been a completely dominated and 
minor dependent bureau of the Rockefeller Empire 
that has always done its bidding. For more than half 
a century, the Rockefeller Empire has controlled by its 
contributions the nominations in the major political 
parties. Under Franklin Delano Roosevelt, their agent, 
the Rockefeller Empire entered into open rule of the 
United States. 






	The Strange Death of FDR
	




Franklin Delano Roosevelt 
 High Financier 




Franklin Delano Roosevelt, as poor relation of some 
of the wealthiest clans in the world, could have become 
identified through them with some of the leading enterprises
in the country. But the mental aberration 
and lack of judgement, that made it impossible for 
him to attain a passing grade in his law studies and to 
graduate, was aggravated by the after-effects of the attack
of encephalomyelitis that intensified his high
suggestibility. This led to his being used in a number of 
off-color stock jobbing deals that rooked the investing 
public. It is questionable whether any one man was 
more consistently identified during the prosperous 
1920's with enterprises that trimmed the investors than 
"high financier" Franklin Delano Roosevelt. His record was
consistently putrid. 



It is more or less consistent with his admiration of 
things German, with which he was imbued in his childhood,
that three of the four stock flotations with which 
he was identified related to Germany. The fourth 
related to the elimination of labor from merchandizing. 
As in the case of Cousin Ulysses S. Grant the glamour 
of the family name was peddled to none too scrupulous 
manipulators to assist them in unloading questionable 
stocks on the sucker public. 
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The first of these dubious ventures, launched in 
1922, was the United European Investors Ltd., that was 
incorporated under the charter of the Dominion of 
Canada. Its president was listed as Hon. Franklin D. 
Roosevelt, then vice president of the Fidelity & Deposit 
Company of Maryland. His associates in the enterprise 
included August Scherer, William Schall, Senator John 
von Berenberg Gossler, partner of the Hamburg banking firm
of the same name and Alfred Arnthal of Hamburg. Its stock
was payable in German marks and was 
sold to the public in denominations of 10,000 marks a 
share, with a total capitalization of 600,000,000 marks. 
Its purpose as stated in its advertisements was "to take 
advantage of the present money stringency in Germany". The
advertisements represented that "sound 
and attractive investments can be secured for marks at 
prices which should ensure profitable returns coupled 
with safety of principal. At a time when many colossal 
fortunes were piled up in Germany by shrewd, able 
manipulators such as Stinnes, Thyssen, Cagliostro and 
others by taking advantage of the manipulation of currency,
FDR's enterprise came to an ignominious end. 



In 1927 Franklin Delano Roosevelt was identified 
with another stock jobbing scheme for the benefit of 
Germany that cost the American investment public 
heavily—the International Germanic Trust Company. 
Its purpose was to further trade with Germany and to 
deal in German acceptances. The enterprise showed 
losses from the very start. The stock which was sold to 
the American public for $170 a share was eventually 
liquidated for $19 a share. 



The following year found Franklin Delano Roosevelt 
used as "sucker bait" on the board of directors of the 
Consolidated Automatic Merchandising Company abbreviated to
"Camco." The purpose of the enterprise 
was to eliminate labor from the sale of an ever increasing
array of merchandise and to sell by means of automatic
vending machines. Eleven million dollars were 
extracted from the public puree for stock in units of 
one common and one preferred share at $55 a unit, in 
July 1928. At about this time Roosevelt secured the
gubernatorial nomination. 
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FRANKLIN D. ROOSEVELT. Vice President. Fidelity and Deposit
Co. of Maryland, was window trimming for 'CAMCO' that rooked 
investors to the tune of $11,000,000. 
It lost money from the eery start and failed in one of the
periods of highest prosperity 
in the nation's history. But the American investor has been
swindled just as ruthlessly 
by all of the New Deal measures supposedly designed for
their protection. 






It is a curious fact that in this instance, as in others 
that involve Roosevelt and the Dynasty, the radicals 
and so-called "liberals" made no outcry of "Wall Street 
candidate" against Roosevelt. In publications that attacked
the wealthy, no mention was ever made of the 
Roosevelt-Delano clan except in the most favorable 
light. Thus left-winger Ferdinand Lundberg in his 
"America's 60 Families" advertised as a "sensational 
expose" of "malefactors of great wealth", makes no 
mention of the Roosevelt family or of the Delanos except to
mention Fred Delano's position with the Federal Reserve
Bank. This appears to make it clear who inspired these attacks. 



The advertising and literature which was used in the 
sale of "Camco" stock was so laden with deception and 
misrepresentation as to be notorious even in those 
days. The advertising dilated in glowing terms on the 
prospects of the industry, quoting numerous authorities,
including Babson, on automatic sales machines, in 
a manner as to lead the prospective buyers to believe 
that they commended Camco. 



But they mentioned nothing about the assets. To 
cover up the question of assets, the publicity matter 
expounded on "good-will industries" in which it classed 
Camco with the William Wrigley Jr. Company and the 
Coca Cola Company. It stated that the Company had 
a five year plan, of the type that is so familiar in the 
world of crackpots; and it represented that by the 
third year the dividends would be 18%. 



Despite the prosperity which prevailed in the nation 
at the time it was started. "Cameo" lost money from the 
beginning. A little more than a year after the stock was 
unloaded on the public, it was selling for fewer pennies
than it had had originally sold for dollars. Virtually the
entire sum was a dead loss to the American 
public. It is difficult to understand why those involved 
were not prosecuted for using the mails. Their political 
influence was probably what accounted for their immunity. 



By 1935, President Franklin Delano Roosevelt, ex-Wall Street
buccaneer, had "got religion" and assumed 
the appearance of virtue. Pontifically he pronounced 
in one of his fireside broadcasts, in December of that 
year, 



"One of the greatest curses of American life has been speculation". 




At the very time he was making this broadcast, he was 
engaged in making life easier, and making plucking 
the public safer, for the nation's grand-scale swindlers 
by advocacy, support and administration of his Agricultural
Allotment Plan, his SEC, the I.C.C. which he had 
packed in favor of Dynastic plunderers of the railroads, and
his utility death sentence. 



The American investor has been swindled out of 
more money under the New Deal in a decade, by measures that
it pretended were designed to protect the 
public, than it had been by all the prior frauds in a 
century of Wall Street's history. The New Deal made 
swindling ultra-safe, ultra-legal and enormously profitable
for the Dynasty and its allies, by arranging to 
have the frauds perpetrated for them by government 
agencies, with the full sanction of the law; and has given
them a virtual monopoly of all important industries. 



From the viewpoint of the Dynasty, the business and 
stock market policies of their agent, President Franklin 
Delano Roosevelt, were a "New Deal" indeed. From 
the viewpoint of the public, they were the same, 
swindling "Old Deal" intensified to the nth degree, 
with all possibilities of legal redress against the
swindlers wiped out, and their swindling legalized and
perpetrated for them through government agencies which 
they control. 




	The Strange Death of FDR
	




Following in Cousin Teddy's Footsteps 
 Vice Presidential Candidate 




From the day he had entered the political arena at 
thirty-one as State Senator, F.D.R. had been invested 
with the Dynastic leadership of the Hudson Valley 
Democrats handed down from cousin Martin Van Buren 
and with the full support of their political, commercial and
industrial allies. He was pushed forward on 
every occasion. 



In 1914 the Dynasty placed F.D.R. in the primaries 
for United States Senator against Murphy's candidate, 
Wilson's Ambassador to Germany, James W. Gerard. 
As usual, it was a case of an upstate political machine 
against a down state political machine. 



In June 1918, Charles F. Murphy a henchman of 
Wilson's and F.D.R.'s sponsors, the Morgan-Ryan-Rockefeller
crowd, offered the New York Democratic 
Gubernatorial nomination to Roosevelt. But the Acting 
Naval Secretary Roosevelt was enjoying himself too 
much with his bright new war. He condescendingly replied,
according to Lindley, that in his opinion in time 
of war "when all questions of religion and party association
were sunk" Alfred E. Smith would do as a 
candidate. (Franklin D. Roosevelt, p. 165). 



In 1920, however, instead of being imprisoned for 
the 999 laws which he frankly acknowledged he had 
broken, for exceeding his authority as Acting Naval 
Secretary, and for other malfeasance of which he was 
guilty, Franklin Delano Roosevelt continued to follow 
in Teddy's footsteps. The Roosevelt-Delano Dynasty 
thumbed their nose at law, Congress and the nation, 
and nominated their agent, F.D.R., Democratic 
vice-presidential candidate. The Dynasty had made its 
peace and merged with the Rockefeller-Standard Oil 
crowd and the nomination went off without a hitch. 



James Cox, the presidential candidate, like Taft and 
Harding, were all Ohio henchmen of the Rockefeller-Standard
Oil Ohio political machine. They selected 
Cox from the Democratic side of their machine to oppose
Harding from its Republican side, in a framed 
fight. Cox published a chain of newspapers and was an 
associate of Charles G. Dawes, Comptroller of the 
Treasury under McKinley, in the Pure Oil Company. 



Cox and Roosevelt were both reliable pawns of the 
bipartisan Rockefeller Empire. But the sanctimonious 
corruption of Wilson had so far lost popular favor, 
that it was decided to let the Republican pawns win. 
This was signalized by an apparent defection of Harvey, the
agent of Ryan and the Rockefeller-Morgan 
group, from the original Wilson backers who were now 
supporting Cox and Roosevelt. Harvey predicted Harding's
victory with his usual precision that derived 
from the dominant role that he played for the Wall 
Street crowd in manipulating elections. 



In the course of the campaign some newspapers 
pointed out that the scandalous corruption in Franklin 
Delano Roosevelt's conduct as Assistant Secretary of 
the Navy that had been exposed by the Congressional 
investigating committee and the contemptuous disregard of
the law to which he had confessed, should bar 
him forever from holding public office. Roosevelt 
bluffed and threatened to bring suit for libel. But he 
never did sue. 



Following his defeat, Roosevelt was given, in January 
1921, the job of Vice President in charge of the New 
York office of the Fidelity and Deposit Company of 
Maryland by an admirer, Van Lear Black, President 
of the Company and owner of the Baltimore Sun. He 
received a salary of $25,000 a year. This was the first 
salary that he had earned that was in anywise commensurate
with his needs for supporting his family 
and maintaining a scale of living that had been much 
beyond his income.
 
Roosevelt devoted only one or two hours, when he 
was in town, to the Fidelity job. This left him free to 
exploit his name in many different directions. He was 
eager for "easy money" and had no scruples whether 
he worked for it or not, or how he got it. He became 
a partner in the firm, Emmett, Marvin and Roosevelt 
in 1921, and in 1924, he formed a law firm with Basil 
O'Connor as partner. He devoted a little time in the 
afternoon to his law clients. He took the job of President
of the American Construction Council, formed to 
whitewash the corruption in the building trades that 
had been exposed recently by a legislative investigation.
But the ugliest of his money-making activities 
were the malodorous stock deals to which he gave his 
name and in which he participated; and his Georgia 
Warm Springs business. 



However, there were some reports of "irregularities" in 
his accounts. The money is supposed to have been paid 
up by subscription among his friends before he was
inaugurated as Governor. 





	The Strange Death of FDR
	




Franklin Delano Roosevelt 




Franklin Delano Roosevelt was the pathetic puppet 
of the conspirators scheming the destruction of democracy
and the establishment of an American monarchy. For the role
for which he was picked, he had every qualification. 



F.D.R. was a direct scion of both the Roosevelt 
and Delano clans. On the Roosevelt side, he was descended
from Claas Martenszen van Rosenvelt (or Rosenfeld)
descendants of proselytized Sephardic Jews 
who had settled in Holland and later migrated to New 
Amsterdam in 1649. Claas, his son, was father of Johannes,
the direct ancestor of Theodore Roosevelt, and 
of Jacobus, the direct ancestor of F.D.R. 



Jacobus Roosevelt married one of the most affluent and
picturesque woman of the time, Catherina 
Hardenbroeck. According to tradition, she was the 
hardest drinking, hardest cussing, hardest fighting woman
who ever sailed before her own mast as skipper in 
the rum, molasses, slave and smuggling trade. Isaac, her 
son, was the man whose invitation to attend a wife's 
funeral, was rejected by George Washington because 
of a question of propriety. 



The intervening ancestors were German, Swedish, 
and principally English, so that the original Dutch 
strain is thoroughly diluted. Col. Theodore Roosevelt, 
26th president was a fifth cousin. F.D.R.'s half-niece. 
Helen Rebecca Roosevelt married Theodore Douglas 
Robinson, son of Theodore Roosevelt's sister Corinne, 
the grandmother of Joseph and Stewart Alsop, the 
columnists. 



By direct line of descent from Thomas Shepard and 
Anne Tyng, John Adams, second president, and John 
Quincy Adams, sixth, were sixth and seventh cousins. 
But the relationship of the two branches of the family 
have ben maintained in closer degree by intermarriage.
The marriage of Fred B. Adams to Ellen W. 
Delano, a first cousin of F.D.R. has been mentioned. 



Less directly, through intermarriage of the Van Deursens and
the Van Burens, F.D.R.'s great grandfather 
was a third cousin of Martin Van Buren, eighth president. 



On the Delano side F.D.R. was more or less remotely
related to George Washington, James Madison, 
4th president. General William Henry Harrison, 9th 
president. General Zachary Taylor, 12th president, Andrew
Johnson, 17th president. General Ulysses S. Grant, 
18th president. General Benjamin Harrison, 23rd president
and William Howard Taft, 27th president. As has 
been stated. President Grant was F.D.R.'s closest relative
among the presidents. It has been noted also that on 
the Delano side, F.D.R. proudly traces his ancestry to 
the King of England, Henry II, and through the Astors, by
marriage, to George VI. The numerous intermarriages with
European nobility have been mentioned.



The royal background and ancestry were calculated to 
engender ambitions and fire the aspirations of a Pretender
to an American throne; and the Dynasty's influence has made
it a possibility. 



Franklin Delano Roosevelt was the son of fifty-two 
year old James Roosevelt, vice-president of the Delaware 
and Hudson Railroad, director of several other corporations
and retired country squire, and Sara Delano, twenty-six year
old daughter of Warren Delano, merchant 
and clipper ship operator in the China trade, who made 
a sizeable fortune in opium smuggling. The Kean 
gang also entered the picture. 



By the first marriage F.D.R. had a half-brother, 
James Roosevelt Roosevelt, a banker and appointee to 
the diplomatic corps by Grover Cleveland, a kinsman of 
his father. It is amusing to note that this brother has 
been kept a dark secret by the New Dealers because it 
would not be compatible with the picture of F.D.R. 
"throwing the money lenders out of the temple". James 
Roosevelt Roosevelt's first wife was Helen Schermerhorn
Astor, daughter of the society leader, Mrs. William 
B. Astor and aunt of Vincent Astor. 



Sara Delano Roosevelt, dominating mother, did not 
send her boy to school to mix with schoolmates but kept 
him home under the tutelage first of French and German
governesses, and then of tutors until he was fourteen.
Almost every year he was taken to Europe for 
several months. He attended public school at Nauheim 
two years, studying map reading and military topography. At
an early age he conceived a great admiration 
for things German and became thoroughly imbued with 
Prussian militarism, and their lust for war on land, and 
especially, on sea. Summers were spent at Campobello. 



Under the influence of his mother, who was derived 
from a sea-faring family and whose cousin, according 
to Daniel W. Delano (Pic, July 8, 1941), had designed 
and built the first armor-clad, screw-driven warship, 
F.D.R.'s keenest interest, at the age of twelve, was 
warships and navies. 



At fourteen he was sent to school at Groton, which 
tries to be ever so British and mimics Eton. At eighteen 
lie entered Harvard. He did little studying but managed to
get by. His social life was more successful and 
he attained an editorship on the Crimson. His guiding 
star was his distant cousin, Theodore Roosevelt. In his 
conversation he talked so much about his birth, social 
position and aspirations that he was twitted by his 
classmates about his "Royal Family". In 1904 he left 
Harvard and went to Columbia Law School. 



Shortly after he had entered Harvard, F.D.R.'s 
father died. In his will he intimated that he did not 
trust Franklin's competence and left him nothing outright
but merely $100,000 in trust. His mother inherited 
the estate, held the purse strings and "managed" him. 
She took up residence near Harvard to superintend his 
education. 



Against his mother's will, F.D.R. proposed to Eleanor
Roosevelt, niece of President Theodore Roosevelt. 
It is apparent that F.D.R. was dazzled by his distant 
cousin in the White House and that Eleanor's close 
relationship to him gave added lure. When the point 
for opposition had passed, Sara Delano acquiesced. 



Teddy gave his niece, and godchild, away on March 
17, 1905 at the homes of Eleanor's cousin, Mrs. Henry 
Parish, Jr. and of her mother, Mrs. E. Livingston Ludlow, 
6 and 8 East Seventy-sixth Street, New York City. 



F.D.R. had no resources of his own. He was completely
dependent on his mother's gifts, and she bossed 
the newlyweds thoroughly. She provided them a 
house at Hyde Park, a summer home at Campobello, 
and built for him a house adjoining her own on East 
Sixty-fifth Street. The bride reports she had no voice 
in the furnishing of her own homes. But marriage to 
Eleanor had its rewards for F.D.R. He was now 
especially welcome and became a frequent guest at 
the White House or at the home of Theodore Roosevelt's
brother-in-law, Rear Admiral William Sheffield 
Cowles and he came in closer contact with his hero, 
the ruling Dynast. He had an opportunity to become 
thoroughly imbued with tradition and methods, and 
was able to make contacts which served him well later. 
He learned at first hand from the Master the use of 
showmanship and opportunism as political tools. 



Mrs. Henry Parrish, on her death, left $250,000 to "my 
beloved niece Eleanor Roosevelt", and an equal amount 
"to my nephew, Sumner Welles". It is in the person of 
Sumner Welles, former Assistant Secretary of State during
the Roosevelt regime, that certain family failings of 
the clan have come to light most notoriously. "CONFIDENTIAL"
magazine, in its issue of May, 1956 (vol. 4, 
No. 2) openly accused Sumner Welles of homosexuality, 
quoting from public records. No mention is made of a 
predilection for colored minors. 



In this connection, it might be noted that FDR's cousin,
Ellen Roosevelt, reported that Eleanor Roosevelt's 
mother was a woman of some degree of color, who was 
indiscreetly attached to Theodore Roosevelt. Teddy's 
ne'er-do-well, dissolute brother, Elliott, appears on the 
family tree as Eleanor's father. But her mother is curiously
glossed over in it 



F.D.R. was uninterested in his law studies and was 
never able to graduate in law. He had no patience with 
rules or laws. As a spoiled brat he had always changed 
the rules of games to suit his whims. As a Dynastic 
heir, he planned to make his own laws, in the fashion 
of a Pasha. He gloried in the idea of laying down the 
law. Whenever he signed a new bill, even on his dying 
day, he would say to his secretary: "Here is where I
make a new law." (Time, April 23, 1945, p. 18). 
But the influence of the Dynasty was great. The Bar 
Association made a rare exception in his case and admitted
him to the Bar without a law degree; and, it 
is reported, without a rigid examination. He was given 
a job by his cousin's (Sara Delano, daughter of Warren
Delano III) husband Roland L. Redmond, senior 
partner of Carter, Ledyard and Milburn. 



His chief interest during this period, as previously, 
was military and naval history. He spent a large part 
of his time at Hyde Park in the role of country squire, 
and in summer at Campobello. His mother was still 
his main source of income for the support of his family.
Indicative of his breadth of mind was the clause 
that appeared regularly in his advertisements for help 
for Hyde Park: "No Catholic need apply." This
anti-Catholicism in later political activities was thinly
disguised, but repeatedly emerged, and James Farley need 
not have been surprised at the treatment he received. 



F.D.R.'s start in politics he owed to the power of 
the Dynasty and the popularity of the Roosevelt name. 
The members of the Dynasty then in control of the local
political machine provided the opportunity. Chief 
Theodore Roosevelt was then engaged in vengefully 
wrecking the Republican Party and defeating Taft in 
the interest of Morgan. F.D.R. was dilly-dallying 
with law and other avocations at the time but was not 
making a living and had to be provided for. And he 
could not be provided for better than to place him on 
the public payroll where he could serve the Dynasty. 
They gave him the nomination for State Senator for 
Dutchess County and Putnam County, the old stamping ground
of Martin Van Buren who had built up 
the political machine in that district almost a century 
earlier. His running mate for the Assembly was a distant
relative, Louis Stuyvesant Chanler, great-great 
grandson of John Jacob Astor. The Senate district had 
always been Republican and it was not expected that 
there was any chance that the Democratic candidate 
would win. The Poughkeepsie Eagle commented on the situation: 



"Presumably his (F.D.R.'s) contribution to 
the campaign funds goes well above four figures 
but the Republican nominee will not be disturbed 
by Mr. Roosevelt's candidacy." 



But Theodore Roosevelt had disrupted the Republican Party in
New York, characteristically following the 
pattern of disgruntled ex-officeholders of the ever 
treacherous and disloyal Dynasty, and had assured a 
victory to the opposition, the Democratic Party. F.D.R. 
was carried in by the landslide. 



In the campaign he showed that he had learned 
from his paragon, Theodore Roosevelt, the device of 
catch-penny demagoguery which later proved a favorite device
throughout his career. In the campaign there 
were elements of Ku Klux Klanism; and F.D.R. shone 
in the light of champion of the Protestant White Americans.
Though his nomination had been given him by 
the local Dynastic bosses who controlled both parties, 
he made a sham fight on "Bossism" and a pretense of 
deserting his social class, for demagogic appeal. F.D.R. 
proved an apt pawn. 



In the New York State Senate, the upstate Dynasty political
machine once again made good use of the Roosevelt name and
built up the repute of their man, F.D.R. 
The occasion was the unpopular plan for nomination of
William Sheehan, candidate of Tammany's boss, 
Charley Murphy, to succeed United States Senator 
Chauncey Depew. Six district leaders, as well as J. 
Sergeant Cram, chairman of the New York Democratic 
County Committee, worked actively for his defeat. 



The "fight" took the form of "passive resistance", refusal
to attend the Democratic caucus, so that the majority would
not be present. In all, seventeen Democrats 
under the leadership of the Osbornes led the "fight". 
Most of the upstate Democratic leaders who traditionally
opposed Tammany, sought Sheehan's defeat. The 
influence of the Dynasty plus the news value of the 
Roosevelt name combined to credit the "fight" on 
Sheehan to F.D.R. and rob the Osbornes of credit 
for their leadership. The New York Times was particularly
helpful in thus building up F.D.R. Inasmuch as the Times,
belying its early-day virility and 
the public spirit that marked its fight on Tweed, has 
made obsequiousness to the powers that be its consistent
policy, there can be seen the hand of Theodore 
Roosevelt and the Dynasty in the "build-up" of cousin F.D.R. 



Word got around that there was an important element 
of anti-Catholicism in Roosevelt's opposition to Sheehan. In
view of his previous exhibitions of anti-Catholicism and
the Klu Klux Klanism, this was not surprising. With the
objective of allaying resentment thus 
aroused, the "insurgents", after a prolonged holdout, 
voted for a Tammany candidate of Murphy's, Justice 
James A. O'Gorman. 



Once he had gained the limelight, F.D.R. had no 
difficulty in holding it. In whatever he did he had 
the backing of the Dynasty and he played to the gallery with
all the studied effort that he had learned 
from his cousin "Teddy". The Dynasty had prepared 
some new raw material for the White House to carry 
on its line of succession. 



Roosevelt's campaign for reelection to the State Senate
brought on the scene Louis McHenry Howe. He 
largely accounts for any element of political talent 
that Roosevelt is supposed to have possessed. Howe 
took over at the point that the Dynastic bosses left 
off. He was a one man "brain trust" who cooperated 
with a full time staff of reliable workers, including 
Margaret LeHand, in creating the Roosevelt known to 
the public, about whom there centered the Roosevelt 
myth. Before F.D.R. had reached the point where 
Rockefeller subsidized professional staffs did his thinking
for him, Louis Howe did the job single-handed. 
Much of what the public has been led to believe is the 
personality of Franklin Delano Roosevelt, is merely a 
reflection of his ghost personality, his ghost thinker 
and ghost writer, Louis Howe. 



Howe, who was the Albany correspondent of the 
New York Herald and Telegram, took complete control of
Roosevelt's 1912 renomination campaign. Roosevelt was
stricken with typhoid fever at the time. An 
uncannily shrewd politician who had studied the game 
from a point of vantage in Albany for many years, 
Howe drew up a platform for cooperative distributing 
and shipping societies and farmer's banks, with licensing of
commission merchants by the State Department 
of Agriculture, which he knew the farmers had sought 
and would acclaim. On this platform of which Roosevelt had
never conceived and had not the slightest 
knowledge, Howe secured his boss's reelection. From 
then until his death, Louis Howe was F.D.R.'s alter 
and wiser ego. 




Made in Germany: Marxism, Communism, Nazism, New Dealism 




Two outstanding developments over-shadowed the 
events of the first half of the twentieth century. The 
first was the dissemination of Marxism. The second 
was the phenomenal rise of the Rockefeller Empire, 
the greatest the world has even known. The two developments
became closely connected and interwoven. 



The point of origin of Marxism was Germany. Karl 
Marx was the son of Heinrich Marx whose correct 
name before it was "Aryanized" was Hirschel Levy, 
the son of Rabbi Marx Levy of Trier. His mother was 
a Polish Jewess derived from a family of rabbis, including
Rabbis Meir Katzenellenbogen of Padua, Joseph Ben Gerson
ha-Cohen and Joshua Heschel Lvov. 
His elder brother, Karl's uncle was also a rabbi. 



In order to retain his post as counsellor in the Trier 
court, when the Rhineland was taken over by Germany,
Heinrich Marx (nee Hirschel Levy) was baptized 
in 1817, one year before Karl was born. He retained 
his court job and advanced to the position of Justizrat 
and a leader of the Moderate Constitutional party in 
Trier. Karl's Hungarian Jewish mother, Henriette did 
not become baptized until after the death of her parents in
1825. Karl and his brothers and sisters were 
baptized in the National Evangelical Church (Protestant) on
August 24, 1824, when Karl was a little over 
six years old. 



Karl Marx suffered from an acute inferiority complex
regarding his Jewish origin. He never could bring 
himself to realize that those about him regarded him 
with questioning, if not contempt, because he pretended to
be something he was not. He held the Jews 
responsible for his state. His paranoia and inferiority 
complex were compensated by an intense hatred of the 
Jews. This found expression in the first works he wrote 
for publication. In the Deutsch-Franzosische Jahrbuch 
of 1844 he wrote in a review entitle "Zur Judenfrage" 
("On the Jewish Question") the following: 



"What is the basis of Judaism? Selfishness and greed. 



"What is their faith? Swindling. 



"Who is their God? Money. 



"There can be no solution of the problems of the 
world without the destruction of the Jews and their 
religion (Judenthum)." 



In 1875 he wrote: 
"The Hebrew faith is repellent to me". 



Thus Karl Marx, a neo-Lutheran, became one of 
the fathers of Nazism, acknowledged by Hitler and his crew. 
At college, as a phase of compensation for his paranoid
inferiority complex, Marx paraded as a Christian 
and undertook an intensive study of Canonical or 
Church Law. Thus he wrote to his father from Berlin 
on November 10, 1837: 



"I confined myself to positive studies . . . some 
of Gauterbach's books . . . especially on ecclesiastical law." 



In the Canonical Law he found sections which interpret
profits in commercial transactions as usury 
and a cardinal sin. That meant that the Church law 
demanded "production for use and not for profit". 



This left open only three legitimate vocations: one 
was to join the Church orders; the second was to labor; 
and the third was to assume the role of the baron who 
preyed on the laborers on the pretense of protecting 
them, as do the modern Labor Barons and their gangster
henchmen, and to live by physical force or violence. This
was Medievalism. The church later abandoned this doctrine
except within its own orders, because it was found unsound
and dangerous. It was largely responsible for the breakdown
of civilization, law 
and order in the Middle Ages, and for the enslavement 
of mankind. It threw Europe into a reign of terror 
that lasted more than a thousand years. 



But Karl Marx was not merely anti-Jewish, he was 
anti-religious and especially anti-Catholic. He wrote 
that he classed Christianity as a Jewish religion. In 
this respect his ideas coincided with those of Bismarck, 
whose anti-Catholic activities have been recalled by the 
Pope recently as the origin of Nazi activities in Poland.
Marx attacked religion as an opiate for the 
masses. But he stole the doctrine, "to produce for profit is
a cardinal sin", which the Church abandoned because it was
proved false, and made it the basis of his 
new religion, Marxism or Communazism. 



Marx's hatred, like that of his followers, the Nazis, 
extended to all non-Germanic peoples, even those that 
supported his movement. He disparaged the Negro and 
held the Russian revolutionaries in contempt. 



Labor, Marx hated whole-heartedly, and he despised 
the individual worker. When he married he sought 
out a noblewoman, Jennie von Westphalen. When one 
of his daughters wished to marry a worker, he forbade 
it and ordered her to marry a bourgeois capitalist. 



Karl came from an affluent bourgeois family and never did a
day of labor in his life. The loss of the fortune 
which his father left him, as a result of his incompetence,
bred him a paranoiac hatred of all who possessed 
property, the "Capitalists", because he regarded them 
as responsible for the loss of his fortune. This aligned 
him as a bitter supporter of the "have nots", not because he
loved Labor but because he hated "the Capitalist" more. 



His neurotic, paranoid character and overwhelming 
sense of inferiority gave rise in Marx to a compensatory
illusion of superiority that insisted upon autocratic and
absolute dominion and to violent suspicions 
that were the origin of the "purge" complex, that
characterizes all his followers. Karl's sisters related that 
even as a boy, he was a fearful tyrant. He drove girls 
downhill at full gallop and compelled them to eat the 
cakes he made with his dirty hands out of filthy dough. 
His schoolmates feared him because of the satirical 
verses and lampoons he hurled at his enemies. 



Utterly lacking in originality or capacity for lucid 
thinking, Marx showed faith in his concept of distribution
of wealth only by plagiarizing the fallacious 
ideas of others. Foremost among the fallacies which he 
borrowed was the so-called "Law of Supply and Demand". In
its converse form—"it is primarily scarcity 
that gives value"—he undertook to justify ethically its 
application to human beings and their labor. That became the
basic idea underlying labor unionism. 



But unionism is only a half way measure in carrying out the
idea of maintaining a scarcity of human 
beings and their labor. The full and boldly carried program
for creating a shortage of human beings is concentration
camps and wholesale murder. Hitler alone 
carried out Karl Marx's precepts completely and to 
their logical conclusion. In this as in applying his
anti-Semitism, Hitler was Marx's most faithful disciple. In 
faithfully following Hitler's footsteps, Stalin and his 
Communist cohorts are carrying out Marx's precepts. 



Quite as fallacious was Marx's reasoning in justifying his
German patriotism. As a defense against the 
Prussian attitude that Jews were aliens, Karl Marx developed
an intense German Nationalism. Among the 
first words that he wrote were: 



"The emancipation of the German is the emancipation of Man". 



His sham pacifism and internationalism vanished 
with the outbreak of the Franco-Prussian War, and was 
replaced by a martial enthusiasm and anxiety for a 
German victory. Expert at self-deception by dialectics, 
he justified his attitude in a letter to Engels as follows: 
"The German working class is superior to the 
French from the viewpoint of organization and theory." 



In a victory of Germany he pretended to discern a 
victory of the German working class, and most important, of
his theories. Dialectics alone can match these 
views; or his advocacy of class hatreds and warfare, 
which in final analysis is the worst form of civil war, 
with his pretended internationalism and quest for 
common welfare. 



But even more obvious is Marx's deception in offering 
his Communist program as an improvement on human 
freedom. For Communism necessarily means total loss 
of freedom, virtual or actual slavery. Under Communism, the
government and the people who control 
it, own everything and everyone. They dictate all conditions
of life, including wage and employment. Without freedom to
earn a living, all other freedoms are 
meaningless. Only a dialectician trained to reason 
away the obvious and the truth can fail to realize that 
state ownership of the machinery of production also 
implies irresponsible ownership and neglect. For what 
belongs to everyone belongs to no one; and it is neglected
by everyone, for a reason that is axiomatic and 
is clearly demonstrated by a psychological experiment on rats. 



Three rats were placed in a cage that was provided 
with three levers which released food to them from 
an overhead trap. The rats rapidly learned to press 
on the levers and catch the food. More complex conditions
were then introduced into this rat society. 
The levers were placed on the opposite side of the 
cage distant from the traps that released the food. 
Only one of the rats had sufficient intelligence to
associate pressure on the lever with the distant release 
of food, and initiative and energy to do it. But this
was of little avail to him. For the stupid and slothful 
rats learned to grab the food released by their ambitious
colleague. Though he worked unremittingly he 
seldom managed to get the food which he released 
and died of starvation. Later the others died. 



Most humans are like the stupid, slothful rats. For 
that reason Socialism, Communism and state ownership of
machinery of production are doomed to failure. Eventually
they degenerate into a dictatorship of 
the most forceful and most ruthless member of the 
community; for in final analysis the rule of the
abstraction, the State, is the rule of the individual. The 
more absolute the power of the State, the more autocratic is
the rule of that individual. Thus the Communist or Socialist
State is inevitably a dictatorship. By 
its virtue, the dictator is owner of everything and 
everybody he surveys—he is a perfect feudal lord. 
Such over-centralization of power naturally implies the 
end of efficiency and initiative and the disruption or 
destruction of industry, commerce and social organization.
For the rank and file it implies wretched slavery. 



Within less than a century after mankind had attained its
first legal formulation of the concepts of 
freedom, in the Constitution of the United States, Karl 
Marx undertook to lead them back to enslavement as 
vassals of fascistic Labor Barons and Communazi leaders. It
is the very purpose of Marxism and Communism to destroy
human freedom and make men the 
tools of an absolute dictatorship. 



The Roosevelts Make Hay 




The most disgusting spectacle of the Roosevelt
administration and of all American history, was the
exploitation of the office of President by the members 
of the Roosevelt family. It became the accepted practice to
resort to open bribery of the President or his 
entourage, or to subsidize a member of his immediate 
family, when seeking Presidential favor. Not even the 
dog Fala escaped. I cite a few instances. 



Henry J. Kaiser, who borrowed hundreds of millions 
of dollars from the government agencies, much of 
which he seeks to avoid repaying, and who did an 
enormous government business, presented President 
Roosevelt in 1944 with a not so trifling Christmas 
gift—a $25,000 solid platinum ship model. 



In appreciation of his efforts in engineering billions 
of "Lend Lease" and in securing our entry into the war 
in her behalf, England, through Lord Beaverbrook, 
presented Harry L. Hopkins and his wife with a $3,000,000
emerald parure and other such trifling jewels. 
Exposure led to a weak and equivocal denial. 



Anna Roosevelt Dall Boettiger and her husband's 
lucrative employments that derived from Presidential 
favors have been recounted. A more recent one that is 
very striking was publicized in an article in the December
2, 1947 issue of LOOK magazine entitled "The 
World's Most Generous Man". It recounts the case of 
Charlie Ward, President of Brown and Bigelow. Ward 
had been sentenced to ten years at Leavenworth in the 
early 20's, for the illegal possession of narcotics. The 
sentencing judge called him "a man beneath contempt". 
He was released in 1925. President Roosevelt gave 
Ward a full and unconditional pardon in 1935. LOOK 
reports that Ward "is believed to have partially subsidized"
the Arizona Times, which Mr. and Mrs. Boettiger now publish
as their latest "assisted" venture with 
$50,000 and Barney Baruch with $10,000. It is now reported
that Boettiger has been applying to his former 
employer, Col. H. McCormack of the Chicago Tribune. 



James, Elliott, and Franklin D. Jr. junketed at the expense
of taxpayers and enjoyed a family picnic at 
Casablanca. They were on the job when overnight, 
President F. D. Roosevelt announced a hundred percent
increase in the value of the franc, from 100 to 50 
for a dollar. It is doubtful that the boys lost any money 
on the deal. 



James Roosevelt, who had difficulty in getting a 
start prior to his father's presidential nomination, did 
very well in his insurance business. An article published in
1938 in the Saturday Evening Post entitled 
"Jimmy Has It", related how young and inexperienced 
Jimmy was able to take away from veteran brokers 
enormous policies of concerns that had matters to 
square with the Administration, or sought its favor, 
good will or business. For a time "Crown Prince" Jimmy
sought to take over political control of the Massachusetts
Democratic organization from the local bosses; but he lost out. 



In the midst of an intense war between rival slot 
machine and juke box operators, featuring such notables as
back-scenes Tammany boss, Frank Costello, 
Jimmy Roosevelt entered the motion picture-juke box 
business in association with the Mills Manufacturing 
Company. From there it was a short step to a well paid 
executive position in motion picture business in Hollywood.
The industry faced Federal indictment which was subsequently squashed. 



It is interesting to note the connection of the group 
with the Automatic Voting Machine Co. The machines 
were denied acceptance until they became associated 
with the enterprise and the machines were found satisfactory
for special purposes. Though the machines are 
merely mechanical counters, they jam with surprising 
regularity in districts whose vote is not "dependable". 
"Shims" that serve to cause registration on counters 
other than those intended, load the pockets of "inspectors".
Though it could be done simply, the voter 
is given no way of knowing for what candidate his vote 
is counted. Elections can be stolen easily. 



For a while, wandering Jimmy was tucked under 
the wing of his father as Presidential secretary and
assistant. During the war, he flew far and wide on lend-lease
business—in advance of grants to various appreciative
lands. He made an astonishing success of his 
army career. Overnight he became a Lieutenant Colonel in the
Marines and in April 1944, no doubt for 
military genius manifested, he was promoted to rank 
of Colonel. 



In March 1946, Jimmy was named national director 
of the political organization of the Communist front, 
the Independent Citizens' Committee of The Arts, 
Sciences and Professions. He announced the organization's
program of political action which included extension of
price control and the OPA, repeal of the poll 
tax, permanent Fair Employment Practices Act, support 
of the Taft-Ellender-Wagner Bill, and support of the 
United Nations. He sat on the platform with ranking 
members of the Communist Party and fronted for them. 



The latest reports place James Roosevelt in the employ of
one of the principals of the Barbary Coast, 
reaching for control of the Democratic machine in 
California and seeking a return to the public payroll. 
He has been suggested by Sen. Claude Pepper for 
the Secretary of the Navy job, that is hereditary in the 
family, and for nomination for offices ranging from 
Congressman to Governor and President. Shrewd politicians
who would like to use the "magic" of the 
Roosevelt name for moronic voters, regard him a poison for
the Catholic vote because of his divorce. They 
have no fear of an adverse public reaction to his many 
ambiguous activities. According to columnists, Jimmy 
Roosevelt contemplated a political deal with Henry 
Wallace of which nothing has come to light, unless the 
third party move is a part of it. 



Franklin Delano Roosevelt Jr. married Ethel Du 
Pont in a prearranged alliance between the Dynasties, 
graduated from law school, entered the Navy as lieutenant
and was rapidly promoted on the same day as 
his brother in April 1944, to the rank of Lieutenant 
Commander. He identified himself as veteran with various
left wing and Communist front veterans' organizations and
with the P.A.C. Though he undertook to berate landlords who
seek some return on their investments, and other
capitalists, he has not yet renounced the considerable dowry 
that came with his wife or turned over any of his 
inheritances to the proletariat. 



When Communism became unpopular, he shifted to 
a stand a bit less to the left and engaged in the usual 
tactics of the Marxist dialectician, shadow-boxing with 
Communism. In February 1946 he was appointed chairman of a
Committee of 1000 of the 'Crimson Union for 
Democratic Action'. In April 1947, he joined forces with 
Eleanor Roosevelt's favorite, the perpetual youth Joseph P.
Lash, in the wholly Red 'Americans for Democratic Action', at
its state convention in Albany. 



He has joined the ranks of the Labor Barons. August 
7, 1947, his appointment as counsel for the Upholsterers
International Union of North America (AFL) was announced. 
Despite rumors of divorce, the F.D.R's Jrs. as recently 
as August 6, 1947 were picked up 
by the police for chasing one another in speeding cars 
along the Nassau Boulevard in the early hours of the 
morning. In May 1948, Louella Parsons reported that 
Mrs. F.D. Roosevelt Jr. made public appearances with 
some fresh "shiners" which she intimated were evidence 
of her husband's military prowess. She reports a divorce 
is once again in the offing. 



Elliott Roosevelt's phenomenal rise in the business 
world, on the wings of Hearst's anxieties, has been related.
He was not content at the age of twenty-eight 
with a mere $50,000 income with which Hearst provided him as
Vice President of Hearst's radio chain. 
In 1938, with the support of Charles F. Roeser and Sid 
W. Richardson, Texas oil operators, who invested $500,000,
Elliott set up a chain of 23 radio stations in Texas. 
This provided him, according to the Washington Times-Herald
of August 29, 1945, with an income of $76,000 
a year, more than his father earned as President of the 
United States. The enterprise is reported to have lost 
$100,000 in the first three months. The Transcontinental
Broadcasting Company was liquidated in 1941. 



Elliott Roosevelt is possessed of all the financial genius
of his father who was his mentor and aid. In 
1939, to expand his radio properties, Elliott arranged 
a series of loans. Through Congressman William I. 
Sirovich and Caruthers E. Ewing, Elliott approached 
John Hartford, president of the Great Atlantic & Pacific 
Tea Company for a loan of $200,000. The Atlantic and 
Pacific Tea Company chain was then under fire of the 
New Deal. Hartford was originally reluctant to make 
the loan. Elliott phoned President Roosevelt at the 
White House and had him intercede with Hartford on 
his behalf. With a greeting of "Hello John," to Hartford,
whom he had never met, the President urged him 
to make the loan as "a sound business proposition and 
a fine thing". (Ed. for whom?) After he had come to 
an understanding with F.D.R., Hartford made the loan. 



In 1942, Jesse Jones, Secretary of Commerce, told 
John Hartford, according to Ewing, that the Roosevelt 
family wanted to compromise the indebtedness. John 
Hartford was "induced" to settle the loan at two cents 
on the dollar and surrender the stock, which was represented
as worthless, to Jesse Jones. 



"It was settled satisfactorily to all parties, so I took 
the note and the stock certificate to Jesse Jones in 
person." Ewing said, according to a U.P. report of June 
12, 1945 from Danville, Illinois. "He gave me a check 
payable to John Hartford for $4,000, which was all he 
received on the loan, and the whole thing was closed." 



Elliott was not even called upon by the Internal Revenue, to
pay income tax on his net profit in this transaction, though
John Hartford was permitted to deduct 
his losses from his income in an extraordinary tax 
ruling. It pays to be of the Dynasty even in income tax 
matters. Not even a Congressional investigation, largely 
perfunctory, altered the situation. 



An anti-chain store bill had been introduced in Congress
three months before this $200,000 "loan" of John 
Hartford's to Elliott. It would have crippled the A & P 
stores, but died in committee three months after the 
loan, due to opposition to it from the White House. 
The outspoken Deadwood Pioneer Times, in its issue 
of July 8, 1945 commented caustically: 



"All this tends to leave a bad taste in the mouth of 
Mr. Average Citizen. The ease with which a man with 
ability to pay was able to settle a $200,000 account for 
$4000 and the evident willingness of Mr. Hartford to 
accept such a settlement—at a time, remember, when 
an anti-chain store measure was being presented to the 
House of Representatives—leads one to believe that 
the deal came right off the bottom of the deck. We'd 
rather be the President's son than President." 



It points out that Roosevelt had been instrumental 
in getting Congressman Patman to introduce the anti-chain
store bill; and that Congressman Sirovich who 
had approached Hartford for the "touch" had pointed 
up the debate on the floor of the House by directly 
referring to the A & P in the debate. It intimates that 
this loan was one of the characteristic New Deal blackmails
of industry and commerce in which FDR participated
personally and directly. Congressman Sirovich 
died suddenly, shortly after the deal was consummated. 



The further history of this loan and its stock collateral is
notable. At the very time that this loan was 
settled, the stock that had been represented to Hartford as
worthless, had already begun to rise in value. 
Jesse Jones turned over the recovered stock to President
Roosevelt personally. F.D.R. held the stock until November
9, 1943. By this time the stock was so 
valuable that F.D.R. personally sent it to Elliott's 
divorced second wife, Mrs. Ruth Googin Roosevelt 
Fidson, in a settlement to provide for the childen of 
that marriage. 



By 1945, the stock issue, according to a statement 
which Elliott Roosevelt made to a reporter of the theatrical
sheet, Variety, was worth more than $1,500,000. 
Its value had been materially increased by another
intercession hy President Roosevelt on behalf of his
ex-daughter-in-law. Mrs. Fidson in the affairs of the Alamo
Broadcasting Company of San Antonio, as was
related in a petition filed with the Federal Communication
Commission, December 15, 1945, by Norman Baker 
of Laredo. Baker was President of the Cia Industrial 
Universal Mexico that had previously owned the powerful
Mexican radio station XENT. In his petition, he 
stated that, while he was serving a term in Leavenworth, the
Alamo Broadcasting Company had obtained by collusion an
option to buy the equipment of station XENT through a 
fraudulent act of one of his employees. 



Five months after President Roosevelt had turned 
over the stock to his ex-daughter-in-law, Mrs. Fidson, 
Baker stated, she had visited the President at the 
White House to seek his support for the application of 
the Alamo Broadcasting Company to the Federal Communications
Commission for an increase in the power
of its radio station. The FCC granted the application 
rapidly and without notice or hearing for interested 
parties, and a construction permit for the new station, 
in November 1944. 



Baker was blackmailed with the threat that he would 
be sent back to Leavenworth if he did anything to interfere.
He did however obtain a decree from the 
President of Mexico forbidding the exportation of the 
equipment of his station XENT. This decree was violated by
the conspirators, and on a dark night in April 1945 the
equipment was smuggled across the border in trucks. 



The Hartford loan was but one of a series made by 
Elliott Roosevelt in connection with his radio venture. 
From David G. Baird, a New York insurance man, 
Elliott borrowed on his radio stock, $70,000, which 
was later settled for $29,800; and $50,000 from Maxwell M.
Bilofsky, a radio equipment manufacturer 
looking for government business, settled for $20,000; 
and Charles Harwood, $25,000. (He was later appointed 
Governor of the Virgin Islands by Roosevelt). 



Elliott Roosevelt did not limit his business genius 
to the field of radio. His early interest in aviation was 
never lost. It is reported that Elliott had a hand in the 
cancellation of the airmail contracts in 1935, with an 
eye to the delivering of the airmail contracts to one 
company as a monopoly. The fatal accidents to the 
army aviators who attempted to fly the mails in totally
inadequate "crates" did much to block this deal 
through public indignation. 



World War II found Elliott Roosevelt in the service, 
not in the non-commissioned ranks like his fellow 
citizens of equal education and lack of experience, but 
as an officer, as befitted a member of the Royal Family, in
charge of the War Department reconnaissance 
branch. While he was chief. General Arnold ordered 
the purchase of one hundred planes of the type designed by
Howard Hughes, a protege and intimate 
friend of Jesse Jones, and associate of Elliott Roosevelt,
at a cost of $44,000,000, in spite of the opposition 
of Major General O. P. Echols. An investigation was 
made in June 1947 into the failure of Hughes to deliver any
of the planes which the government had ordered from him and
advanced money to construct. In 
the course of the investigation it was revealed that Col. 
Elliott Roosevelt had accepted the largess of Howard 
Hughes, directly, or indirectly through the latter's public
relations agent, John E. Meyer. 



The records and evidence submitted to the Senate 
War Investigating Committee indicated that Meyer 
catered to the whims and needs of government officials
ranging from Secretary of the Interior Krug to 
mere Army officers with whom Hughes did business. 
He supplied them with everything from wining, dining 
and hotel accommodations to call girls. The girls were 
rewarded with gifts and money. A letter dated September 26,
1944 introduced in evidence disclosed a gift 
of a costly bag to the actress Faye Emerson. Several 
months later Meyers gave Faye Emerson in marriage 
(his third) to Elliott Roosevelt in a spectacular wedding at
Grand Canyon; and threw a wedding party 
for him. Evidence indicated that this costly entertaining
was charged to the Government account, but nothing has ever
been done about it. 



Elliott Roosevelt has been a staunch supporter and 
advocate in the U.S. of Soviet Russia and the Communists,
as has his intimate Henry Wallace. As recently as April 19,
1947, the Associated Press reported 
that Elliott Roosevelt lauded Wallace "as a political 
messiah with a true vision of the World and of the 
American political situation". Late in 1946, Elliott went 
on a trip to Russia as a guest of the Soviet government,
with the wife that Meyer gave away to him, to 
secure material for an article for Look magazine. At 
an entertainment at the United States Embassy in 
Moscow, Elliott Roosevelt is reported to have said: 



" . . . the United States has no business concerning 
itself with what happens along the Danube . . . the 
Russians should get the Dardanelles from Turkey . . . 
Russia has never broken her word whereas the United 
States and Britain have often welshed". 



Finally he said, 



"Can anyone here name one instance in which 
the United States acted to further the cause of peace? 
. . . You know as well as I do that the United States 
is supporting the U. N. for purely selfish and imperialistic
reasons.." 



An affidavit filed by Mrs. D. Sherover and reported 
in the press on March 19, 1947, in her N. Y. Supreme 
Court action for divorce revealed that her husband and 
fellow traveller Charlie Chaplin had joined Elliott 
Roosevelt in fostering Communist propaganda by exhibiting
Russian films in the U.S. 



Elliott has been a great help and comfort to a host 
of subversive agencies and organizations. He has never 
missed an opportunity to trade on his father's reputation,
including a series of books which he has written 
or had ghosted for him. 



Elliott Roosevelt and F.D.R. Jr. have presidential 
aspirations. This has led them to turn against presidential
candidate Wallace in a statement denouncing 
him in favor of Eisenhower, who says he is not a candidate.
This episode was amusingly cartooned in the 
New York World Telegram under the caption "Children's Hour".
The Roosevelt children evidently think 
that if they can stir up enough dissension in the Democratic
Party, one of them may be picked in 1948 or 
1952, to carry on the royal line as called for in
Nickerson's blueprint of the New Deal. 



Reports in the press on April 8, 1948, indicate that 
Elliott's genius has found a new outlet. He and his 
mother are opening a tavern, the Val Kill Inn, at Hyde 
Park nearby the memorial which F.D.R. set up for 
himself, directly on the road on the same side, where 
it might do a better business than the competing inn 
which they are trying to induce Howard Johnson to 
set up one hundred feet off the opposite side of the 
road on land they are trying to sell. It is sincerely to 
be hoped that in the tavern enterprise they have at 
last attained a status satisfactory to their intellectual 
and social level, and the land will be no further annoyed. 



His variegated activities have netted Elliott $1,175,000 in
twelve years, according to the Washington Times-Herald report
of August 29, 1945. 



John Roosevelt has enjoyed little publicity. It is reported 



"he believed the war was unnecessary . . . 
was precipitated by lovers of war, refused to enlist or 
to serve in any military capacity whatsoever. Finally, 
under pressure from his mother he accepted a military 
post in the South Seas with the understanding that at 
no time would it be necessary for him to take a life 
or engage in combat." 



His flair is ladies' dresses and he has recently purchased
an interest in a California drygoods business. 
He is the only member of the family who has refrained 
from exploiting the Presidency. 



Eleanor Roosevelt, generally referred to sarcastically as
Queen Eleanor, was a bit less crude than the 
boys, but far more systematic in her exploitation of 
the President and the Roosevelt name. F.D.R. had 
never managed to make enough to enable the family 
to live in the manner born. Eleanor had helped support the
family with various enterprises including the 
Todhunter School and the Val Kill furniture store. 
Fortune magazine, in its October 1932 issue expanding 
on the inadequacy of F.D.R's. income for the support 
of his family made the significant statement: 



" . . he has always been able to live on a higher 
scale than most people of his means." 



By the time that F.D.R. had reached the White 
House, most of the children were grown up, even though 
they had not managed to make a living for themselves. 
There was no real pressure to force Eleanor to cheapen 
the office of President by exploiting it so shabbily, 
other than desire for money. 



The situation which the Roosevelts created by their
exploitation of the Presidency emphasizes the need for 
provision of a munificent salary and life-long annuity 
for the Chief Executive of the land. There would then 
be no excuse for commercial exploitation of the office 
and it should be prohibited by law and by tradition. 



In her commercial activities Eleanor Roosevelt did 
her share to further the drive for dictatorship. This 
was particularly true in her editorial work. At times 
her indiscretion gave the game away. This was particularly
true of the article she wrote for the December 31, 1938
issue of Liberty Magazine on the Jewish 
question. She revealed how closely she and the New 
Dealers followed the Nickerson blueprint. The Jews, 
she stated, are a problem and to be feared by the Gentile
world. She decried the treatment accorded the 
Jews by the Nazis, but not on ethical or moral grounds. 
She decried it because "by doing it it seems we would 
arouse 'compatriots' living in other countries to defend 
their brethren". Note she wrote "compatriots", not
"coreligionists", implying that the Jews are aliens. She
proposed, as a solution, the restriction of the number of 
Jews and other minorities (including Negroes) who 
might occupy "high places" in politics and enter vocations,
which is known as the "numerus clausus", and a 
government-fostered migration of them so as to minimize the
influence of their vote. 



The attitude of the Roosevelts can not be said to differ
materially in these matters from those of Hitler, 
of the Ku Klux Klan and other of the more notorious 
purveyors of hate or the blueprint laid down by Hoffman
Nickerson in his book. For them Negroes, Catholics and Jews
are not Americans, but are inferior minorities that are
merely to be tolerated and used by the
Roosevelt clan and their allies, to whom they conceive 
America belongs by "Divine Right". 



It was not unnatural that Eleanor who poses as an 
uplifter, should pretend that her activities supported 
charities. This pretense was sadly punctured by a 
number of events, especially the Burlington, Vermont 
incident, which was brought to the attention of Congress by
Congressman Plumley. Eleanor R. (Roosevelt, 
not Regina) had been invited to address the Mary 
Fletcher Hospital Auxiliary to raise money for the hospital.
She said her agent, W. Colston Leigh, insisted 
that she would not lecture for less than one thousand 
dollars, charity or no charity. The embarrassed Auxiliary,
with misgivings, agreed to pay the thousand. 



"As a charitable venture to raise money for the hospital".
Flumley reported to Congress "the affair was a 
minus quantity. As a revenue producer for the First 
Lady it was a success to the tune of the $1000, she 
charged the ladies auxiliary". 



On this occasion, Eleanor R. was shamed by the report to
Congress, into really contributing to charity, 
with the comment: 



"Since they are evidently inexperienced in business 
affairs, I have asked Mr. Leigh to refund my share of
the money." Her "charity" extended only to giving 
back a part of what she had extracted, even when thus 
confronted. 



Another such incident was that of Johnson City, 
Tennessee. When Eleanor arrived to lecture, she was 
sadly informed that they had raised only $500. She 
grimly replied that her contract forbade her opening 
her mouth for less than $1000, on the line and in advance.
The Committee hurriedly borrowed the extra 
$500 from the local banker on personal notes. Then 
Eleanor opened her mouth, and charity and wisdom 
fairly drooled from it, a thousand dollars worth. To 
pay the note, the town raffled off a Chevrolet car, that 
is now known as "Eleanor's car". 



When on another occasion she was given a prize by 
Gimbel Brothers, she ostentatiously gave it to "charity". 
She stipulated that the money should be used in 
F.D.R.'s business, Georgia Warm Springs. It looked 
much like taking it out of one pocket and putting it in 
another. 



The only contributions of Eleanor Roosevelt's that 
ever have been authenticated were those to the Communist
front and the fellow traveler organizations. To 
them, Eleanor gave unstintingly of her time, her energy, and
her funds. They gave in return. She is no parlor pink, but
has been an intimate associate of the 
founders of the Communist Party in the United States 
almost from the beginning. It was as much her influence as
that of Rockefeller's agent, Harry L. Hopkins, 
that played upon F.D.R.'s suggestibility and constantly
warped him to the left. 



Though Eleanor Roosevelt persistently has denied 
membership in the Communist Party, her actions have 
spoken louder than her words. Her leftist attitudes, in 
view of her quest for wealth and her eagerness to 
serve capitalistic industry in her broadcasts and elsewhere
was obviously an expedient pose that she regarded as
politically advantageous. She undoubtedly 
is cognizant of the program to use Communism to destroy
democracy and set up a dictatorship in the United 
States. She was the virtual head of the left-wing "Youth 
Movement" and her conduct with its active leader, 
the perpetual youth, Joseph Lash raised considerable 
scandal. The press reported with especial gusto the 
flight made by Eleanor Roosevelt in a Red Cross uniform and
an Army bomber to the Solomon Islands. 
When she arrived there it was reported, she kissed 
Joe Lash squarely on the mouth and rubbed noses 
with the natives. 



Her intervention eliminated the enemy whom the 
Communists most hated and feared, Robert Stripling, 
chief investigator of the Un-Americanism Committee, 
by having him drafted though he should have been 
exempted. She could be relied on to effect entry for 
the most dangerous and objectionable Communists. 
She was almost entirely responsible for the entry into 
the country of the Communist ringleaders, the Rockefeller
subsidized Eislers who recently have been deported.
Ringleaders of the subversive Red and fellow 
traveler organizations were always welcomed by her as 
guests in the White House. 



Eleanor R.'s projected trip to Russia to join the
subversives in doing homage to Stalin, however, was blocked
by the powers-that-be, through the State Department and F.D.R. 



Eleanor's domination of F.D.R. as President was 
not a matter of uxoriousness. For there were rumors 
of impending divorce in 1927 and various names were 
mentioned. Eleanor Roosevelt was seldom at the side 
of her husband, even in his most serious ailments. It 
has often been remarked that as a rule, except during 
election campaigns, wherever Franklin went, Eleanor 
went in the opposite direction. In 1933, Fraser Edwards
commented in the syndicated column, Washington Sideshow on
the extraordinarily friendly relations of Harry Hopkins and
Eleanor Roosevelt as follows: 



"Mrs. Eleanor Roosevelt through her intense interest 
in unemployments relief, is a frequent caller on Harry 
Hopkins, Federal Relief Administrator. To call, she 
must ride up nine floors in a far-from-modern elevator. 
When she gets to Hopkin's office, modestly Mrs. Roosevelt
sends in her name. Hopkin's secretary announces 
'Mrs. Roosevelt is waiting to see you.' In she goes. . .



"Hopkins with old-fashioned courtesy escorts Mrs. 
Roosevelt down the elevator to the front door, and she 
walks back to the White House, two blocks away,
unaccompanied and scarcely noticed." 



The picture is so affecting that one wonders why 
Fraser Edwards was relieved shortly thereafter of his 
Washington Sideshow assignment and his by-line, on 
demand from on high. 



In the November 1936 issue of Vogue, J. Franklin 
Carter, who was often called upon to do personal publicity
work for the President, published an article justifying the
relations of Harry L. Hopkins and Eleanor Roosevelt. 



Following the death of Harry L. Hopkin's second 
wife, Eleanor Roosevelt brought up in the White 
House his daughter Diana. As indicative of the moral 
tone of the New Deal, this marriage is noteworthy.
 
When his first Jewish wife, nee Ethel Gross, brought 
suit for divorce against Harry L. Hopkins, two of his 
former friends came into the court and testified before 
Judge Phillip McCook that Harry had invited them to 
spend the night at an apartment in which he was keeping a
Barbara Duncan; they testified that on her person Harry
Hopkins had extended to them the hospitality of a Bedouin in
the desert, after which he himself spent the balance of the
night in the bedroom. 



In the morning they had breakfast together. Following the
divorce, Barbara Duncan became the second 
Mrs. Hopkins and the Second Lady of the Land. The 
story was reported, curiously enough, in only one edition of
one American newspaper, the first edition of 
the Daily News, March 21, 1931, so effective was the 
censorship, even at this early date, of the press by the 
Dynasty. 



Through her syndicated column, "My Day," Eleanor earned a
high income, appealed to the gossip-loving, had a forum for
propagandizing Marxist New 
Dealism, insidiously waged a continuous campaign, and 
very transparently revealed her attachments. In those 
columns one reads of Esther Everitt Lape, of Harry 
Hopkins, of Earl Miller, of Marion Anderson, of Marys 
Chancy, of Rexford Tugwell, of Joseph Lash and of 
the amiability of the Africans. She press-agented leftist
periodicals, books, plays and personages. A boost 
in her column was regarded as having a high commercial value. 



It is in Eleanor Roosevelt's radio broadcasts that the 
commercial exploitation of the Presidency became 
most patent. Mrs. Ernest K. (Betty) Lindley "sold" 
her to the Pan-American Coffee Bureau. The Bureau 
sought favors of Washington in quotas and pricing of 
coffee that meant the ruination of the American coffee
trade. She sold the prestige of the White House, 
and the desire to influence the Government Bureaus 
and secure their cooperation was undoubtedly a
consideration. Eleanor's fees from the P-A Coffee Bureau 
are reported to have been more than $2000 a broadcast. These
broadcasts were financed indirectly by the 
United States Government through subsidies granted 
Latin American countries. Thus Eleanor probably
indirectly collected from the United States Government 
a greater salary than did the President. 



This took place at the time that Nelson Rockefeller, 
who had evaded the draft and military service by ordering
his appointment as Co-Ordinator of Hemispheric Defense, had
obtained for himself a coffee empire in Brazil 
by cunning and unscrupulous use of the funds, totaling 
about six billion dollars, that he had induced Congress to 
entrust to him for "South American defenses". He thereby 
became one of the largest coffee producers in Brazil. And 
with the aid of more taxpayers' funds via the Import Export
Bank, he cartelized coffee in Brazil and around the 
world, cornered the coffee market and jacked up the 
price of coffee from pennies to more than a dollar. This 
typical Rockefeller "philanthrophy" gouged the same
taxpayers, whose money had made the comer possible, out 
of tens of millions of dollars. In that loot, Eleanor
Roosevelt undoubtedly shared, because of her "cooperation". 



Eleanor's services were sought and paid for at about 
the same rate by the candy manufacturers who feared 
that candy would be declared non-essential and banded 
together to form the Council on Candy as a Food in 
the War Effort. Among these paid broadcasts was her 
"report to the mothers of the nation" following her 
return from Europe. 



There was a premonitory significance to the richly 
jewelled gold crown and other rich gifts which King 
Ibn Saud presented to Eleanor R. (Roosevelt not Regina) to
show his appreciation for the many millions of 
American taxpayers' money that Roosevelt handed 
over to him on behalf of the Rockefeller-Standard Oil interests. 



The Dynasty's New Deal charity-begins-at-home pattern did
not stop with the immediate family. Our diplomatic corps was
packed with cousins of all degrees. 
Colorful Sumner Welles, a remoter cousin, was made 
Assistant Secretary of State until Cordell Hull forced 
his resignation for dark and obscure reasons. With 
Nelson Rockefeller he instituted our "good neighbor" 
policy which was designed to place, with the taxpayers'
money, control of the resources of Latin America in the
hands of the Rockefeller Empire and the 
Dynasty. David Gray, another cousin, was made Ambassador to
Ireland. Cousin Lincoln MacVeagh has 
been Ambassador to Greece, where $400,000,000 sent 
as part of the "Truman plan" to "stop Communism" 
in Greece resulted in establishing a Communist government in
the northern half of the country. Cousin 
A. J. Drexel Biddle was Ambassador to Poland during 
its debacle and subsequently served in the same capacity in
France. Cousin Francis Biddle was one of the 
most pro-Red Attorney Generals. Cousin James L. 
Houghteliug, was pro-Red Commissioner of Immigration and was
subsequently transferred to the position 
of Director of the National Organization Division of 
the Treasury where he worked side by side with Cousin
Charles W. Adams, Assistant National Director of 
the Division. The list of the Dynastic relatives who are 
cared for out of the public payroll could be extended 
indefinitely; but it would merely serve to further
illustrate the extent of nepotism and favoritism that 
taxpayers support. 



Uncle Frederic A. Delano, in addition to his Federal 
Reserve Bank appointment, also holds the following: 
Chairman, Advisory Council, Bureau of Plain Industry, 
Soils, and Agricultural Engineering; Director, Columbia 
Institution For The Deaf; member. Commission for the 
Construction of Washington-Lincoln Memorial Gettysburg
Boulevard; first vice president, Washington National
Monument Society. He served also, for a time as 
chairman of the International Commission of the League of
Nations On Inquiry Into The Production Of 
Opium In Persia. This appointment had an amusing 
aspect. Warren Delano, his father and FDR's grandfather
founded his fortune on smuggling opium into China. 



The most pathetic aspect of this corrupt and ruthless
commercial exploitation of the Presidency is the 
apathy of the public and the depravity that has led to 
their acceptance of the cheap, sordid and revolting
exploitation of the highest public office; and their
acceptance of the idea that all public officers may be
expected to be crudely dishonest and vilely corrupt. 




Hearst, Dupont and Rockefeller Elect F.D.R. 




It is questionable whether in all history a nation has 
been more completely flim-flammed than in the matter
of the supporters and objectives of President 
Franklin Delano Roosevelt. By the crudest type of deception,
that depends for its effectiveness solely upon 
the uncritical gullibility, the defective memory and 
pathetic dullness of the average citizen, the public 
have been led to believe that Roosevelt was an enemy 
of the very people whose creature he was, who financed 
his campaigns and controlled him in office. Some of the 
ablest perverters of public opinion, otherwise known 
as publicity men, headed by Louis Howe and Charles 
Michelson engineered this deception. 



The public have been led to believe that William 
Randolph Hearst, the Du Ponts and the Rockefellers 
were F.D.R.'s worst enemies. But it was they who 
aided the Dynasty and made him President to serve 
their purposes and do their bidding. Some of the facts 
can be gained from an examination of campaign contributions.
Contributions to clean up the debt of the 
Democratic National Committee including $345,250 
owed to John Raskob, a Du Pont associate were: $39,500 by
Pierre S. Du Pont in 1931 and 1932; $125,000 
by Raskob in 1932. 



To F.D.R.'s 1932 election campaign there was contributed
by: William Randolph Hearst, $30,000; Edward S. Darkness,
of Standard Oil Company, $12,000; John J. Raskob. $23,000;
Bernard M. Baruch, of 
the Ryan-Rockefeller-Morgan group, $45,000; Francis 
P. Garvan, representing the Brady interests, $15,000; 
and indirectly the Association Against the Prohibition 
Amendment supported Roosevelt with sums up to $100,000
contributed by Lammot Du Pont; Pierre S. Du 
Pont, Vincent Astor and William H. Woodin, $35,000 
each; Cyrus and Harold F. McCormick contributed 
$5,000 and Eleanor Patterson, $2,000. 



William Randolph Hearst's motive in supporting 
Roosevelt was a matter of urgent personal necessity. 
Hearst had repeatedly earned the enmity of Rockefeller. In
the late 1920's Hearst and Brisbane had expanded their real
estate holdings tremendously, financing them through S. W.
Straus and Company which 
they are reputed to have controlled. When the American Bond
and Mortgage Company, a competing real 
estate mortgage house affiliated with the
Rockefeller interests, collapsed directly after the 1929 
panic, Hearst and Brisbane saw an opportunity to 
boost S. W. Straus and Company and their bonds. 
They ran a running campaign which on one day
demanded criminal prosecution of the crude frauds perpetrated
by the American Bond and Mortgage Company, and on the
following day called on the public to 
buy, as the safest type of investment, S. W. Straus 
and Company bonds. "Never A Loss In Fifty Years" 
was the slogan of the Straus Company that they hammered away
in their columns. 



Intensive publicity of the type that Hearst and Brisbane
hurled against the American Bond and Mortgage 
crowd easily might have led to criminal prosecution. 
To avert that eventuality, the interests involved had to 
do something to smash Hearst and Brisbane. The 
readiest way to accomplish the destruction, in view of 
their extended and highly mortgaged realty holdings, 
was to smash the real estate market throughout the 
country. And the quickest way was to force foreclosure 
of the highest quality real estate, business properly in 
New York City. That was an important function of the 
Rockefeller Center. 



Rockefeller's Radio City differs in its legal status 
from any real estate in the country. By Bill No. 296, 
the 72nd Congress, rushed through in the last hour of 
the session by Rockefeller's principal agent in Congress,
Senator Robert F. Wagner, Rockefeller Center 
was made a freeport, the only free-port in the United 
States. This means that merchants on the west side of 
Fifth Avenue and Fiftieth Street, in Rockefeller Center,
could import merchandise from abroad and display it for sale
without paying duty. 



This law implies discrimination against every other 
port in the country, which is prohibited by the
Constitution. It also implies discrimination against all
other property holders. For it enabled Rockefeller Center 
to lure tenants from other buildings with the inducement
that it would require less capital to engage in 
the import business because the property was a freeport. To
make matters worse, the ground on which 
the Center is built is tax-exempt because it belongs to 
Columbia University, and its rentals can be correspondingly
lower. 



The vacancies resulting from the wholesale exodus 
of tenants into Radio City from other properties in 
New York City was equivalent in its effect to "short 
selling" real estate, and it sharply depressed the property
values in New York City. Interested parties were 
able to grab up property thus depreciated at bankrupt 
prices. The tactics employed in this process were the 
basis of at least one lawsuit against the Rockefeller
interests that has come to public attention, brought by 
August Heckscher. Its disposition has been kept secret. This
sharp and highly lucrative business deal has 
been represented to the public as a philanthropic enterprise
to combat depression by the Rockefeller publicity men. 



Millions of people throughout the country lost their 
properties, their homes, their farms and their businesses as 
a consequence of this characteristic Rockefeller
"philanthrophy". Like all of the Rockefeller fake
"philanthropies", this one also bore the feature of
virtually tax-exempting the Rockefellers; and shifted the
burden of their 
taxes on to the shoulders of the rest of the nation, on us 
whom the power-drunk conspirators delight in calling 
"peasants". 



The terrific smash in real estate values thus stimulated,
drove S. W. Straus and Company into bankruptcy and spread
ruin among its mortgage bondholders including numerous
widows and orphans. But 
Hearst and Brisbane were wiped out at the same time. 
The Hearst publications and the Hearst properties 
were taken over by the Rockefellers through their 
Chase National Bank. 



In the meantime Rockefeller's money had put Dewey 
in the District Attorney's office in New York. Dewey 
was put to work on an investigation of the white slave 
and numbers rackets, which were backed by identical 
financial interests, in order to fill the headlines of the 
newspapers and divert public attention from the quiet 
dismissal of the American Bond and Mortgage fraud 
cases in Brooklyn. The service thus rendered marked 
this scion of the Dynasty for advancement to the top. 



The only possibility open to Hearst of rescuing his 
cherished estates, San Simeon and Wynkoop, lay in a 
revaluation of gold. Hearst, through his ownership of 
a controlling block of stock in Homestake Mining 
Company as well as investments in other gold mining 
property, is one of the largest, or perhaps the largest, 
individual gold producer in the world. If he could increase
the earnings of these companies, Hearst would be 
able to salvage his estates. That required a revaluation, 
a rise in the Treasury price, of gold. 



For the purpose of obtaining a revaluation of gold, 
Hearst made a deal with Ex-Senator William Gibbs 
McAdoo, Wilson's son-in-law, who had control of the 
California delegates to the 1932 Chicago Democratic 
Convention, with John Nance Garner of the Texas delegation,
and with Mayor Anton Cermak of the Illinois 
delegation, thus insuring control of the Convention. 
McAdoo or Garner, who agreed to a revaluation of 
gold, were to be the candidates. But neither of them 
could get enough votes to capture the presidential 
nomination. 



Hearst would not release the delegation except to 
a candidate who would agree to revalue gold. Roosevelt
agreed to do so as the first act of his Administration as
well as to take Garner as a running mate. 



Hearst made Roosevelt President by releasing the three 
delegations to him, even though he did not particularly
trust him. Had Roosevelt been assassinated at Miami, 
Hearst's original choice of President would have prevailed. 



However systematically F.D.R. violated his promise 
to the nation's voters, he rarely was permitted by the 
Dynasty to fail to live up to the letter of his pledges 
to his financial backers and bosses. He revalued gold 
as the first act of his Administration, after closing the 
banks. 



Aside from Hearst and his financial predicament, 
the revaluation of gold was entirely uncalled for. Under the
circumstances of the depression and the New 
Deal controlled economy, it did not serve to bring 
about inflation and a rise in wages and prices, though 
that was the principal excuse offered for the act. In 
recent years, when there has been good reason to fight 
price rises, it has served as a tremendous stimulus to 
inflation. 



The revaluation of gold meant eventually that persons or
groups permitted to retain ownership of gold, 
and producers of new gold, received an increased price 
of $15.00, or 75%, per ounce. But the rank and file of 
the citizenry, every man, woman and child who owned 
gold which was surrendered, bonds, savings, insurance 
or liquid cash, were robbed to the same extent. It 
meant that the purchasing power of the American dollar in
foreign markets was reduced by the same 
amount, and that each American living at home or 
travelling abroad was robbed by his government of 
that amount. Revaluation of gold was not merely uncalled
for. It was downright dishonest as well as injurious to the
country and served the nation no good purpose. 



For the banking groups, who retained gold or who 
exported it to foreign countries in advance of the gold 
order, the revaluation meant huge profits. Such banks 
as Rockefeller's Chase National Bank exported billions of
dollars worth of gold bullion successively to 
France and England, beginning in October 1929. They 
profited when they increased the price of gold in 
France, when they manipulated the rise in the pound 
sterling in England from $3.05 to $4.86; and when they 
returned the gold to the United States they gave themselves
$15.00 an ounce more for their gold, as a reward for helping
to bring on the 1929 crash and the depression by 
exporting the gold. 



Aside from its basic dishonesty, the gold order originally
issued by Roosevelt was unconstitutional as I 
pointed out in letters published in the New York 
Times and other publications at the time. For the order
called for surrender of the gold to the Federal 
Reserve Bank, a private, quasi-public stock company. 
Though the Constitution permits of confiscation for 
eminent domain, it bars confiscation for private interest. 



F.D.R. called upon Congress to pass a bill in the 
following year compelling surrender of gold to the 
Treasury, supposedly to correct the illegality of his 
first gold order. But this law was treated with their 
customary contempt by F.D.R. and his New Dealers. 
After two years of investigation, I forced an admission 
from Secretary Morganthau that $10,000 gold notes 
were being issued by the Treasury Department solely 
to member banks of the Federal Reserve System for 
the gold that had been surrendered. In other words, 
the gold hoard that is being protected by the United 
States Army at Fort Knox belongs to the member 
bankers of the Federal Reserve Bank and not to the 
United States Treasury. This is a violation of both law 
and Constitution. 



Revaluation of gold saved Hearst a part of his fortune.
Profits of Homestake Mining Company and other 
gold mines rose enormously. The price of gold stocks 
rose accordingly, and Homestake Mining Company 
stock rose from $50 to over $500 within a short period 
after the gold order. 



Republicans and honest Democrats alike condemned 
the gold order and fought it, in one case to the Supreme
Court where it was speciously upheld. They 
threatened to reverse the order when it would be in 
their power to do so. 



Hearst was in abject terror over the threats to reverse gold
revaluation. He had to get the higher price 
for gold over a long period of time to retrieve part of 
his fortune. It was imperative for him that Roosevelt 
should be repeatedly reelected. But he knew that his 
continuous championship of Roosevelt would drive his 
numerous enemies into the opposition. 



The task of making Hearst a real asset to Roosevelt's 
re-election campaigns instead of a potential liability 
and of perverting public opinion, was placed before a 
group of outstanding publicity men. They advised that 
Nazism and Fascism was becoming extremely unpopular in the
United States and F.D.R. was following 
public opinion in opposing them. They suggested that 
William Randolph Hearst and his publications launch 
a sham fight on Roosevelt, and at the same time pretend to
support Nazism and Fascism, thus throwing 
the Anti-Nazis and Anti-Fascists into the Roosevelt camp. 



The plan was a bitter pill for Hearst to swallow. He 
hated both Nazis and Fascists, if for no other 
reason—because they interfered with his news services.
Nevertheless Hearst accepted the plan. With great
ostentation and publicity he announced a visit to both
Hitler and Mussolini, the outcome of which was the
appearance in Hearst's publications, under control of the 
Rockefeller interests, of articles by Goebbels, Goering, 
Gayda and others. As the perverters of public opinion
expected, the gullible public raged at Hearst and 
flocked to the standards of Roosevelt, blind to the fact 
that he was giving them another of the same brand of 
dictatorship. 



The antagonism between Hearst and Roosevelt was 
utterly sham and an absurd hoax, as can be discerned 
from the things that Hearst was doing simultaneously 
for the Roosevelt family. Immediately after the
inauguration, and after a threat made by F.D.R. to
prosecute airmail overcharges, or "frauds", Elliott
Roosevelt at the age of 21 and with no experience in aviation 
was given, with suspicious eagerness, the job of manager of
the Gilpin Airlines with a total retainer of 
$15,000 a year. The airmail "frauds" were never prosecuted. 



The pattern of this situation, which became familiar and
oft-repeated in the Roosevelt family during 
F.D.R.'s administration, bore so many of the earmarks of a
"payoff" that it started tongues wagging. 



The financial interests behind the Administration were 
frankly as worried about it as they were about the 
BeVier toilet kit scandal that involved New Dealer 
Harry L. Hopkins. In the midst of this concern, Hearst 
stepped into the breach and offered Elliott, whose 
major experience with aircraft was to watch them fly, 
the job of aviation editor of his newspapers at a higher 
straight salary than he received from Gilpin Airlines. 



Thereafter Hearst provided munificently for the son 
of his "enemy", Elliott Roosevelt. Elliott's talents were 
turned to radio, working for Southwest Broadcasting 
Company which later turned over four of its stations 
to the open ownership of Hearst. His position was 
vice-president. Elliot Roosevelt handled for Hearst the 
radio presidential election campaign against his father 
in 1936. It hardly can be conceived that Elliott Roosevelt
would have done anything really intended to harm 
his father. The trail of Hearst's benefactions anent 
Elliott goes further. 



But Hearst did not stop with Elliott in his benefactions to
the family of his "enemy", F.D.R. Anna 
Roosevelt Dali Boettiger, F.D.R.'s daughter, and her 
husband were both given highly paid jobs on the unsuccessful
Hearst paper, the Seattle Post Intelligencer. 
Anna was made columnist with a reputed salary of 
$12,000 a year and her husband, publisher at a salary 
running into six figures. May the Lord give us more 
"enemies" of that calibre. 



The story of the enmity that the Du Ponts displayed 
against Roosevelt in public is much the same type of 
flim-flam staged for political, vote-getting purposes. The 
Du Ponts heavily financed the Democratic as well as 
the Republican Party. They carefully avoided financing
Roosevelt's campaigns openly, but indirectly contributed
heavily through the Association Against the 
Prohibition Amendment and other channels. 



Shortly after Roosevelt's nomination, the two families got
together and in true monarchic fashion the Du 
Ponts arranged an alliance with the Royal Family by 
sealing the engagement of young Ethel Du Pont and 
Franklin Delano Roosevelt Jr. It was a natural alliance
because of the identity of interests. Both the 
Du Ponts and the Roosevelt-Delano Dynasty are heavily 
interested in munitions and armaments, in war. 



It was decided, however, that it would never do to 
let the public know of this alliance, because its warlike
character would be so obvious. Any stories that 
leaked out regarding the alliance and the engagement 
were promptly denied. It was kept a dark secret until 
exactly one week after F.D.R.'s second election. 



The same policy was followed in making the Du 
Ponts an asset to Roosevelt, to help assure his reelection.
As in the case of Hearst, the Du Ponts appeared 
to be enemies of their prospective in-law, Roosevelt. 
The Du Ponts were intensively publicized as war-loving,
war-thriving munition kings. On the other hand 
fire was added to the pacifist movement that had been 
planted in the land by its designing enemies. The Liberty
League was then set up for the ostensible purpose of
attacking Roosevelt and fighting his reelection. This served
to throw the entire pacifist vote into Roosevelt's camp and
helped assure his reelection. 



How fully deliberate was this malign purpose can 
he seen from the publicity about the Liberty League 
on which the Du Ponts spent millions of dollars. 
This publicity, as is instanced by the "Hate Roosevelt"
dinner given in Washington, served to present 
the Du Ponts to the nation as a laughing stock. 
Ordinarily business men do not regard ridicule as good 
publicity and invariably discharge the publicists who 
make the mistake of heaping it on them. But the Du 
Ponts continued to pay publicist Jouett Shouse $50,000 
a year and an unlimited expense account, repeatedly 
to hold them up to ridicule. Apparently they were 
willing to go far to insure Roosevelt's re-election. 



And curiously enough, Franklin Delano Roosevelt, 
who was viciously vindictive and invariably sought to 
"purge" his enemies, did not resent the sham attacks 
of Hearst and the Du Ponts, in the slightest degree. 



The Rockefeller-Standard Oil group carefully stayed 
in the background and made no open and direct contribution,
other than those of Harkness, to Roosevelt's 
election campaign. But their hand in effecting Roosevelt's
election is evinced by a number of facts. The 
majority of the members of the Roosevelt Cabinet 
were drawn from their crowd. These included: Harold 
Ickes, Standard Oil attorney for the Chicago area, Secretary
of the Interior; Frances Perkins, Rockefeller almoner,
Secretary of Labor; Henry A. Wallace, Rockefeller protege.
Secretary of Agriculture; oil man, Jesse 
Jones; and Harry L. Hopkins, Rockefeller almoner and 
their key New Deal agent in controlling Roosevelt's 
policies. A staggering number of appointive positions 
in policy-making agencies of the government were 
drawn from their subordinates. And for the first time 
in history an American President dared openly appoint a
Rockefeller to office—Nelson Rockefeller in 
the ultra-strategic post of Coordinator of Hemispheric 
Defense. 



Under Roosevelt the United States Government became totally
subservient to the Rockefeller Empire and 
made possible its conquest of the world. The appointment of
J. P. Morgan's nephew, Joseph Grew, as Ambassador to Japan
prepared the way for Pearl Harbor, 
the rescue of Rockefeller-Standard Oil property in 
China, and the complete conquest of Japan by the 
Rockefeller Empire. At the same time it gave them, 
at the expense of tens of thousands of American lives 
and a huge proportion of the national wealth, the control of
the enormously rich Saudi Arabian and other 
Near East oil fields. 


